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2013 Severn Trent group highlights

+ Delivering on dividend policy -
8.2% growth vs 2011/12

- Total shareholder return in the current
regulatory period (AMP5)! - 72%.

+ Creating long term value through
efficient investment - £555 million
Invested this year.

- Continued growth In RCV? from
£7,089 million to £7,364 million
(+3 9%),.

« Delivered significant operational
improverments and higher levels
of customer service

- Improved or stable performance on

13 out of 14 Ofwat KPIs year on year.

- Customer satisfaction (SIM score)
improving.

» Efficiency improverments at
Severn Trent Water helping to offset
additional infrastructure investments

+ Non-regulated business delivered
revenue growth year on year?,

« Well prepared for next price review.

« Full year dividend for 2013/14 set to
be 80 40 pence, up 6%, in line with
current RPI+3% growth policy.

1 14pd 201010 31 March 2013 T5R assumes rervestment of andinary
ond speadl dadends.

Reguigtory Copaal Vdue.
3 Exduding the mpoct of structundl changes, exchange movements
ond excepbonals.

Cautionary statement
This docurnant contains certan forward looking statements’ with respect 1o
Severn Trent's financial condon, results of operations and busness ond ceran
of Severn Trent's plons ond objectives with respect (o these derms.
Forward looking staterments ore sormetimes, but not always, dentified by ther use
of o dote i the futwe or such words 05 onticpates’, ams’, due’ 'will' ‘could” 'may’
should® ‘expects’, ‘helieves, ‘intends’, plons’, ‘potenbat’, reasonably possible’,
‘torgets’, ‘godl or estimotes’ By ther very nature forward looking statements ore

unpredictable, speculative and mvobve rek ond uncertonty becouse they
relate to events and depend on crtumstonces that will ncour in the future
There are a number of foctors that could couse octud results ond developrments to
differ matenally from those expressed or enplied by these forward tookang statements.
These fortors Indude, but ore not imited to, chonges i the econormees and markets
n which the group operates, changes in the reguiatory ond competrbion frameworks
n winch the group operates; the ynpoct of legal or other proceedings agamst or
whuch offect the group, and changes N interest and exchonge rotes
All written or verba forward looking statements, mode n s docurment or made

ly whach are attnbutable 1o Severn Treet or ony other member of the

Group O persons octing on thew behdlf are expressly qualfied in their entirety by the
foctors referred to obove Severn Trent does not intend ta update these forward
loolang stotements.
Nothmg n this documnent should be regarded as o profits forecast.
This docurment &5 not on offer to sell, exchonge or tronsfer any seauribes of Severn
Trent Plc or any of s subsidhones ond 1s not sobicking on offer to purchase, exchange
or tronsfer such secunties i ony ursdiction. Secursbes may not be offered, sold
or tramsferred n the Unted States absent regestrotion or ar applcable exermguon
from the regestration requirerments of the US Secunbies Act of 1933 (as amended)
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* before tax, exceptionol kems and losses on finanaal instruments
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* before exceptional items, losses on finanoiol instrurnents and
deferred tax
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What we do

Our business

We provide clean water and waste water services
in the UK and internationally, principally through
our regulated and non-regulated businesses -
Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Services.

Regulated - Severn Trent Water

One of the largest of the 10 regulated water

and sewerage companies in England and Wales.
We provide high quality services to more than
4.2 million households and businesses in the
Midlands and mid-Wales.

More on pages 12-23

Non-requlated - Severn Trent Services

One of the world’s leading commercial suppliers
of water and waste water treatment services
and products, with customers in the UK,

the Americas, Europe, Middle East and Asia.

More on pages 24-32

Find out rnare anour corporate website www.sevemtrent.com
Severn Trent Water website www.stwater co uk
Severn Trent Services website www severntrentservices com
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The Severn
Trent World

2012/13 has been a year of continued focus and
evolution for Severn Trent. We fundamentally
believe In the positive impact of increasing
competition in our industry and the opportunities
it will bring The boundary between regulated and
non-regulated actwvities in the UK 1s changing and
we are adapting our business to take full
advantage of the changes ahead, while
continuing to focus on ensuring our core activities
mantam quality and deliver excellent customer

service and value

We spent £5 6 million across
Severn Trent on the development
of renewables such as large scale
wind energy We do thisto
reduce our rebance on grd
electricity, it also reduces our
carbon emissions

[

Water trading

We have seen re?ulotory and
political support for further
water trading in the UK with
Severn Trent being perfectly
geographically positioned to
trade water with our neighbours

£38m

We've invested £38 million

in Gloucestershire since the

2007 floods The Mythe water
treatment works has new flood
defences and pipelines to provide
alternative supplies to 160,000
customers We've built 1 kmof
new sewers and new storm
tanks to prevent networks beng
overwhelmed by heavy rain

More on poge 19

Image removed

133cm

2012 recorded the second
highest annual rainfallin
England since 1910 We collect
water from reservorrs, rivers and
underground boreholes across
our region

Services

InOctober 2012 we formed a
bustness with Costain to offer
large multr-site water users a
single supplier of water and
waste water services It aims to
delwver efficiency improvements,
save costs, manage legal
compliance and nsk and deliver
water efficiency solutions

More on page 25

Sever Trent

£150nn

Through effective procurement
and capital delvery we
generated £150 millon of
efficiency savings We are
reinvesting this to improve the
performance of our network and
treatment assets to provide
better service to customers




Overview

The average cost to our customer
per day for combined services is
89 pence Our customers benefit
from the lowest average
combined bills in England

and Wales

Regulatory
reform

We have contirued to play an
active role n discussions about
the evolving regulatory and
Yicy framewark for the water
industry Many of the ideas
we have proposed In our
Changing Course senes of
publications have now been
adopted by policy makers

More on page 33

/000

We have carned out research
with more than 7,000 household
and business customers about
the future of our services

11 years

Severn Trent De Norg was
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established in 2002 to provide

seawater and brine onsite
hypochlonte generation

systems for manne, offshore

water and waste water
treatment applications

Image removed

£555m

capitat spend

Qver the last financial year
we hove invested £555 million
into our network and above
ground assets

We reduced leakage across our
region by 5%, a reduction of

23 megalitres per day (MI/d)
We also wark with others and
through our operation and
mantenance contract with the
UK Mirustry of Defence we have

cut the leakage at their sites
to an all tme low

We operate more than
900 rumcipal water and

waste water treatment facilities
across the US and Eurape
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Chairman’s statement

‘We continue to set ourselves high
standards in everything we do and
the continuous improvement that
we see owes much to the hard work
and commitment of our team at

Severn Trent.’

Andrew Duff, Charman

Qur focus on water and waste water services has
again delivered benefits for our customers and good
returns for our shareholders This year Severn Trent
Water custorners saw the first positive impact of
some of the extra £150 millton of investment in

our water and woste water networks, which we
announced in May 2012

In addition, we continue to leverage our skills

n water and waste water services N our
non-regulated business Severmn Trent Services

This year we completed the sale of our analytical
services and metenng operations in order to focus
on growth in the emerging markets for commercial
and industrial users in the UK, in the US and our
global water purfication products business

Image removed

Strong performance at Severn Trent Water
In this third year of our current 2010-2015
business plan, T am pleased to report further
progress in the operational performance and
customer service delivered by our regulated
business, Severn Trent Water

Qur custorers continue to benefit from high quality
dnnking water as well as the lowest average bills for
water and sewerage combined in England and
Waoles Customer service standards improved

year on year and complaint levels have fallen for
the last two years

Dunng the early part of the year when we
experenced drought in the Midlands, we carefully
managed our water resources, so that we avoided
the need for a hosepipe ban Severn Trent Water 1s
the only compary targeting significant leakage
reductions over this five year regutatory penod
and in 2012/13, we cut leokoge to o 20 year tow,
beating our target n the process

Drought over the eary part of the year was followed
by extended ranfoll dunng the rest of the year and
agan, our teams performed well to help protect
customers from flooding Despite the ramfall,

we achieved record levels of complionce at

waste water treatment works and a reduction

in pollution inadents




Overview Charman’s statement

The success of Severn Trent Water reflects the
commitment of everyone in our business to
continuous improvement and our drive towards
hugher standards of service, efficency and
operational performance 'm particularly proud that
the lost year was our safest ever [ am personally
committed to pushing our safety standards even
higher so thot everybody remains healthy and safe
when they are at work

Good financial performance

In 2012113, our financial performance was as
expected Total group revenue iIncreased by 3 4% to
£1,832 million, whilst underlying group profit before
tax decreased 3 3% to £266 3 millon This resulted
in adjusted basic earrngs per share of 98 9 pence,
up112%

Our policy during this current five year penod to
March 2015 1s to increase our dividend each year
by 3% more than the retall price Index The board
therefore proposes a final dividend of 45 51 pence,
to be paid on 26 July 2013 This will give o total
divdend for the year of 75 85 pence, an increase

of 8 2%

During the year we were pleased to return a further
£150 millon to shareholders, through the special
dividend of 63 penice per share i July 2012 and

we also announced the investrment of an extra
£150 million in our water and waste water network
for the benefit of our customers This reflects our
ability to create value from the business plon
approved by our requlator to the benefit of both
custorners and shareholders

Custormers and shareholders have benefited from
our consistent delivery over recent years Since the
start of the current cycle on 1 Aprnl 2010, Severn
Trent's total shareholder retum including the special
distnbution has been 71 71%, well ahead of the

25 57% retumn from the FTSE 100 and the 61 4%
achieved by the utilities sector as a whole

Supporting our local economies

On other mpartant matters, we're very mindful of
the economic, environmentat and social benefits we
bring to the region in which we operate Where we
can, we aim to make a positive difference

In Severn Trent Water, we directly employ over
5,500 people and many more through our contract
partners and supply chains With the UK econormy
struggling to grow, investment by water companies
has a particutarly sigrificant role Investing in
infrastructure 15 one of the fastest ways to boost
economic activity and water companies use private
capital, rather than drawing on public furids which
coutd be usefully employed elsewhere During the
year, we invested £555 rmillion into cur network,
making a substantial contnbution to jobs and the
local economy
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‘Customers and shareholders
have benefited from our
consistent delivery over
recent years.’

We also help to create the skills that we, the
economy and our region need Severn Trent Water
currently has more than 80 apprentices in water,
waste water and customer service roles The calibre
of young people we attracted for our apprenticeship
programme has been particularly high, showing the
attractions of our traning ond the prospect of a
long term career in o vital ndustry

Building for growth in non-regulated markets
Severn Trent Services, our main non-requlated
business, has sharpened the focus of its actrties on
water punfication products and operating services,
having disposed of its analytical services and
metenng operations

Its underlying performance in the year was
encouraging Despite challenging conditions inits
markets, it has won contracts and seen growth in
sales of water purification products in emerging
markets After a pencd of consolidation, the
cantinuing businesses of Severn Trent Services are
again making progress

Shaping the future of our industry

The last 12 months have seen much discussion
about the direction of regulation in the water
industry Severn Trent continues to play a leading
role In shaping the course of regulation and intends
to continue to do so As a progressive business, we
hove advocated changes which will help the country
make the best use of its water resources, iImprove
outcomes for custormers and prowvide sutable
returns for Investors

We're therefore supportive of the proposed direction
of travel for regulation and of the Water Bill, as it
passes through Pariament. In particular, we're
positive about the prospects for water trading and
the opportunities it brings for greater resilience and
keeping customers’ costs down
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Overview Charrman’s staterment

The corning year will see the submisston of our
final business ptars for the next regulatory penod
2015-2020, following an extenstve penod of
consuliation with customers, stokeholders and
requlators I would like to recogrise the role of the
independent Water Forum, chaired by Dame Yve
Buckland, in providing a heclthy challenge around
our plans as they have come together

As a responsible company, our aim is to produce
a good plan, based on meaningful consuttation,
which finds the nght balance between making
improvements where customers value them the
most, keeping bills affordable and providing a fair
return to our investors

Faced with competing pressures {o maintain
investrnent and drive up standards, whilst keeping

bills low, it 15 essential that our sector has continued

access to future financing and at o reasonable cost
At Severn Trent, we believe that a sustainable

long term approach to financing should be

taken by the industry and that regulation must
therefore attract and incentvise equity finance
Excessive reliance on leverage characterises much
of our sector today

Image removed

Summary

In sumrmary, good performance continues
to underpin confidence that we can create
value through the remainder of the current
regulatory penod

We have delivered further improverments in
operational performance and customer service
at Severn Trent Water In Severn Trent Services
we returned to underlying growth We met our
financial expectations and generated good
returns for our shareholders

This year's results owe a great deal to the
commitment, excellence and hard work of
our people We continue to set ourselves high
standards in everything we do and I would ke
to thank managernent and stoff for putting us
In @ strong position for future success

Finally, I would like to use this opportunity to

note my thanks to cur Chief Executive, Tony Wray,
who has informed the boord of his intention to retire
frorn Severn Trent n Spring 2014

With a strong executive team in place the timing
of his decision provides us with the continuity of
leadership and the necessary time to search for
and identdfy his successor over the conning months

Signature removed

Andrew Duff
Charman




Chief Executive’s review

‘The world is changing for water

companies and Severn Trent leads

the way in shaping that change.

We are continually improving our
performance, improving our customer

service and positioning the
group for sustainable growth.’

Tony Wray, Chuef Executive

See our film at www severntrent.corm/focusonwater

Delivering the future of water

The UK water industry faces significant challenges
We need to deat with the realimpact of cimate
change and the increasing frequency of water
shortages and flooding We need to access and use
water and environmental resources mare efficiently
We need to keep improving customer service and
customer choice whilst keeping our bilis affordable
for our custormers We need to maintain the
significant investments that are required to ensure
that our networks can deliver the essential water
and waste water services And, whilst keeping bills
as low as we can for our custorners, we need to
generate sustainable returns for our investors

Proposals from the UK Government and Ofwat will
help us respond to these challenges The changes
are evolutionary, but together they add up to the
largest shift in the industry’s rules since privatisation

The Water Bl will allow more competition for
non-household customers, greater ‘upstreany
competition - water trading in particular - and
increase the scope for mergers and acquisitions,
which should eventually leod to a more efficient
industry structure
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Image Removed

Ofwat 1s considenng important changes to the way
Ik regulates, as it prepares for the next price review
N 2014 (PR14} Notable differences frorm the
current regme include separate controls for the
wholesale part of the busiess ~ the networks and
treatment plants - and the retal element, wiich
manages custorner relationships This will increase
focus on delivering the best customer service at
lowest cost, and create more choice for
non-household custorers

There will be greater emphasis on achieving
objectives thot companies set in consultation with
their customers, helping them to innovate ond
benefit all stakeholders Companies will be able to
choose larger ncentwes for outpetformance, at the
nsk of bigger penalties if they fall short. Also our
customers and other stakeholders now have o
much bigger role ininfluencing our next five year
plan Further details of our stakeholder engagement
and the role of the Water Forumn are provided on
pages 18 and 20

Severn Trent welcomes these changes We've been
actve in the debate about the future of water and
we're pleased that the changes are aligned with our
own proposals That's allowed us to prepare for
these changes, through a strategy that creates
opportunities to leverage our core skills

LORDULOIILIBYIO  SIUSLLSIOIS [ooutuly AUDJWIOY  SJUSLUAIOIS [CDUDUY dNOJE)  SOUDLIAADT)  MBIAG) SSBUSIY  MAIISAQ)
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Overview Chief Executive’s review

Our strategy
Sustainable

Strategy am

Delivering value for our customers
and investors

Responsible leadership, protecting the
environment, thinking long term and
setting high standards in everything
we do

Sustainable financing, ensunng we have
a strong and flexible balance sheet.

Growth

Strategy aim

Growing Severn Trent Water in the UK
through investment in our networks
and services

Positioning Severn Trent to capitalise
on opportunities In a changing
regulatory framework.

Deploying Severn Trent Services business
into new markets

Developing new treatment technologies.

Highlights 2013

+ Our reguiated business met ts leakage
target, reduced interruptions to supply
and protected more homes from
sewer flooding

« We maintained the lowest averoge bills for
water and sewage combined in England
and Wales

» Qur non-regulated business delvered
top hne growth, focused its cperations
and 1s well positioned for the future

* We continued to grow our dividend

» Qur Focus on Water strategy provides
value for money for cur custorners and
long term sustainable growth for our
nvestors,

+ We achieved our best ever heclth and
safety performance

- We continued to invest in our sector
leading renewable energy operation

- We made further progress with our
catchment managernent programme

- We continued to influence the regulatory
debate about the future of our ndustry,
through a senes of publications

= We remained prudently financed and
maintained our strong credit rating

- We successfully refinanced £500 rullion
of our debt and 1ssued our first retail bond
drawing £75 millicn from new investors

Highlights 2013

« We continued to make good progress
with our preparations for PR14

= We invested £555 million in our
infrastructure

+ We increased our regulctory capital
value by £275 millron

= We created a new venture with
Costain to compete for large user
business customers

- We strengthened Severn Trent De Nora
by ocquinng certain product ines from
Chlorine Engineers Corp, giving us an
opportunity for future growth in Japan

« We invested in further developing
BALPURE® and continued to grow
Its sales

Key measures

441 MlUid 419

Leakage megalitres Custormer wrtten

per day complants per 1,000

(2012 464) properties (STW)
(2012 4 88)

+ 02 Lost ime incidents per 100,000 hrs
worked (2012 03)

+ We generate just under a quarter of the
electrioty needed by our reguloted
business

« We support the direction of the Water Bill,
which is expected to become low later

this year

£731.2m 58.4%

Net Debt/RCV Geanng
(2012 56 0%)

Cosh generated from
operations
{2012 £7259m)

Key measures

3.9%

RCV growth
(2012 4 0%)

= First Milk, the first business customer
to switch water supplier

+ Input lessons from the first multi-site,
mulb-national switch into
Regulatory bodies

£113.4m

Woter Punfication turnover
(2012 £98m)

£4.6m

New cormmercal orders




Overview Chief Executive’s review

A strategy to deliver the future of water

Our ‘Focus on Water’ strategy, with the goal of
creating sustainable growth through our focus on
water ond waste water services In the UK and key
international markets, drives everything that we do
This strategy recogruses that the boundary between
our requlated and non-regulated activities 1s moving
and that in future, we will generate returns from a
broader range of operations across the requlated
and non-regulated areas As one of the UK’s biggest
water and waste water companies, Severn Trent 1
well positioned to succeed

Qur focus on sustainable growth means that we
balance the needs of our customers, our people,

the environment and investors Achieving this
balance leads directly to good financral performance
and delivers value for our customers and investors
today and in the longer term

We recognise that economic conditions are tough
and that our customers have seen their incomes
squeezed While prices will Inewitably nse because of
the ongoing need for investrment, we're determined
to keep them as low as we can and delwver value for
money This means further improving our service,
protecting customers from the effects of drought
and floods and prowding them with water that’s
good to drink and always avallable

Protecting the environment Is also key because we
and our customers depend on it to provide the
resources we need

Efficient investrnent ollows us to deler sustainoble
returns for our shareholders Our strategy 1s to
remain focused on water and waste water services

Our pecple are central to our future We work hard
to make sure they have the skills and tools they
need, and are motwated to continually improve our
service to customers

With significant changes in the sector approaching,
we keep our strategy under constant review This
includes having open and constructive relationships
with key stakeholders, such as customer
representatives, our economic and environmental
regulators and our investors, so we understand what
they expect from us We then formally review our
strategy each year, involving beth the Executive
Committee and the board, so it rernains relevant,
balanced and sufficiently forward looking

‘Our focus on sustainable
growth means that we
balance the needs of our
customers, our people, the
environment and investors.’
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Business performance review

The group delivered a good finanaal performance
dunng the year, despite challenging condtions in
some markets This underpins our dvidend promise,
which 1s to grow our dvidend by 3% more than the
retaill price index up to 2014/15

We also maintained our financaal stability, by
continuing to refinance our existing debt and 1ssuing
new debt to support our investment programme
Thus included our first ever retal bond, which raised
£75 milbon

Regulated - focused on continuous iIMprovement
Our customers benefited for the fourth year running
from the lowest average bills for water and
sewerage combined in England and Wales Whilst
prices Increosed they were below the industry
average We continued to supply customers with
excellent drinking water and, despite the drought

at the start of the year, we once agan avoided a
hosepipe ban

Our UK regulated business, Severn Trent Water,
continued to improve its operattonal and
environmental performance These improvements,
aleng with effective procurement and capital
delnery, help us to be more efficent Inthis
Regulatory Penod we are re-investing £150 rmullion
of our efficency gains into our plant and networks
to improve services for our customers further

This investment contributed to our ongoing
perforrnonce iImproverment We cut leakage toa

20 year low and beat our target. Underlying levels
of interruptions to supply also fell, with our Ofwat
reasure improving, atthough ¢ handful of burst
mamns which affected numerous customers meant
that we didn’t meet our internal target. We further
reduced pollution incrdents, white compliance at our
waste water treatment works reached a new record
high, contnbuting to Improving niver water quality

During the year, we delivered the outputs that
Ofwat required fromus We were pleased to see
that recent investment in the flood defences at
the Mythe Water Treatment Works proved their
worth as the plant withstood exceptionally heavy
rains and flooding We also reduced the number
of homes at nsk of sewer flooding and there are
now fewer properties on the ‘at-nsk’ register than
ever before

In previous years, we've identified customer service
as an areq where we would ltke to improve Qur
customer expenence programme 1s changing the
way we think about how we interact with our
customers, which has led to pleasing improvements
In Our customer service scores, as measured by
Ofwat’s Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM)

UOADULIULIBLY)  SIUBUIFI0NS 10U AUDALUIG)  SIUBLUBIDIS |00UDLY dNQID.  BDUDLIBAOD)  MBIN3I SSAUISI  MaUBNg
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Overview Chief Executive’s review

This contnbuted to a custormer satisfaction level of

4 36 out of 5 1n our SIM quantitative survey, as well
as falling levels of complants However, we know we
have much further to go and we are not complacent.
This includes resolving mare of our customers’ Issues
to their satisfaction on first point of contact and
continuing to invest in our people, to help them form
a better appreciation of our customers' needs and
concerns when they have to contact us

Our combined SIM score for 2012/13 was 781
aganst 69 90 2011/12 Thisrepresents a 12%
year on year improvermnent and we're the most
improved water and waste water company

Non-regulated - dnving new markets in

the UK and overseas

We improved our operational and financial
performance in our non-requlated business

Like for iike revenue in Severn Trent Services grew
by 5 3% and we mantamned underlying profits
after nvesting further in business development

We strengthened our Severn Trent De Nora business
by acquinng some electrochlornation technologies
from Chlonne Engineers Corp for £1 3 milbon This
gves Severn Trent De Nora an opportunity for future
growthin Japan Our Operating Services business
won several new contracts in the US, including

21 from SouthWest Water Company as they exited
contract operations in the Texas Municipal Utility
District. We recently agreed to acquire service
contracts with 10 municipalities and three private
entities in Califorria which will provide us with a base
for growth in the Western US We reorganised our
products business to create a regional structure,
which will bnng it closer to its customers and reduce
costs by sourcing and assermbling more locally

We also sharpened our focus by disposing of the
metenng and analytical serices businesses
Disposal of our analyticat services business also
satisfied an undertaking made to Ofwat who

have now dosed the section 26 investigation inte
thus market.

In the UK, we're driving forward retail cormpetition
with the UK’s first retaill switch when we signed
major dairy First Milk as a customer, including sites
n England, Scotland and Wales

We also continue to leverage our sector leading
position in renewable and green energy For the
second successive year, we generated around one
quarter of the electricity needed by our UK regulated
businesses We lead the UK in ancerobic digestion
technolegy and are developing plans to expand into
the emerging UK opportunity from food waste
digestion Duning the year, we olso extended our
crop digestion plant in Nottinghamshire and started
construction of the first of three large wind turbines

People and culture

The performance we've delivered this year shows
the quolity of our people and their destre to do an
excellent job [ would like to thank them for
everything they have dore

We have talented and committed people throughout
the group Together, they have a wide breadth of
expertise, from hydrologists and engineers to
custormer service experts and technelogists

They apply these skils to our common mussion,
delvenng high standards and the lowest possible
charges for customers, with great people

We've created a culture of continuous improvement
that sustaing our desire to do better This culture s
key While we have a sophisticated set of tools which
combine behavioural science and lean management
to help us improve the way we work, it's the culture,
values and attitude of our people thot make those
tools effective and drve us forward, every day

Looking forward

Severn Trent 1s well positioned as the UK industry
enters the next phose of development We have
accepted Ofwat’s proposed licence modifications
and are aligned to the agenda for regulatory reform
and the Water Bill, both of which we continue to
help shape

Our preparations for PR14 are progressing well,
Customers are ot the heart of our planning, through
the widespread engogement we've already
conducted and through our customer challenge
panel, the Water Farum Further details are provided
onpages 18 and 20

Regulatory and political support for water trading s
growing and companies are likely to be incentvised
to trade in the future Severn Trent has an ongoing
dialogue with neighbouring companies and we are
well placed to benefit from more effective use of the
country’s water resources

Locking further ahead, companies will have to
ensure they're sustainably financed The utilities
sector In the UK will need to find billions of pounds
for nvestrment ond it isn’t certain that all of this can
be done through debt. Equity 1s therefore required to
play a part, which means companies will have to be
able to earn an appropnate return to attract that
funding We published important discussion papers
on this subject dunng the year

In summary, Severn Trent 1s operating from a great
base We have the nght people doing the nght things
ond delvering the nght outcomes Our markets
around the world need dean water and waste water
services, and we have the nght focus to prosper

Signature removed

Tony Wray
Chief Executive




Overview

Today...
We’re getting it right
first time for customers

We've introduced new ways of working so we fix 80% of
bursts on customers’ properties, that are eligible under our
free repair scherne, after one coll to us and with one visit.

We put ourselves in our custormers’ shoes to understand their
expenence We mapped out our processes from when our
custorner first contacts us to resolving the job and we
reviewed how we kept our customers informed We also
stood in our employees’ shoes and locked at the traning

we prowded and the systems they used

The result 5 a redesigned training programme for our
teams, improved colloboration between field and call centre
colleogues and g better custormer expernence of dealing with
Sevemn Trent.

Image removed

Tomorrow...

We continue to
invest in excellent
customer service

We work hard to prowide our customers with a service
expenence that 1s consistently reassunng and religble,
whilst doing whatever we can to personalise the way

in which we deal with each indvidual custormer query

Image removed
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Severn Trent Water

Severn Trent Water aims to be the best water and waste
water company in the UK, by providing the highest standards
and lowest possible charges, through great people.

See our film ‘It's whot we do’ ot www severntrent.cormvwhatwedo

Our tong term objectives...

Over the last year, we have consulted widely with
our stakehotders and customers about Investment
pricrities for the medium and longer term

Based on that consultation, we have set out ten
long term objectives

1  We will provide water that 1s good to drink

2 We will ensure water is always there
when you need it

We will have the lowest possible charges
We will help you If you struggle

We will protect our water erwironment
We will protect the wider environment

v 0 ~N O v &~ W

We will make a positive difference in
the community

10 We will finance our business sustainably

We measure our performance against 16 key
performance indicators (KPIs) Detalls of our KPIs
can be found on page 139

Where we operate

Our regton stretches across the heart of the UK

We serve more than 4 2 milllon households

and bustinesses, from the Bristol Channel to the
Humber, and from mid-Wales to the East Midlands

We will safely take your waste water away
We will provide excellent custorner service

Image removed

.delivered through four focus areas

We implement our strategy and plans by focusing
on four key areas our customers, people, process
and finance We aim to deliver the highest standards
and lowest charges to our customers, through a
hughly skilled and commmutted workforce

Customers

Our household custorners have the lowest average
combined water and sewerage bills in Englond and
Wales Delivering custormer satisfaction also requires
us to provide water that’s good to drink and always
avallable, and to take away waste water, to reflect
customers’ prionties in our plans, to communicate
clearly, and to keep our promises and put things
nght if they go wrong

Mare on custormers on page 17

People

Our pecple are the cornerstone of our success
We strive to recrutt, develop and retain the best
people, provide them with great workplaces and
maintain g strong culture of safety, personal
responsibility and continuous iImprovement.

More on people on page 20

Process

Our drive to work safer, better and faster is the
foundation of our approach to continuous
improvernent Making sure we have the nght
processes and systerns 1s fundarental to ochieving
operational excellence

More on process on page 21

Finance

The higher our standards, the mare effectively and
efficiently we work This helps us to keep our costs
low and generate progressive, sustainable returms
which earn the trust of and reward for our investors
We look to finance the company in an efficient,
sustainable way and maintain an investrment grade
credtt rating

More on finance on page 23

Key focts

Image
removed

Dnnking water
supplied per day

1.8bn

litres

Image
removed

Waste water
collected per day

14bn

hitres

Image
removed

Employees

5,631

asat 31 March 2013

Turnover

£1,511.0m

(2012 £1,457 5m)

Profit*

£500.9m

(2012 £5000m)
* Before interest, tox and
exceptionol tems.
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Today...

We've developed
innovative and
sustainable solutions

We've nvested n new innovative technology resulting in
increased operational efficiencies and significantly reducing
our carbonimpaocts.

At our Ashboume Sewoge Treatment Works we've installed
the UK's first full scale HYBACS plant. The HYBACS units can be
added onto actvated studge plants to cope with increased
loads into our works The HYBACS offers operational cost
savings of around 80% ond operational carbon savings of
around 60%

With Midlands based firrn Lontra, we have developed o version
of the Blade Compressar™ specrfically optimsed for woste
water aeration The world’s first full scale tnol of the
technology has been in operation at our Worcester Sewage
Treatment Works for the last six months We spend around

£9 million a year on power for ceration in our activated studge
plants and the design of the Blade Compressor™ can reduce
this electncity consurnption by around 20%

Alongside Lontra we recently won ‘Most Innovative New
Technology of the Year' at the Woter Industry Achievernent
Awards for this groundbreaking development.

Image
removed

Tomorrow...
Our research is leading
to new efficiencies

As we replace our old metal pipes with plastic ones, detecting
leaks becomes harder

We have worked with Loughborough University to develop o
prototype leak detection systern that will reduce the tme it
takes to detect aleck on plastic pipes Now under commercial
development with Echologics it could significantly improve
efficiency, resulting In a positive impact for customers and
the environment.

Image removed
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Our business model

Water is essential to ife and to the
communities In which we live and work.
Severn Trent Water 1s intrinsically linked
to the life cycle of water The customer
i1s at the heart of our continuous drve to
Improve our operations and services
across cottection, delivery and cleaning
of water

Severn Trent Water is a regulated business

We work within five year planning cydles, with
customer prices set by our economic regulator,
Ofwat, to allow us to fund our mvestment
prograrmme and cover an efficient tevel of operating
costs We are also subyect to regulation by two
quality requlators - the Dnnling Water Inspectorate
and the Environment Agency {detalls of these
requlators are provided below)

Our prices and asset base are adjusted by RPI
inflation each year In certain circumstances we can
ask for prices to be reviewed within the five year
penod due to costs ossociated with ‘notified items’
or ‘relevant changes of crcumstance’ Customer bad
debt and the adoption of private drains and sewers
are included n these categores for the current

fve year penod

The company earns a return on its asset bose

We can generate addittonal returns if we outperform
Ofwat’s assumptions by becoming more efficent in
the delivery of our capital programme, managing
our operational costs more effectwvely, and by
financing our business at a lower cost.

Our operating performance is assessed and
benchmarked aganst the sector by Cfwat.

At the next price review there 1s scope to eam
addtional Income, or incur penalties, bosed on
our performance

Reqguiatory frarmework

Consumer Council for Water
Consurner Counaol for Water is an independent body designed
to protect the nghts of consurners www cowoter org uk

Dnnking Water Inspectorate (DWI)

The Drinking Water Inspectorate rnokes sure companies
supply water that is safe to dnnk and complies with alk
national and European standards. www dwidefra gov uk

Ermaronment Agency (EA)
The Environment Agency 1s a public body set up to protect ond
improve the ervironment. www environment-agency gov uk

Health and Safety Executive
The Health and Sofety Executive 15 the enforang authorty on
health and safety law www hse gov uk

Natural emaronment

Netural Resources Wales and Natural England
www naturatresourceswales gov uk

www naturatengland org uk

Ofwat

The economic reguiator for the water and sewerage industry
It makes sure that water companies use customers’ money
efficiently and effectively and sets our pnce limits

www ofwat.gov uk

The role of Severn Trent Water

removed
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removed
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We pay the Envircnment
Agency for the water we
collect from reservorrs, rivers
and underground ogquifers
across our region

Regulatory framework

+ Natural environment
- Environment Agency
- Health and Sofety Executive

Risks

further detoils are provided on poges 39-42)

Water is collected Water is cleaned

(abstraction) Our 126 water treatment
works clean raw water to the

highest standards making it
safe to dnnk

{where these are currently constdered Pnncipal Risks,

+ Fallure of key assets may result » Falure of key ossets or processes
in domage to property, injury to may result in a decline in water
people and/for disruption to our quolity, disnuption in our supply
ability to suppty our customners. to custormers or fallure to meet
{Pnncipal Risk Ref 6 ond 8) re%ulotory targets. {Pnnapat Risk

Ref 7)

»

» Dnnking Water Inspectorate
+ Health and Sofety Executive

+ Hozardous processes or chemicals
may result in people being injured
(Pnnaipal Risk Ref 6)

7 Image
rermoved
<
Networks invested

and maintained
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Image Image Image Image
3 4 5 6
> > 4
Clean water Customers Waste water Waste water
is distributed enjoy our services  is collected is treated
A 47,000 km network of pipes ~~ We bill 4 3 millon businesses ~ Our ¢ 92,000 km of sewers Waste water s carefully
and enclosed storage and households a year collect waste water from screened, filtered and treated

reservorrs brng a continuous
supply of clean water nght to
our customers’ taps

+ Ofwat
+ Dninking Water Inspectorate
- Health and Saofety Executive

» The performance of our
distnbution network may fall
below the standards expected by
DWI or Ofwat, resulting in poor
service to our custorners and
increased leakoge from our
network. (Panaipal Risk Ref 7)

= Failure of one of our key assets
coudd result ndisrupbion to
supply to customers
{Pnncipal Risk Ref 8)

In return, we provide a sofe,
reliable supply of water and
the collection of waste water
24 hours g day, 365 days
ayear

= Ofwat
+ Consumer Council for Water
« Drinking Water Inspectorate

* We may be unable to sufficiently
IMprove our performance in
relation to customer service
norder to delver what our
custorers tell us they want.
{Pnncipal Risk Ref 1)

We may be unable to respond
effectively to the opening up of
the business retait market to
competition (Pnncipal Risk Ref 2)

homes and businesses, and
surface water from outside
properties and drains

« Ofwat
« Environment Agency
+ Health and Sofety Executve

« Failure to deal with customer
waste effectively may lead
to sewer flooding
{Pnncipal Risk Ref 7)

In our 1,023 sewage treatment
works to meet stringent
environmental standards

We pay the Environment
Agency an annual consent

fee to return the now treated
water to the water system

= Natural environment
» Environment Agency
« Health and Safety Executive

* We may suffer operational
failure n our waste water
operations which results In
darmage to the local ermvironment.
(Pnncipal Risk Ref 7)

We are an investment led industry, and our capital programme this year
was £555 millien, or £129 per connected property reflecting increased
investrment year on year in our woter and sewerage networks, ncluding
finding and fixing more leaks and reducing the number of supply
interruptions, improvernents to our woter and sewage treatment plants
and upgrades to our sewer network to reduce incidents of sewer
flooding We fund this nvestment programme from the profits we
generate, but also by borrowing money from the capital markets

Risks

We operate within @ complex legal and regulatory emvronmment as a woter
and sewerage service provider n England and Wales As a result we foce a
nurnber of risks iIncluding those associated with possible non-compliance
with ourlegal and regulatory fromework, failure to obtan support from
Ofwat for our business plan for 2015-2020 and failure to meet

Capital investment 1s added on to our asset base, called the RCV Qur
asset base also nses in ine with inflation each year The returns that we
generate for shareholders on that asset base are set by our economic
regulator, Ofwat, over five year planning cycles We canincrease these
returns by outperformance

the terms of our regulatory controct as set out in our ogreed business plan
for 2010-2015 We dlso face nsks assoacted with possible future changes
inlegislation which rnay resutt in our business plans becorring
unsustainable (Pincipal Risk Ref 3, 4 and 5 on poages 35-42)
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Overview
Industry and market

The water industry in England and Wales invests
rmore than £3 0 billon each year and employs over
27,000 people There are currently 10 water and
sewerage companies In England and Wales, as well
as a number of smaller water only companies

The privatisation of the industry n 1989 has led to
improvernents in customer service, better drinking
water and higher environmental standards
However, our sector still faces significant long term
challenges These include further iImprovernents to
operational and environmentat performonce,
enhancing secunty of supply, dealing with extremes
of dry and wet weather, managing the country’s
water resources more efficiently and in the

long term, sustainably financing the industry’s
infrastructure mvestment Our proposals for changes
in our industry are inforrming the debate about

meeting these challenges

How we're regulated

Severn Trent Water 1s a regulated business We work
within five year planning cycles, with the prices

we charge our custorners set at the beginning of
each cydle by our economic regulotor, Cfwat

These five year cycles are known os Asset
Management Plan (AMP) periods We have just
reached the end of the third year of AMPS

As well os being regulated by Ofwat, our
performance 1s monitored by

* the Dnnking Water Inspectorate, which makes
sure we comply with dnnking water quality
regulations, and

» the Environment Agency, which controls water
abstraction, niver pollution and flooding

We also work with the UK Government {including
the Departrment for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs and the Welsh Assembly Government) and
other agencies such as the Consumer Council for
Woater, Natural England and Natural Resources
Wales, to make sure we meet the highest customer
service and environmental standards, whilst offering
our customers the lowest prices

Key strengths

Severn Trent Water has a number of key strengths
and we work hard to maintain them In particular

= our average bills for water and sewerage
combined are the lowest in England and Wales,

- we continually work to improve our performance
and deliver cost and operational efficencies
aganst KPIs, which are aligned to our
long term strategy;

» we are committed to long term sustainability,
keeping in balance the needs of our customers,
the environment and our investars,

« our high standards and efficiencies keep our costs
low, whichin turn helps keep charges low for
custormers and generates progressive, sustainable
returns for our shareholders, and

« we have g dear strategy and business plan and a
strong management team

Progress against our long term objectives

Long term objectve Progress in the year
1 We will provide water + Ourdmnlng waoter qualty remaned high and we mantaned our compliance with the Drinking Water Inspectorate’s stondords,
thot s good to dank + Weinvested in mprovements to our water treatrment plants and developed Dnnking Woter Safety Plans.

2 We will ensure water 1s

atways there when you need it -

3 We will safely take your
waste water gway

4 We will provide excellent
customer serice

5 We wil have the lowest
possible charges

6 We will help you
If you struggle

7 We will protect our
water environment

8 We will protect the
wider environrment

9 We will make a positive
difference in the community

10 We will finance our
business sustanably

We continued to manage our water resources effectively and once again avoided any hosepipe bans

We reduced leckoge to its lowest ever level and cut the undertying nurnber of internuptions to supply

We increased woste water treatrments works complance and reduced properties on the ‘at-nsk’ of sewer flooding
register to its lowest level.

We rmade substantial nvestment to improve sewer systems.

We introduced a range of initiatives to improve customer service, resulting in increased customer satisfaction scores.
We achieved the best improverment in custorer expenence GCross our peer group as measured by Ofwat,

Our average combined water and sewerage bills rermained the lowest in Englond and Wales.
Our bills will remain the lowest in 2013/14

We helped 44,821 custormers who struggled to pay bills wo a range of flexible tanffs and schemes.
We donated £3 0 million to the Severn Trent Trust Fund.

we reduced pollution inadents year on year

We continued to take an industry lecding role in shaping the reguiatory regime and new legisiation.

Around one quarter of the electnaty needed by our UK regulated business was provided by our renewable
energy operations

+ We reduced our net greenhouse gas emissions dunng the year and are on target to beat our business plan target by 2015
+ We invested heawly into our network and treatrment planits, making @ substontial contribution to jobs and

the local community
We talked to schoals, other orgamisations ond sociol housing about water efficiency, contnbuting to one of the lowest
per capita consumptions in the country

We continued to ensure we were properly financed, with a strong balance sheet and investment grode credit rating
we continued to help shape the debate on future industry finanong and published our paper, ‘Changing course
through sustainable financing’
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L N

Custorner written
complaints per
1,000 properties

2013

419

(2012 -4 88)

Point of contact
resolution

2013

90.0%

(2012 - 89 4%}

B

Average water
and sewage bill

2012/13

£326

(2011712 - £311)

Averoge customer
cost per day

201213

89p

{2011/12 - 85p}

How we measure success

Severn Trent has published its own set of KPIs since
2007 In 2011/12 Ofwat adopted a set of KPIs thot it
required oll water companies to publish Sevem Trent
has adapted its own KPIs to meet this new
requiremnent These KPIs provide Ofwat with an
overall picture of performance against the
company’s commmitments made as part of the AMPS
price review QOur KPIs are set out on page 139

For the 2015-2020 penicd we have defined 10
long term objectives to meet customer and
stakeholder needs In Apnl 2013 we published a
consultation on our proposals for bills and services
for the penod (Your water Your choices)

This included consultation on a proposed new set
of measures by which our custormers, stakeholders,
and regulaters can see how much progress we
are making towards achieving these objectives
Following the consultation, we will be finalising the
measures and including them in our business plan
which we will submit to Ofwat In December 2013

Further details of our performance are provided
in our Annual Regulatory Performance Report,
which 1s avallable at www stwater co uk

Performance

At Severn Trent Water we focus on four key areas -
customers, people, process and finance (as we
explain on page 12) Having the right people with
the nght skills and using the nght processes, enables
us to offer high quality, low cost services to our
customers This in turn drives our finanaal results

The following pages describe what we achieved in
each of these areas during the year

Customers

For the fourth year running, our average combined
water and sewerage bills were the lowest in England
and Wales, at £326 Our bills wil rernain the lowest
1n2013/14

We aim to supply water that's good to dnnk and
always available Despite the drought at the start of
this year, we managed our water resources carefully
and once again avoided any hosepipe bans or other
lirmits on our customers’ water use The subsequent
heavy rain helped restore our reservoirs and aquifers
and our water resources are now in good shape

Our water quality rerained high and we maintaned
our compliance with the Dnnking Water

Image removed
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Inspectorate’s standords at 99 98% We delivered
water at the nght pressure and further improved our
overall performance on supply nterruptions
However our company KPI (performance on
Interruptions) was not as good as last year owing to
a single burst trunk main which affected numerous
custormers We remain focused on cutting supply
interruptions, with further investment planning to
improve aur performance

We continue to invest to ensure we provide the best
water quality and resitlence To achieve this we have
numerous projects, Including renewing nearly

300 krn of water rmains, Improving resiience n
South Gloucestershire, and refurbishing 5 km of

the Derwent Valley aqueduct We're also renewing
sections of hugh nsk trunk mains, to minimise the risk
of interruptions to supply Other significant projects
include new treatment plants in Shropshire,
Warwickshire, Nottnghomshire and Derbyshire,

to address cotchment quality 1ssues

We made further pregress with our catchment
management programme dunng the year

Thus involves encouraging farmers and other large
land users to reduce their impact on water
resources The drought and wet weather made it
a difficult year for farmers, but therr interest n
catchment management remains high Durng the
year, we completed around 150 water quality
investigations ansing from Drinking Water Safety
Plans, and hit our target for catchment
management iNvestigations under the EA's
National Environment Programme, receving a
positive response from the EA

One 1ssue assoclated with wet weather is an
increasing problem with metaldehyde, a pesticide
used to control slugs and snails We tock additional
action from late summer, but could not prevent a
number of higher pesticide results in the autumn
We continue to take a leading role nationally in
seeking an industry solution to metaldehyde

The intense rain in 2012 led to on increase in the
number of nternal sewer flooding repeat incidents
Last year was the second wettest year on record
and parts of our region suffered severe flooding
Sorne of our customers experienced fleoding during
the year and we did everything we could to help the
local authorties and the EA respond, for example
by providing large pumps to protect roads and
properties adjacent to rvers

We are investing significant amounts in our
waste water services to improve the service to
our custorners Further details of the investrment
can be found on poges 22 and 23

Custorner experience

We work hard to provide our customers with a
service experience that 1s consistenitly reassunng
and reliable, whilst doing whatever we con to
personalise the way in which we deal with each
indmdual customer query

We aspire to be an orgamisation that 1s designed
around tts customers, not Just its network. We
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‘We’re pleased to have
demonstrated the best
improvement in SIM
performance across our
peer group.’

know that customer expectotions continue to be
influenced by the vast nurmber of brands, products
and technologles that they interact with 1t's
therefore essential for us to look at our processes,
policies and general ways of working through a
customer lens and not an operational lens We
started this cultural journey two years ago when
we launched our Customer Expenence Programme
By engaging every Severn Trent colleague in the
practical pursuit of the best possible expernence for
our customers, we've succeeded in achieving a very
real iImprovernent across our key indicators of
customer satisfaction

We're proud of what we've achieved - but we won't
stop until our customers consider us to be one of the
very best custorner service providers in the industry
We are able to benchmork our performance agamnst
that of our peer group via Ofwat’s ndependent SIM

Ofwat's SIM measures our customers’ experence
of dealing wath us The SIM score has two elements
quantitative, based on the number of customers
that have to contact us, and qualitative, which
assesses our service quality when they do

We have consistently receved good quantitative
scores, but in the past, our quality of service has
fallen short. In the last 12 months, we have focused
on improving the areas our customers say are
important to them, namely

= resolving therr issues or quenes at first point

of contact,
« being availlable to them when they want us, and
- keeping them informed every step of the way

To do this, we created a cross company group to
look at how we could dnve improvemenit i our
processes, response tirmes and simplify the language
we use to communicate with our customers

This helped us improve both elements of our SIM
score in 2012/13

We're pleased to have demonstrated the best
improvernent in SIM performance across our peer
group, but we're not yet where we want to be from
a benchmark perspective And so the journey
towards the best possible custorner expenence
continues with a relentless focus on putting our
customers at the heart of how we operate

Our oice of the customer tool gives us direct
feedback from customers at the end of a call or
when we've finished doing something for themn

We get around 12,000 responses a month
This valuable feedback helps us improve our

processes and how we deal with customers
when they feel they need us most

We have maintained first pomnt of contact resolution
at around 80% Our Customer Adwvisors are
consistently recenving satisfaction scores in the 90s
and, as a result, our complaints volume continues
to decline at a very healthy rate We also further
reduced written complaints, which were down 14%

One of the Important points of contact with
customers 1s when they receve a bill from us
We've continued to improve our bill design to
make therm easier to understand, and to pass on
useful information, such as the different ways
custorners can get in touch with us We will also be
introducing e-billing for custorners who prefer it

Mancging debt

Some customers cheose not to pay and some
customers genuinely struggle to pay Intine with
our commuitment to fair and affordable bills for all,
we operate robust processes to influence the
behawviours of those who choose not to pay,
which in turn controls our healthy debt levels

For our custormers who truly struggle to pay,

we offer a range cf flexible tanffs and schemes
These can involve matching the customer’s
payrnents, capping bills for people with low incomes
who have to use lorge amounts of water for medical
or farnily reasons, or allowing customers to make
payments directly from therr benefits In2012/13,
we helped a tota! of 44,821 customers this way

The Severn Trent Trust Fund offers an alternatve
avenue of support and has helped many

customers over the years to fund theirr water

bills Dunng the year we donated £3 0 million to

the Severn Trent Trust Fund to enable the charity to
support our customers who have difficulty in paying
therr water bills However, a customer who struggles
with their water bill is Lkely to struggle with other
household bills We wish to provide these customers
with more meaningful support and have therefore
entered into a partnership with the Qitizens Advice
Bureau which has the skills to help customers
address their financial issues at a deeper level

We hope in this way to help our most financially
vulnerable custormers to manage and avoid
household debts more effectively in the future

Engaging with our customers

One of the significant differences between the
process for PR14 and the previous price review s the
increased role for customers and other stakeholders
in helping us to formulate and challenge our plan

The Water Forum 1s our customer challenge group
for PR14 It includes representatives from custorners,
our erwironmental regulators and local authonties,
ond hos an independent charr, Dame Yve Buckland,
who 15 also national charr of the Consumer Counal
for Water

See our interview with Dome Yve Buckland, charr of the
COW at www sevemtrent.com/ybwaterforum
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Today...

We’re improving our
flood defences in
Gloucestershire

Since 2007, we've iInvested over £38 0 million across
Gloucestershire to ensure we ore better able to cope with
extrerne weather

To ensure our sewers In Gloucester can cope with heavy
ranfolt we have laid over 1 km of new sewers We've protected
our sewage purmping station at Longlevens with underground
storoge tanks and storm water pumping and at our

Mythe Water Treatment Warks we've installed flood
protecuon barners To ensure we always have a back-up
supply we've built pipelines from our other water

treatment works.
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Tomorrow...

We’re continuing to
invest across our region

Replaang our largest covered reservoir gt Ambergate,
Derbyshire and replacing over 7 krn of sewers in Newark,
Nottinghamshire are just two of our major investment
schermes over the next five years We wil invest over

£58 0 million on these two projects to ensure we continue
to provide quality water and prevent sewer flooding
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The role of the Water Forum is ta ensure that
custormer and other stakeholders’ views are
understood and represented by Severn Trent
Water when we submit our plans to Ofwat in
December 2013

Ofwat will assess our plan ogainst four cntena
outcomes, costs, nsk and reward, and affordability
and financeability Our plan will then be categorised
as ‘enhanced’, ‘standard’ or ‘resubrmission’

This will determine the level of scrutiny and
challenge of our plan and the financial incentves
avalable The Water Forurn reports on the quality
of our customer engagement, and how well our
business plan reflects custormer views and prionties
It will form a key nput to Ofwat’s assessment aganst
the outcomes crteno

We also have a broader engagement pregramme
and have run workshops on topics including
managing cimate change, water and waste water
tssues, and customer service A wide range of
stakeholders attended these sessions We also
camed out a major customer survey, to understand
their willingness to pay for improvements we could
delver as part of our plan

In Aprit 2013, we ssued another consultation paper,
“Your water Your choices’, which set out our thinking
on what might happen to customer bills, investment
and investor returns over the next five years This will
gwe us further clarity on our stakeholders’ views

People

We aim to have people with the nght skills and
approach to work, personal development and
custorner focus To drive the behaviours we think are
important, we have a Code of Conduct (Doing the
nght thing - The Severn Trent way) that applies
across the group and explains our approach to
1ssues ranging from health ond safety, to ethics and
henesty, ond to delvenng excellent customer service

Qur Code of Conduct explains who we are, what we
stand for and how we work, it dlso tells our
customers and business partners that they canrely
onus Further details are provided in the Governance
report on page 50

A sofe and healthy workforce

Protecting the health and safety of our customers,
people and contractors is our number one prionty
We were delighted to reduce lost time maidents
once again, making 2012/13 our safest year yet.

Qur MindSafety™ traiming programme contnbuted
to this improvernent It teaches our people about
different states of awareness, so they understand
how they should work and can take responstbility
for ther own safety We have cooches around the
business to renforce the MindSafety™ approach
and will be running refresher programmes

Other initiatives to enhance safety during the
year induded improving our nsk assessments and
making sure that our people understand their roles
and responsibilities

‘We were delighted to
reduce lost time incidents
once again, making 2012/13
our safest year yet.’

One area that has concerned us 15 an Increase in
road traffic accdents Whilst our staff didn’t cause
these accidents, we are looking at ways to reduce
the nsk by muinimising the miles they travel and
providing traing on safe and effective drving and
preventative actions

As well as rasing safety standards, we aim to be
more proactive with our people’s health and
well-being In 2012/13, we appointed a new
occupational health provider We're legally required
to monitor the health of sorme employees, for
example If they're exposed to notse or vibration,

or work in confined spaces Cur new occupational
hedlth provider has a mobile unit, which visits sites
to monitor our people This saves ttme and provides
a fnendler ervironrment than an off-site facility

We're also working with a new provider to help
employees with musculoskeletal problems

Our partner looks at job design and how we

can make changes to help people back to work
We are increasingly looking to take action hefore
problems arise

Enguging our people

Our annuol employee survey once again showed
that our people are positive about working for us
Our overall Engagement Index rose to 79%, ahead
of our target of 75% and the industry benchmark of
74% The survey response rate also increased, a sign
thot our people know that it’s important to us that
they give therr feedbock and that we listen

The most improved area was In people believing we
are committed to customer senice Our score for
cormmitment to custormers rose from 71% to 83%

A number of factors were behind the improved
survey results Developing our managers has

made thern more willing to engage with therr
teams and we have also put effort inte making sure
managers understand our business geals and can
communicate themn to their teams Our continuous
improvement programme also contributed,

by gving our people the tools and techniques to
solve problems they foce at work.

Previous employee surveys showed that our pecple
wanted to see more of our executve teamn and

to find out how they were leading the business
This year, we ran a rolling programme where
Executive Committee members went out to meet
people across the business More than 1,000 of our
people attended these meetings, enabling them to
ask any question they wanted The feedback has
been positive and our executives have glso learned
where we need to comrmunicate better
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Developing our pecple

Every year, we invest significant amounts m people
development (£3 9 millionin 2012/13} This year,
we piloted a ‘Leading for Performance’ development
programime In our waste water business The am is
to have leaders who can inspire and engage our
people ond lead them through change - an area
where we know we can do better The programme
hetps our leaders to understand themselves and to
learn how to coach others as well as build high
performing teams After positive results, we're now
rolling out the programme across all of our
operational leadership

We have many other leadership programmes, which
together form our ‘Line Manager Journey’ They
make sure thot as people move into management,
they have the skills to lead effectively For example,
to drive our performance culture, we want all our
employees to have a performance discussion with
therr manager We run programmes for managers
at all levels, so they understand the process and can
have those sometirmes difficult conversations

We'll soon be lounching an inittative for necrly 1,400
people in Customer Relations, called the Great People
Programme Managers will learn about creating a
customer orientated culture and coaching people In
customer service skills Frontline adwisors will becorme
better at gving customers a positive and memorable
expenence when they get in touch with us

As part of our talent review process, we ploted new
development centres this year These took people
dentified as prornotable and ossessed their
strengths and development needs Each person
came out with an in depth development plan

In a changing world, we need leaders with a breadth
of experience who can nse to different challenges
We therefore reintroduced our graduate
progromme, taking on nine high calibre peaple

In 2013714, we plan to increase this to 20 and we're
also considenng introducing o technical graduate
scheme, with progression to chartered engineering

Finding people with the nght skills i1s a challenge
across the industry, so we further expanded our
apprenticeship scheme We now have 82
apprentices at different stages of development,
including 22 we recruted n Septermber 2012

for technical traming, induding two for a new
environmental conservation apprenticeship
Almost all our apprentices move on to permanent
jobs withus

image removed
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Through a plot programme called ‘Employee
Ownership of Skills’, the UK Government has asked
employers to set out how we might use public funds
alongside our own investrment to improve the skills
we currently have in the industry, dentify the skills
we'll need in the future and where we should iInvest.

We're also continuing to support projects in the
Midlands to encourage young people to study
sclence, technology, engineening and maths (STEM)
subjects in order to be able to take up engineenng
ond techrucol careers In the future

Attracting a diverse workforce

Our goal s to attract a diverse range of talent, with
a balance of gender and ethnicity that reflects

the market we operate in At the moment, our
workforce 15 sightly more diverse than the sector
average, with more female ernployees and people
frorn black, Asian and ethnic minority groups

We have a diversity working group, with members
from across the business Its current focus is on
gender diversity in leadership roles We are also
starting to get more insight Into ethric diversity

It's important that we attract the broadest range
of candidates when we recruit, so we track our
attraction rates across different genders and
ethnic backgrounds We have also refreshed our
careers website, to make it appeal to a wider range
of people

Helping our people to manage therr finances

In April 2013, we auto enrolled more than 1,000
people into our pension scheme We believe that
pensicns are important and we're committed to
providing a competitive scheme

As many of our people told us that they didn't
understand pensions, we set up o financial
education programme which 1s now part of our
ongoing traring So far, 1,200 employees have
attended a session to learn about pensions, debt,
mortgages, savings and other financial matters

Process

To deliver great service to our customers, we look to
continuously improve our processes and technology

Our approach to continuous Improvement s called
‘Safer Better Faster’ It helps our people to find ways
to do things better, so we can improve our service
We continue to invest, Induding bullding ond training
our team of expert practitioners, who work with
colteagues to help themn use ‘Safer Better Faster
techriques on o daly bosis
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Dunng the year, we exploted our previous
investment in SAP and deskiop technotogies, and
used our ‘Safer Better Faster’ approach to improve
our business processes For example, we introduced
better processes in solving bursts on private
properties, fiing stop top problems and gving our
customers a better service We implemented
software to allow work crews to access maps ond
asset data on therr laptops, so they can pinpoint
leaks and blockages more efficiently We're also
increasing the use of remote monitonng to improve
performance across our networks This helps us to
detect leaks and prevent supply interruptions,
allowing us to respond to problerns before
customners are affected

One of our biggest challenges was improving how
we engage with our customers at our call centres
During the year we made a strategic investment in
telephony systems, to improve our customers’
experience when they call us The new systemn links
to our other back office systerns, giving our people
better information te resolve customer 1ssues dunng
the call

By investing in our people and technology, we've
reduced to almost zero the number of customers
who receive an engaged tone Mare customers can
speak to someone quickly, so fewer are hanging up
because we've kept them waiting

Using text messages, our new website and other
technologtes has helped us keep our customers
inforrned about what we're doing Live update maps
on our website tell customers what’s going onin
therr area and we're also making more use of
Twitter We want customers to contact us in the
way that’s best for them, and around one quarter

of all contacts are now through our website, where
customers can pay bills and update their detalls

We increased the resilience of our technolocgy,

by investing in new data centres We also made
sigruficant investrment in business modelling
software, which will allow us to model different
planning scenarios for the next five years reflecting
the input we have receved from our PR14 custormer
focus group

We are improving the efficiency of our procurement,
We're working with cur supply chain to get better
value for money, induding using our SAP system to
give us more visibility of what we buy and where

Dunng the year, we and our One Supply Chain
framework partners continued to deliver greater
efficencies in our capital programme Our strategic
relationships with our One Supply Chain partners
help us to become more INnovative as we work
together, for exampte by cansolidating buying
throughout the supply chain

We want to work with responsible suppliers, so
we've developed guidelines and standards that we
expect suppliers to meet to ensure they are aligned
to our philosophy of doing the night thing and our
underlying policies These cover key areas of
corporate responsibiity, such as our suppliers'
approach to health and safety, anti brbery and
anti corruption, and environmentol performance
For more detalls on ‘Doing the nght thing -

The Severn Trent way’ see page 50

A number of new technologies went tve in our
waste water operations this year In order to drive
efficiency we are explorting technology innovation ot
places such as Ashbourne where we have installed
the UK's first full scale HYBACS plant HYBACS s o
treatment technology that allows us to process
higher volumes, while using less energy In
Birmingham we have installed the UK’s first
Annamox plant to treat high concentrations of
ammonta Anaerobic ammonurm oxidation
intensifies the sewage treatment process, so we can
use fewer and smaller assets [n Nottingharm we are
installing one of the UK's first struvite recovery plants
to reclairm phosphate so that we can sellit on

We have also been working with a partner which
provides ar compressors that can reduce electricity
consumption by around 20% These play an
important part in sewage treatment More broadly,
we work extensively with other organisations to
develop new processes and have more than 30
academic or industrial research partners

Environment

Delivering our environmental obligations has a real
impact on our customers and the communities in
which they live and work.

Managing waste water

We achieved good improvernents in our
environmental perforrmance in waste water

The number of reported pellution ncidents fell
frorm 458 in the previous year to 376, a reduction
of 18% While we are one of the industry leaders
at preventing the most serious pollution inaidents,
we can still improve in other less senous categornies
We are Investing in training, working on faster
response times and using technology to try to
predict where pollutions might occur

Severn Trent has around 1,000 sewage tregtment
works Of these, only 0 85% folled to reach therr
compliance limits (2012 2 549%), our best ever
performance This was down to cur improvernent
group, which has analysed the root causes of falure
and enabled us to systematically elirminate those
problems, as well as the ongoing benefits of our

Investrment programme and more remote
rmomtonng of our sewage treatment process

Image removed




Regulated Severn Trent Water

This year has seen us reach halfway on our

£200 millilon major projects prograrmme of work.
Upgrades are under way to our key sewage
treatment works serving Nottingham, Leicester,
Worksop, Stoke, Coventry, Burton-upon-Trent and
Telford Elsewhere this year we have invested almost
£204 million to maintain service to our customers
and undertaken key environmental improvernents
to our nvers Looking forward, we're investing
sigrificantly in improving river water quality and
have carried out a pilot study with the EA on how to
achieve zero pollutions ond breaches of consent

Sewer systems are pnmanly designed to handle
waste water and on occasions can be overwhelmed
dunng heavy rain events

Sewer floodng is one of the worst service failures
that can happen to a customer During the year we
have made improvements to protect 158 properties
from internal floeding and 70 external areas
including substantial Investment to iImiprove sewer
systems in Leamington Spa and Gloucester

The nurmber of homes on the nsk of sewer flooding
register 15 now at 1ts lowest ever level We expect

to be ahead of our target ot the end of this
regulatory penod

We have a proactive programme to clean and
repair our sewer network which helps to prevent
blockages, pollutions, flooding and collapses of
our sewerage systern

This was our first full year of managing the

37,000 km of private drains and sewers that
transferred to us on 1 October 2011 While this
increased the number of blockages we hod to
deol with, overall we saw a lower level of reactive
work than we expected We are carrying cut mare
inspections and condition/CCTV surveys of these
assets, so we can learn more about therm and
have better Informed plans for the future

Deploying water resources wisely

Sevemn Trent 1s the only company to target a
sgnificant reduction n leakage during AMPS

We made further good progress, cutting leakage
to its lowest ever level ot 441 MU/d This comipares
with 464 MI/d last year and our internal target of
465 Ml/d Our performance benefited from our
ongoing Investment programme and the relatrvely
rmild weather

Managing water resources effectvely also means
helping our customers to reduce the amount they
use We have a sizeable outreach programme with
schools and other organisations, to teach people
about using less water We also distnbute water
efficient devices and have industry legding nitiatives
with social housing All of these contribute to one of
the lowest per capita consumptions in the country
The overall water saving this year as a result of these
measures 1s 3 26 MU/d, which has contnbuted to the
continued reduction in our per capita consumption
Last year our customers used an average of

121 litres per person per day
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‘We remain at the forefront
of the industry’s debate
about its future.’

Protecting biodiversity

Severn Trent has a role i protecting and enhancing
biodersity at our sites or sites affected by our
activities We manage 12 public access sites where
we work dlongside volunteers and in partnership
with organisations to ensure the long term
biodiversity value of the sites, whilst engaging with
our customers Across our region we also own or
partly manage 37 sites of special scentific interest,
where we work with our regulators, tenants and
others to safeguard them

Finance

We am to finance the cormpany in an efficent and
sustainable way, which helps to keep customer bills
low by keeping our financing costs low Our funding
comes from payment of custormner bills, 1ssuing debt
on the capital markets and by shareholders retaning
equity In the business We have an investment grade
credit rating, with a stable outlook. We also look to
the long terrn sustainability of our financing and
dunng the year we published some further thoughts
in 'Changing course through sustainable financing’,
part of our continuing Changing course senes of
thought papers on the future of cur industry

More information about our financial performance
and our debt 1ssuance during the year con be found
in the Finoncial review on pages 35 to 38

Outlook

We remain focused on achieving sustainable
growth, by concentrating on our customers, people,
process and finance We aim to deliver the benefits
of our investrment programmes and to continuously
improve the way we work, to raise standards and
dnve efficency Giving our custormers an even better
service Is an impertant part of this

Our operating envionment will change as the

UK Government passes the Water Bill and Ofwat
completes its preparations for PR14 We remain at
the forefront of the industry’s debate about its future
and will continue to help shape the legislation and
regulation as it progresses
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Severn Trent Services

Severn Trent Services Is one of the world’s leading suppliers of water and
waste water treatment solutions We are known for innovation, reliability,
quality services and leadership in cur chosen markets

Key strategic intentions...
Severn Trent Services has six key strategic intentions,

which define our strategy and set out how we
intend to achieve our objectives

1 Engaged employees with the night skills
to deliver

2 Continuously improve health, sofety,
employee well-being and environmental
performance

3 Determine and deliver what
customers value

4 Develop new markets and products
through geographic expansion, end user
focus, technology innovation and strategic
partnerships

5 Continue to buld strong and
respected brands

6 Continuously improve and optimise our
products, processes and organisational
capabilities to enhance customer value and
Improve returns to our investors

Where we operate

Severn Trent Services is our main non-regultated
business It has twe business streams -

Water Purification and Operating Services
Water Purification 1s organised around three
regions - the Amenicas, Asia Paafic and Ching,
Europe, the Middle East and Afnca Operating
Services works for customners in the US, UK,
Ireland ond Italy

Image remowved

~delivered through our areas of focus

Severn Trent Services 1s one of the world's leading
water and waste water businesses To achieve our
strategy we focus on

Woater Purification (Products)

Municipal, commercial, industnal and marine
applications require water treatment technologies to
meet ther disinfection, filtration and process needs
The Water Punfication group’s portfolio of water
products are used around the world in support of
these applications

More on Water Punfication on page 29

Operating Services

Operating Services delivers safe dnnking water and
waste water treatment services It s responsible for
operating more than 900 treatment facilities across
its markets

Mare on Operating Services on page 30

Key focts

Image
removed

Orderbook

f49.6m

os at 31 March 2013

Image
removed

Employees

2,339

asat 31 March 2013

Turmover

£328.5m

{2012 £3323m)

Profit™

£12.7m

(2012 £180m)
*Before interest, tax and
excepbional tems.
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Today...

We completed the
first retail switch

Severn Trent Costain provides water and waste water
rmanagement senaices in the UX to commeraal and industnal
users, delvenng water strategies to improve efficiencies,
reduce costs, mitigate nsk and manage complance

In October 2012, we announced First Mitk as the first business
customer to switch water supplier We supply, manage and
moniter over 600 millon litres of water per year across six
First Milk sites, and ore now working with First Milk to help
them achieve therr objectwes for water manogerment

“Being able to get a closer handle on our water usage 1s not
Just beneficial to our business, but to any business We believe
that this contract with Severn Trent Costan will belp us in our
quest to meet sorme of the sustanability torgets, and help
prepare us for some of the short and long term challenges
facing our industry ”

Paul Rowe, First Milk Group Projects Director
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Tomorrow...

We’re well placed to
take a leading role

As the UK water supply market undergoes significant change,
we are taking a leading role With water services licences

for Scatland, England and Wales, we can offer mult-sited
businesses the benefits and synergies of a single

supplier opprooch

We will continue to work in partnership with high volume
business users to manage the increasing challenges
presented by chmate chonge ond extrenmne weather such
as flooding, scarcity, nsing costs and increasing regulation
We will develop innovative water strategies which deliver
sustanabiity, reduce costs and fulfil corporate social
responsibility ogendas to meet the increasing demands
frorm consumers and stakeholders to preserve and protect
o valuable resource

Image removed
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Non-requlated

Our business model

Severn Trent Services

Our business is evelving from a traditional
base of municipal water and waste water

Providing Operating Services
and Water Purfication Products to:

to one where we operate In a variety

of municipal, Industrial and commercial
sectors for the delivery of both products
and services.

The market for water and waste water products
and services Is significant, with good prospects
for long term sales and profit growth due to
fundamental drivers water scarcity, population
growth, cimate change and more stringent
regulatory requirements

Our strategy Is to introduce new technologies into
existing markets, adapting existing technolegy (for
example cur BALPURE® ballast water technology) to
fit new market opportunities, as well as growing our
Operating Services business in the US and Europe
where we operate more than 500 facilities and have
over £190 million revenue

We target a return on caprtal n excess of the
regulated water business, commonly above 10%

Key to our senvices

® Filtration
Areqgs where STS offers filtration, separation and
adsorption products/services for all or part of
the process cycle

@ Disinfection
Areas where STS offers disinfection and selated
instrumentation products/services for all or part
of the process cycle

(® Operoting Services
Areas of the process cycle where STS offers
controct operations

Other non-regulated businesses
Renewable energy in the UK

As a group, we face an increasing need for energy due to
ever tightening standards We hove three main reasons
for developing our own energy, to

« reduce our reliance on electnarty from the natienal gnd,
+ reduce our carbon ermissions, and
+ bmit our impact on the ervironrment.

Areds of focus

Sewage gas combined heat and power (CHP) - We have
55 engines on 35 sites preducing 40 MW of power
Trade waste - We have four Sewage Treatrnent Works
providing permanent trade waste storage and dosing
focilibes creating methane gas

Energy from crops - Our ‘energy crop’ anaerobic
digestion plant next to the Stoke Bardolph Sewage
Treatment Works in Nottinghamishire

Hydro - We have six hydro turbines installed at four sites
producing oround 1 7 MW

Large wind turbines - We airn to generate 22 GWh

of electncity from four large wind turbines in 2015

Where we invest and where we make our returns
We are investing across the above five areas of focus
with £8 75 millicn invested in 2012/13 We make direct
returns on our renewable energy ackvities, and benefit
from cost saving across the group

s

ard

s -
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Municipal Water

Treatment

Severn Trent Services provides filtration, disinfection
and process solution technologies for various
murvcipal water treatment applications

In additron, we provide contract operations and
rmaintenance for municipal water treatment
facilities In the US, UK, Treland and Ttaly

Disinfection ® ®

Product.
Advance™, AQUAWARD®, Capital Controls®, Chlor-a-vac®,
Chioromatic™, ClorTec®, MicroDynarmcs®, UltraDynarmics®

Filtrction ® ®

Product.

Bayoxide® E33, Omni-SORB™, SORB 07™/09™/338,
TETRA® DeepBed™, TETRApHIX®, UAT™, TETRA DeNite®,
Hrggins Loap™, TETRA FlumneFlow®, TETRA® LP Blocks™

Services

Waste Water Faality Operations & Maintenance {O&M),

Water System Treatment & Drstnbution, Asset & Capitol
Management, Design & Build, Integrated Water Sernces
Management, Leakage Detection & Reduction, Legronella Control,
Network Reparr, Maintenance & Renewal, Project Finance
Arrongemnents, Water Quality Sampling, Assessment & Rectification,
‘Water Regulations Complionce

Risks
(Where these are currently considered Principal Risks,
further details are provided on pages 39-42)

* We may be unable to collect and store sufficient water to
meet custormer demand,

* Hazardous processes may result in our people being iInjured
(Pnnapal Resk Ref 6)

* Regulatory or poltical change may lead to decreased
demand for our services
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Municipal Waste
Water Treatment

Severn Trent Services provides filtration, disinfection

and process solution technologies for varous
municipal waste water treatment applications

In addition, we provide contract operations and
matntenance for municipal waste water treatment

facilities in the US, UK, Ireland and Italy

Primary Treatment @

Secondary/Biological Treatment ® ®

Product.
TETRA® SAF, Amphidrome, TETRA® ColOX

Tertiary/Advanced Treatment @ ©

Product.

TETRA® DeepBed™, TETRA® Denite®, TETRA® NSAF, TETRA®

Shortcut-NRT™, TETRA® SNAP-T®

Final Treatment UV/Chlor Disinfection ® ®

Product.

Capital Controls®, ClorTec®, MicroDyriamics®, MicroChem®

Services:

Waste Water Facility Operations & Maintenance (0&M), Waste Water

System Treatment & Collection, Asset & Copral Management,
Design & Build, Industnal Pre-treatrment, Network Repair,
Maintenance & Renewal, Project Finonce Armangaments,

Sludge Treatment & Disposal

Risks

+ Foilure of products or treatment processes may resuit in
environmental domage ond regulatory non-compliance

(Pnncipal Risk Ref 5)

+ Regulatory or political change may lead to decreased

demand for our services.

+ Hozardous processes may resutt in our people beng injured.

(Prncipal Risk Ref 6)
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Industriat

Severn Trent Services offers a range
of distnfection, filtration and
process solutions for a suite of
industnal water and waste water
applications In addition, we
provide design, bulld and contract
operations for water and waste
water treatment faciities for o
vanety of industrial segments in
the US, UK, Treland and Italy, and
supply retail water to businesses
throughout the UK

Process Water @ @

Product,

Capital Controls®, ClorTec®, EST™,
MicroDynarmics®, TETRA® DeepBed™, TETRA®
Higgins Loop™, UAT™, UltraDynarmes®,
MicroChemn'

CoolngWatereo® ®

Product.

Capital Controls®, ClorTec®, EST™,
MJcrolznumu:s@, SANILEC®, SEACLOR®,
TETRA® DeepBed™, TETRA® Higgins Loop™,
UAT™, UltraDynamics®, MicroChemn®

Services:

Severn Trent Senvices provides a full range of
expertise from the indmdual aspects of water/
waste water ytility management to the
prenision of Integrated water/waste water
services for a vanety of cients, including:

« Utilities

+ Public Sector

= Estates and Foaliies Monogement

- UKMoD

= Developers

+ Domestic Customers

+ Business Retail Customers

Risks

» Foilure of products or treatment
processes may result in imjury to people,
environmental domage ond regulatory
non-comphance (Pincipal Risk Ref S
and 6}

* Drsruption in the globat supply chain
may impact our ability to meet
custormer needs.

* We may be unable to take advantoge
of the opening of the LK market to
competition {Prncipal Risk Ref 2)

Image
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Marine

Severn Trent Services offers a
range of disinfection, filtration
and process solutions for manne
and offshore water and waste
water applications

Electrochlorination ®

Product
SANILEC®, SEACLOR®

Desalination @ ®

Product.
SANILEC®, SEACLOR®, UAT™, UltraDynarrucs®

Marine Sewerage @ @

Product.

MARINER OMNIPURE® Senes M55,
CGMNIPURE™ & OMNIPURE™ Senes 55,
SANILEC®, SEACLOR®, UAT ™, UltraDynarmics®

Ballast Water Treatment ® ®

Product.
BALPURE®

Risks

= The Intellectual Property in our key
products may be used by competitors.

* Regulatory change may lead to
decreased demand for our products,

* New products may be introduced to the
market leading to Increased competibion
for our products and services.

Qur websites

www.severmntrentservices com
www.severntrentdenorg com
www.severntrentcostain com
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Non-regulated

Overview

Industry and market

The market for water and waste water products and
services 1s large with substantial long term prospects
for growth in the areas we serve That s because the
dnvers of the water and waoste water business
water scaraity; population growth, cimate change,
and more stringent regulatory requirements

remain strong

Our business

Severn Trent Services provides woter and woste
water treatment products and operating services to
ubilites, municipalities and commercial customers N
selected markets around the world We focus on the
growth markets and geographies where our
products and services meet the significant needs of
our customers

We have two prnincipal bustness streams, Water
Purification {Products) and Operating Services, which
are described under our areas of focus on page 24
Operating Services includes Severn Trent Costain,
which provides cormplete business water and waste
water management, from source to disposdl, for
high volurme commercial and industnal water users
in England, Wales and Scotland

Progress against our key strategic intentions
Key strotegr: ntention Progress in the year

We also have a sector leading renewable energy
operation, which provides electriaity to our UK
regulated business, Severn Trent Water, with excess
power supplied to the national gnd

Key strengths

Qur non-regulated operations have the following
key strengths

+ our business has a clear strategy for growth, which
focuses on the growing global demand for clean
water and safe, efficient waste water treatment,

+ we provide operating services to an INcreasing
number of utilities, municipalities and commercial
customers In targeted countnes, and

+ we are a leader in the design, production and sale
of water punficotion products in growth markets
such as disinfection, filtration, edsorption and
marine/offshore waste water treatments

How we measure success

Severn Trent Services establishes an annual sute
of performance targets (KPIs} which are used to
measure and guide the business throughout the
year KPIs are measured and reported monthly to
all employees and are aligned with the delivery of
our long term strategic plan which 1s set out in our
Key Strategic Intentions {KSis) below

1 Engaged employees with the = Our quarterly surveys show employee engagement ahead of target and benchmarks for similar businesses

nght skills to delwer

2 Continuously improve health, = We delivered strong health and safety performance, with a further reduction in lost trme inadents
safety, employee well-beingand - We won awards that recognised our commitment to protecting the environment.

environmental performance

3 Deterrmnine and deliver what + We undertook a ‘fit for purpose’ review of all our products and services across Severn Trent Services and

custormers value

disposed of our analybical and metering services operations so we could focus on our key actrvities,

= Weimplemented a new comprehensve voice of custorner process across all parts of Severn Trent Services
« We developed new communication tools with exssting customers which have contnbuted to mproved

contract retention rates,
4 Develop new markets and *+ We strengthened our Severn Trent De Nora business by acquinng electrochlonnation technologies and
products through geographuc establishing an opportunity for future growth in Japan
expansion, end user focus, « We formed a new subsidiary, Severn Trent Costain, to compete for commercial and business customers
technology innovation ond n the UK
strategic partnerships « Werecently agreed to acquire service contracts with 10 muricipalities and three private entities in
Califorria providing us with a stronger base for growth in the Western US
5 Continue to build strong and + We continued to invest In developing BALPURE® and a number of other water punfication products
respected brands + Severn Trent Services has a senes of electrochlennation products for ballast water, waste water and

dnnking water applications, out of which our established ClorTec® ine has a strong reputation
as the leading global technology with a proven track record of over 3,000 globat installations since 1995
+ Severn Trent De Nora has established an excellent reputation and brand name across the globe and
specifically in the Middle East by occupying a strong teadership position in this region
+ Welaunched new foreign longuage websites in Spanish, Italian and Chinese wathin
www severntrentservices com to provide native language product and service information for
key intemnational markets

6 Continuously improve and + Water Punfication reorgomised on a regional basis, to get closer to its custormers
optirmuse our products, processes  « We introduced the Severn Trent group’s ‘Safer Better Faster’ approach to continuous improverment.

and organisational capabilities to
enhance customer value and
Improve returns to our investors




Non-regulated

Performance

Severn Trent Services delivered an encouraging
performance, despite continuing challenging
conditions in scme of its markets In 2012/13,
revenue was £328 5 million, while profit before
interest tax and exceptional tems (PBIT) was
£12 7 milion

Dunng the year, we conducted a thorough review of
Severn Trent Services’ products and service portfolio,
Including a fit for purpose’ analysis of the structure
of each business and our shared services In
addrtion, we took action to strengthen our focus on
the core water and waste water markets through
the dvestiture of our analytical services and
metering services operations in the UK. The disposal
of analytical services also satisfied an undertoking
made to Ofwat who hove now closed the Section 26
investigation nto this market. Excluding the impact
of acquisitions, exchange moverments and these
disposals, revenue grew by 5 3% but underlying PBIT
decreased by 3 5%, ofter increased investment in
business development, which was £1 6 milion
higher at £3 6 million Reported revenue fell by 1 1%,
while reported PBIT fell by 29 4%, mainly due to the
loss of earnings on disposal from the metenng and
analytical services business

Image removed
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Water Purification (Products)

Water Purification grew in emerging markets such
as Asia Pacific and the Middle East & North Africa,
while perforrnance in North Amenca and Europe
was impacted due to difficult economac conditions
ond limited customer investment in water and
waste water projects

Disinfection and filtration product demand
increased due to stringent effluent standards in
China and dermand for electrochlonnation products
In offshore applications was high In Latin America
(Brozil} and Asia Pacific (Mataysia) due to ncreased
oll and gas exploration

To support and expard on this demand, a small
acquisition was made in the Japanese market -
Chlorine Engineers’ CECHLO seawater and brine
electrochlorination systems

In the manne market, the International Maritirme
Organisation {IMO) has yet to ratify baltast woter
treatment standards However, our BALPURE®
ballast water treatment line still delivered growth
and we have a pipeline of new projects We continue
to invest m BALPURE®, so it has a broader reach
across the marketplace This includes medifying
the product ta rmake It more cost competitive for
smaller ships, and taking costs out of the onginal
design to improve its competitiveness across the
product range

To take odvantage of growth in emerging rmarkets,
we reorganised the Water Punfication business ona
regional basis This new operating model s divided
into the Amencas, Europe, Middle East and Africa,
Asia Pacific and Ching, and Severn Trent De Nora,
which has global management with operations in
the US, Ching, Ttaly, Japan and Singopore

Reorganising the business in these regions will allow
us to offer customers a full surte of products and
services, while operating with similar capabilities to
those we already have in North America and Europe
It 15 also expected to reduce our costs by leveraging
global procurernent.

‘Severn Trent Services
delivered an encouraging
performance, despite
continuing challenging
conditions in some of
its markets.’

LONDUUCJUI 3G  SIUBLUSIONS [DIOUOUY AUDGLLIOY)  SIUSLUSIDIS j00UDUl dnals)  S5UDLIBAOE)  MIIALI SSAUNIG MBINEAQ

€107 SIUNCITY PUD UOGY [ONULY  }d JWRIL LIS




30

Non-regulated

Operating Services

Despite a flat market, revenue grew in the US
Incrensed efficiencies made our existing contracts
in the UK and Ireland more profitable In Ttaly
performance was again affected by economic
conditions and continued political uncertainty

Ir the US, fewer existing contracts came up for
renewal across the market We therefore focused on
increasing the proportion of our own contracts that
we retamned on renewal Overall, we secured 31 new
projects and renewed 46 contracts, improving our
renewal rate for contracts of more than $100,000

a year to 85%

In Italy our performance was negatively irnpacted
by the political and economic environment. We saw
a lower level of activity and we restructured the
business to reduce our ongoing cost base

Our 25 year, £1 0 bilion operation and maintenance
contract with the UK Ministry of Defence (MoD) cut
leakage to an all ime low, exceeding the MoD’s
targets Environmental performance remains strong
Our Severn Trent Response business in lreland
operated well in a difficult economic environment,
while the Severn Trent Retail Utiity Services
business was generally flat due to the stagnant

UK heusing market

Severn Trent - serving the emerging

UK business market

Severn Trent and Costan formed a business in
June 2012 to offer large multi-site water users a
single water and waste water supplier Severn Trent
Costain operates across England, Wales and
Scottand, focusing on high volume commercial and
industnal users for whom water is a critical process
element. It helps custormers to mprove efficiency,
save costs, manage legal compliance and nsk, and
solve their water efficiency challenges It builds on
the success of our existing business with Costain,
which began in 2005 and delivers operations and
maintenance for a portion of the UK MoD's water
and waste water assets

In October 2012, Severn Trent Costain signed

First Mitk, a major UK dairy, as a custormer First Milk is
the first business customer to switch since the UK
Government amended the regulations to allow
more businesses to choose their water suppler
Severn Trent Costain now supplies, manages and
monitors First Milk’s water across six major sites in
England, Wales and Scotlond, involving more than
600 million lires of water a year

Continuous improvement

Environment

We must manage and measure our impact on

the global water environment Dunng the year, the
Delaware {US) Department of Natural Resources and
Environmental Control recognised our commitment
to the environment, when it gove #ts Clean Water
Fartnership Award to the Lewes, Delaware waste
waoter treatment plant, for achieving 100%
compliance over the last five years

The facilittes we operate i Lititz, Pennsylvania (US)
recenved the US Environmental Protection Agency’s
(EPA) 2012 Source Water Protection Award

This recognises organisations and communities that
take extraordinary steps to protect dnnking water
sources in the EPA's mid-Atlantic regon Lititz was
recognised for protecting groundwater sources
from contamination through ts joint wellhead
protection progromme with the neighbouring
Warwick Township Municipat Authonity No other
communities in Pennsylvaria have receved this
award since 2009

People, health and safety

Protecting health and safety 15 ene of our core
values We advocate safety in all we do, both
professionally and personally Our performance in
the year was solid, continuing the iImproving trend
N recent years

This continuous Improvernent was evident i our
Operating Services business in Italy, where our
employees worked 27 months without a lost time
inaident (LTI) {ended in February 2013} In the US,
our Clinton, Oklahoma Operating Services project
recerved the Water Environment Federation’s 2012
Burke Safety Award for having the best safety record
of all waste water treatment facilities in the state
Other successes in US Operating Services included
Bnstol, Tennessee celebrating 13 years without an
LTL, and the Gulf region municipal utility district
maintenance department working for three years
without an LTI, while performing some of the most
hazardous work across Severn Trent Services For the
fourth consecutive year, Operating Services in the
UK and Ireland received an award from the Royoal
Soclety for the Prevention of Acaidents for its
exceptional track record in health and safety

Image removed




Non-regulated

To develop our people we have introduced a
learning and development programme that has
dentified top tolent throughout the argarusation
We're working to develop and empower all
employees to think creatively and to dnve change
across Severn Trent Services

We carry out engagernent surveys with around 25%
of our employees each quarter The most recent
survey showed engagermnent at 81%, ahead of our
72% target This reflects a more positive athitude to
the business as we've stepped up our communicabons
to employees and begin to see the benefits of
reorgarsing and refocusing the business

Nearly 1,000 of our people took part inthe

Global Corporate Challenge this year Thisisa 16
week programme in which teems of people record
ther physical activity each day Our employees
walked a combined 1 1 bitlion steps, the equivalent
of 18 times round the world More than 26,000
teams took part globally and we had two teams

in the top 100 and seven in the top 1,000 We also
came first in the global gas, electnc and water
supply category Our partiopants reported benefits
including weight loss, increased energy and
praductivity, better stress management and
improved overall health

Process

We lock to continually improve the way we work
and have started to roll out the Severn Trent group’s
‘Safer Better Faster’ approach to continuous
irmprovement Water Purfication was the first to
imptemnent ‘Safer Better Foster’ and we are now
rolling it out across the business

We're also investing in our systems This includes
implementing a new enterprise resource planning
systern across much of the business Thisisa
sigruficant upgrade to our previous systerm and will
help us, in conunction with the ‘Safer Better Faster’
programme, to improve customer service and

our operations Over the next 18 to 24 months,
we'll be moving ahead with a number of other IT
improvernents, including a human resources system
to consolidate all our global HR actvties, a global
custorner relationship management systerm and
new cloud based office management systerns

We also enhanced our governance during the yeor
As the business grows internationally, we wanted
assurance that we have controls fully in place to
protect our investrments and ensure we're operating
ethically This work induded due diligence ocross our
supplier base and our channe! partners

Product technology

We recognise the iImportance of mantaining o
pipeline of new products and enhancements to
existing products We do this internally and through
relationships with technology partners, with whom
we can jontly develop products for new and existing
markets We have several new products at different
stages, Including the ongoing development of
BALPURE®, as discussed earlier

31

Qutlook

To compete in the global market, Severn Trent
Services must be tean and effective, and provide
qualrty products and services that deliver value
The regiondlisation of our Water Purification
structure, new product development and
enhancements to existing products undertaken
in the last 12 months are critical elements of
ourlong term strateqy

Emerging markets continue to provide opportunities
for Water Purfication, offsetting continuing
challenges in tradtional markets

Existing poltical and economic factors continue
to hamper immediate prospects inour US and
[taly Operating Services businesses However,
opportuntties to acquire existing projects are
surfacing in the US as competitors exit the market
and seek alternotive strategies The potential for
future growth i Italy 1s present given proposed
irvestrment of €65 0 billion in the water sector over
the next 30 years, though timing 1s uncertain

[n both countries we will continue to reduce costs
and increase efficiencies of existing projects

Renewables and green energy

For the second successive year, our renewable
energy operation generated almost one quarter

of the electnaty used by our regulated business,
Severn Trent Water Maintaining this performance
was particularly chollenging because of the unusually
bugh ranfall, which increases the requirement for
pumping and leads to higher energy consumption

We extended our crop digestion plant in
Nottinghamshire and began constructing our
first three large wind turbine installations

These investrments will prowide another big step
towards our target of generating 30% of Sevemn
Trent Water’s electnarty from renewables in 2015

The remaining output growth will come from further
investment in sewage digestion efficiency, new
hydro generation at several raw water reservairs,
and njecting part of the gos produced from sewoge
digestion at our largest generating station into the
UK gas network. Bio-methane injection s an
emerging technology 1n the UK but commonplace in
Northetn Europe It involves rermoving contaminants
fromn the gas, Increasing the methane concentration,
adding an odourant and pressurning to inject the gos
into the nearby transmission network. Our plant,
which will go lve In 2014, will be one of only @
handful in the UK and 1s likely to be the largest.

We lead the UK in the anaerobic digestion of sewage
ond produce maost of our renewable energy this way
We’re now developing plans to expand into the
emerging UK oppartunity for food waste digestion
We'll be oble to offer o competitive service and see
the potenticl for this to extend our renewables
production beyond 30% os we approach 2020
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Non-regulated

Today...

We generate renewable
electricity and heat
from sewage

Our largest waste water treatrnent works at Minworth receives
the sewage from over two million customers in and around
Birmingham The treatment processes ensure that the
cleaned effluent can be returned to the nver The remaining
argaruc matter is first used to generate renewable energy
using the ancerobic digestion process and then recycled to
agnculiure where It acts as a valuable bio-fertiliser

Anaerobic digestion uses bactena similar to those in the
human stomach to convert the sewage into a methane rich
biogas The gas is then used as a fuel for engines which drive
generators to produce electnicity Heat 1s recovered from the
engine exhaust and cooling systems to maintain the digesters’
temperature at 38°C This part of the process 1s known os
combined heat and power (CHP) Renewable energy has been
produced in this way at Minworth for over 50 years but output
has sigruficantly iIncreased during the lost few years following
major Investment in the processes The generating stotion
sausfies all of the electnaity needs of the site and also exports
a significant amount into the national grd

See our film at www severntrent.corm/renewables

Tomorrow...

We will be injecting
renewable gas into the
national grid

We are planning to invest a further £12 7 mdlion on renewable
energy at the site over the year to replace life expiwed CHP units
and to introduce a new process that will increase efficiency by

inyecting around a third of the gas nto the national gas gnd

The process of bio-methane injection 1s detalled on page 31
Our plant which goes lve in 2014 will be one of a handful In
the UK and it 1s likely to be the largest This plant will make
more efficient use of the energy within the gos and as such
qualifies for the financial support of the Renewable Heat
Incentive that the UK Governrnent has recently introduced.

Image removed




Looking forward

Since we published the first of our Chonging course
documents back in 2010, Severn Trent has played
ateading role in shaping the future of the UK water
industry We've continued this engagerment in the
last 12 months, with a senes of new publications
We 1ssued a paper on designing balanced incentives
that drive the right behavicur by water companies
KPMG wrcte a report for us on financing water
infrastructure beyond 2015 Alongside National
Grid, we produced a paper on encouraging equity
financing in the water and energy sectors

We're pleased that our efforts have been productve
The changes from the UK Government, in the form
of the Water Bili, and from Ofwat in its recently
published consultation on the framework for PR14,
are aligned with our own proposals Together, these
promise the most significant changes to water
industry regulation since prvatisation in 1989

The chatlenges for the industry

Water industry regulation needs to change because
the sector has to deal with significant challenges in
the coming years

Affordability is a key themne for the next five years
Househoelds are facing declining real incomes and
welfare reform, intensifying the need to keep water
bills as low as possible Pressure 1s alsc coming from
business customers, who want to better manage
their costs and have greater choice of water supplier

We need to respond to cimate change and water
scarcity Recent experience shows that the UK's
weather patterns are changing, with droughts
followed by flocds Waoter companies need to
effectively manage customer demand, make better
use of existing water resources on a national rather
than regional basis, and increase the network’s
resiience This would also create more copacity

to move water, making water trading between
regions eqsier

The water industry must also be more sustamable
This means rebalancing abstraction and taking less
water from areas where it’s already offecting the
environment It also requires the industry to reduce
its bras towards caprtal expenditure and promote
operational solutions, such as improving
catchment management rather than building

new treatment works
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‘Water industry regulation
needs to change because
the sector has to deal with
significant challenges in
the coming years.’

The Water Bill

The UK Government is respanding to these
challenges through the Water Bill, which rministers
hope to enact in 2013/14 This builds on its 2011
Water White Paoper, which set out a wision for
‘aresiient, affordable and sustainable water
supply networld

The Bill covers four main areas First, it increoses the
scope for non-household retall competition This 1s
alrecdy possible to alimited extent but the Bill will
make it easier for business custormers to switch
supplier This creates an opporturuty forus and we
have set up Severn Trent Costain in response
However, while retall competition 1s positive because
it encourages effiaency and prormotes choice,

it won't transform the sector’s economics

Secondly, the Bill also allows more upstream
competition and in particular water trading This will
enable better use of national water resources, o
significant inmprovement on the current situation
where companies have to look within their region for
solutions to water shortages This will lead to better
resiience and lower costs for customers However,
the nght economic model needs to be developed to
enable water trading to happen

Thurdly, it 1s designed to enhance the physical
resitience of the industry by, for example,
encouraging farmers and other land owners to
store water and to danfy the duties of Ofwat to
promote resilience

Finally, the Bill will reform the mergers and
acquisitions regime While major mergers will still be
unlikely, the changes create the potentiol for a more
efficent industry structure, reducing costs which can
be shared with customers

Overall, the Water Bill includes measures which are
broadly in line with those we set out in Changing
course, and we'll continue to support it as it passes
through Porliament.
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Business review Locking forward

The PR14 framework

In January 2013, Ofwat published a consultation on
its framework and approach for PR14 The proposed
frarmework has four key elements

First, it introduces separate price controls for the
retail and wholesale parts of the business This gives
comparnies a greater incentrve to provide the best
custormer service at lowest cost, and will create
more choice for non-household custormers The RCY
will stay with wholesale, whtch currently generates
around 90% of Severn Trent Water's revenue This
means that the vast majonty of our revenues will
stil be based on the RCV and will be adjusted for the
movement in the RPI each year

Ofwat 1s aiming to be less prescriptive about what
comparues deliver during the next regulatory cycle,
so It's asking them to set the high level outcomes
they will aim to achieve These outcomes will be
focused on berefits for customers and will give
companies more leeway to iInnovate in the way
they deliver therr plans

Cornpanies will atso face fewer but greater
incentives, which will focus regulation where it's
needed most. Compantes can choose larger
incentives for outperformance but would also face
more significant penalties for underperformance
The new regime will also, in theory, address the
industry’s bias towards capital expenditure, as the
model will move more to a total expenditure

{or totex) basis Companies will be able to choose
whether to recover this expenditure on g ‘pay as you
go’ basis, which will be beneficial for cash flow, or by
adding it to their RCY and earrung a return, which will
be better for therr long term returns

Finally, the framework has a much greater emphasis
on custormer and stakeholder engogement.
Custorner challenge groups (such as cur Water
Forumn, which 1s discussed on pages 18 and 20) will
influence companies as they develop therr plans,
which should lead to plans that are better informed
Companies will still own their plans but they must
show that they have listened to their challenge
group and explain their approach where their view
differs The customer challenge group will also report
on the quality of the company’s engagement and
whether it supports its business plan This will in part
determine the depth of Ofwat’s review of the plan

Ofwat’s proposals are still at the consultation stage

‘Companies will also face
fewer but greater incentives,
which will focus regulation
where it’s needed most.’

and there are important detalls that need to be
finalised For example, it’s important to get the level
of detalls nght when setting outcornes Outcomes
that are too detailed wall lose the benefits of sk
based regulation Conversely, if there’s not encugh
detad it will be hard to define meaningful measures
of success We also need to know more about

key elernents such as the basis for the average
retal cost calculations and how the totex baseline
expenditure will be set Overall, though, the draft
PR14 frarnework contains no surprises for us and
we're supportive of its aims

Severn Trent Water's April 2013 consultation, “Your
water Your choices’ sets out outline proposals for
what the company could achieve during 2015-2020,
with customer bills forecast to rise by no more than
inflation during the period There are a number of
iImportant areas where there 1s scope for choice,
however customers’ and stakeholders'’ views will
directly influence the final business plan to be
subrrutted to Ofwat in December 2013

Sustamnable financing

In the longer term, the water industry will need
more capital It has invested £100 billion since
privatisation but the challenges outlined earlier will
require further significant investment We believe
that investors will continue to fund this if they
remain confident in the industry

In our view, it’s unlikely that debt can provide all this
funding High geanng transfers risks to custorners
and the failure of one company will affect all the
others, by darmaging their chances of raising further
debt. The 2008/09 financial enisis also showed that
comparies cannot quarantee access to debt finance
when they need it Our condusion 1s that there’s a
need for long term equity in a balanced financng
structure, which means that equity holders will
have to be appropriately rewarded for providing
those funds

In the short term, we also need to look at the way
the weighted average cost of caprtal (WACC) 1s
calculated for PR14 In current market conditions,
the capital asset pricng model, which is used to
calculate the WACC, could produce an unsustainable
answer Other models should be used to cross check
and justify the cost of equity and debt. We also
believe that it’s possible to differentiate the cost of
caprtal based on company nsk We have made all
these points In a series of publications over the year
and are engaged with stakeholders to discuss the
future implications

Summary

In summary, we support the general direction of
the Water Bill and the PR14 framework While the
changes they propose are evolutionary rather
than revolutionary, they are still sigruficant and
will help the industry to address its chollenges
We're pleased to have played on important part
in shaping these proposals and will continue to
do so as they progress




Financial review

Group financiat performance

The group has delivered a good financial performance

At the regutated business, Severn Trent Water, revenues were
negatively impacted by lower consumption, with bad weather
in the early part of the year also driving higher operational
actvities and thus costs, to meet the operating performance
standards our customers and regulators expect We delivered
a good performance on those costs that we directly control
For those costs where we have less influence - power, quasi
taxes and bad debts - we saw increases in the first two,

while we maintained performance on bod debts at 2 2% of
nsing revenues (UK GAAP} To complete the picture at Severn
Trent Water we maintained our long term plans for investment
in year three of this five year regulatory plan and invested

£19 0 million more than the previous year in nfrastructure
which s expensed under IFRS accounting rules

In our non-regulated business, Severn Trent Services, we
refocused its business activities and continued to Invest n
business developrment where we see future growth potential
If we exclude these factors the business achieved modest
revenue and profit growth in these markets which is
encouraging for the future

The group continued to look to t$ long term finanang,
successfully 1ssuing its first bond into the nascent UK retail
bond market and 1ssuing @ new 13 year band into the steding
wholesale market raising £500 million at 3 625%, the lowest
cost Severn Trent has 1ssued in its recent history

PBIT 15 profit before interest and tax, underlying PBIT 1s PBIT
excluding exceptional tems as set out In note B

Group turnover was £1,831 6 mullion (£1,770 6 mitlion),
an increase of 3 4% over last year

Undertlying group PBIT decreased by 1 2% to £498 0 million
{£504 2 million} The pnmary factors affecting underlying PBIT
are described in the commentary on Severn Trent Water and
Sevemn Trent Services below

There were net exceptional items before tax of £5 8 midlion
(£509 millon} Group PBIT increased 4 8% to £492 2 million
(£469 8 million)

Regulated - Severn Trent Water

Turnover In Severn Trent Water increased by 3 7% 1n 2012/13,
to £1,511 O million Prices increased by inflation from 1 April
2012 which gave nse to an increase in turnover of £76 2 million
The wet surnmer weather reduced consumption from metered
custormers and overall lower metered consumption year on
year reduced tumover by £19 3 million New growth, net of the
impact of meter optants, increased turnover by £1 1 million
which was offset by other decreases amounting to £4 5 million

Undertying PBIT was stable year on year at £500 9 million
Direct operating costs iIncreased by £18 4 million (see below),
there was an increase in Infrastructure renewals expenditure of
£18 8 milion and depreciation, prefit on dispesal of fixed assets
and release of deferred income, iIncreased by £14 4 million

In the following analysis costs related to private drans and
sewers of £10 4 rmillion (£4 7 rrullion incurred in the pnor year)
have been excluded to give a consistent view of operating costs
yearon year In total, controllable costs were up £1 2 million, or
0 3% Employment costs increased by 12 1% to £225 0 millon
partly due to delvery of service improverments and the growth
in our capital programime which led to labour and related
overheads caprtalised £9 9 mullion higher than in 2012 at
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£86 8 mithon Hired and contracted costs decreased by

£13 6 milion to £135 1 mitlion Overalt netlabour costs,
including hired and contracted, were 0 3% higher year on year
Row materials and consumables at £43 4 million were 7 3%
lower than the same penod in the prior year Other operoting
costs increased by £3 8 million to £46 7 million

In total, non-controllable costs were up £12 5 million or 6 6%
Bad debts were 5 0% higher at £31 8 rrullion, representing

2 2% of turnover (UK GAAP), stable year on year An increase
of £6 1 million in net power costs to £57 9 million arose due
to increased consumption as a result of the wet weather

and huigher strike prices on our energy swaps Quasi taxes,
which comprise rates, serace charges and the Carbon
Reduction Commutment, increased by £4 9 million to

£112 5 million, mainty due to an increase inrates

Durning the financial year, Severn Trent Water invested

£555 4 million (UK GAAP after deducting grants and
contnbutions} (2012 £474 2 million) in fixed assets and
rnaintarung and improving its infrastructure network

Included in this total was net infrastructure renewals
expenditure of £147 7 million (2012 £128 9 million), charged to
the income statement under IFRS

Non-requlated - Severn Trent Services

Increase/
2013 2012 (decrecse)
£rn £m %
Turnover
Services as reported 3285 3323 (11%)
Structural changes (211) (407)
Imnpuact of exchange
rate fluctuations - 03
Like for like 307 4 2919 53%
Increase/
2013 2012 ({decrecse)
£m £m
Underlying PBIT i
Services as reported i 127 180 (29 4%}
Structural changes 12 (3 5)
Impact of exchange
rate fluctuations - 01)
Like for like 139 14 4 (3 5%)

In Severn Trent Services, the sale of our Analytical Services and
Metering Services businesses further focused this segrmient on
the water and waste water markets we serve There was like
for like growth in sales year on year in both our core Operating
Services and Water Purification businesses However both
businesses were impacted by exceptional costs totalling

£14 6 million, the detal of which s In the exceptional items
section below

Reported turnover was £328 5 millon in 2012/13, o decrease of

1 1% vs the pnor year, ond reported underiying PBIT decreased
by 29 4% to £12 7 rrullion
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After adjusting for changes in the group and the impact of
exchange rate fluctuations turnover on a like for like constant
currency basis was up 5 3% and underlying PBIT measured on
the same basis was down 3 5%

Operating Services
Turnover for the year on a like for like basis was £194 1 million,
an increase of 0 2% compared with the prior year

Water Purification

Turnover for the year on a like for ke basts was £113 4 million,
an increase of 15 7% compared with the prior year

Corparate and other

Corporate overheads amounted to £14 1 milion (2012

£15 6 milbon) Our other businesses generated an underlying
loss of £3 2 mithon (2012 profit of £0 1 mulion) This included
an underlying loss on our captive insurance actvity of

£1 8 million and an underlying loss of £09 milion in our
renewables business arising mainty from feasibiity and
other similar costs written off There were exchange gains

in Corporate of £0 3 mithion (2012 £0 1 million}

Exceptional items

There were net exceptional items before tax in the year to

31 March 2013 of £5 8 milion (2012 £50 9 million) including
exceptional operating costs of £4 3 million (2012 £34 4 million}
which are descrnbed in further detail below and a net
exceptional loss on disposal of businesses of £1 5 mitlion

Exceptional cperating costs included

« 1n Severn Trent Water, a profit of £13 3 million ansing from
the disposal of a number of properties, and
+ In Severn Trent Services exceptional costs of £14 6 million
comprnsing
- wnparment charges totalling £9 1 million, including wiiting
off the remaining goodwill Invested in Spain (£4 6 million)
as economic conditions i this country show no signs of
improvernent and the balance (£4 5 million) impainng all
hustoncal investrment in the developrment of a purification
product which 1s showing poor performance In testing,
- provisions totalling £5 5 mitlion, induding prowvisions for
a commeraal legal dispute and for senior personnel
restructuring charges at Operating Services in Italy; ond
- In Corporate there were exceptional costs of £3 O rmillion
related to professional fees for a transaction that did
not proceed

Net finance costs

The group’s net finance costs before exceptional items were
£231 9 million, compared with £229 0 milliorin the pnor year
There were exceptional finance costs in the prior year of

£16 5 millon ansing from the early redernption of debt

Total finance costs were £231 9 million (2012 £245 5 million)

The effective interest rate, iIncluding index inked debt, for the
yearwas 59% (2012 6 4%) The cashinterest rate was 4 9%
(2012 50%) RPI was tower year on year resulting in a reduction
In the non-cash interest charge This was offset by an increased
cash interest charge on a higher level of net debt.

Losses on financial instruments

The group uses finonaial denvatives solely to hedge nsks
associated with its normal business actvities including

= exchange rate exposure on borrowings denominated in
foreign currencies,

- interest rate exposures on flogting rate borrowings, and

* exposures to Increases n electricity prices

Accounting rules require that these denvatives are revalued at
each balance sheet date and, unless the strnct critena for cash
flow hedge accounting are met, the changes in value are taken
to the income stotement If the nsk that 1s being hedged does
not impact the income statement in the same penod then an
accounting mismatch anses from the hedging actvities and
there s anet charge or credit to the iIncome statement

Where the dervatives are held to therr full term, these
mismatches are expected to net out. Furthermore, the changes
in value that are recorded during the lives of the dervatives,
unless crystallised, do not represent cash flows Therefore the
group presents adusted earmnings figures that exclude these
nan-cash items An analysis of the amounts charged to

the income staternent in the period 1s presented in note 12

to the financial staterments

Profit before tax

Underlying group profit before tax decreased by 3 3% to
£266 3 million {2012 £275 3 million) Group profit before
tax was £215 2 milion (2012 £156 7 million)

Taxation

The current year tax charge before exceptional tems was
£57 1 million (2012 charge of £69 2 million) A prior year
current tax credit of £29 2 midlion (2012 credit of £8 7 million)
has arnsen due to adjustments to prior year tax computations
These pnmarily related to an industry agreement over the
treatrment of nfrastructure income The deferred tox credit
before exceptional tax was £4 7 milion (2012 credit of

£9 1 mullion)

The group’s UK subsichary compantes have adopted the new
accounting standard FRS 101 in the current year This has
changed the statutory accounts that form the basis for those
companies’ corporation tax computations The most significant
impact of this change Is that certain armounts that had been
taxed i previous years will now be recogrised as profits and
taxed in future penods Therefore, to prevent such items being
taxed twice, the tax already paid on such items 15 repayable
The impact of this change was an exceptional credit of

£40 5 milion to current tax and an exceptional charge of

£38 8 milion to deferred tax

There was an exceptional credit of £36 7 million (2012
£69 1 million) ansing from the reduction in corporation
tax rate fromn 24% to 23% with effect from 1 April 2013

The total tax credit for the year was £15 2 million (2012 credit
of £17 7 milior)

The underlying effective rate of current tax, excluding prior year
credits ond exceptional tax credits, calculated on profit before
tax, exceptional items before tax and gans/{losses) on financial
instruments was 25 4% (2012 25 7%)

We expact the effective rate of current tax, as defined above,
for 2013114 to be in the range of 23% to 25%
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Profit for the peniod and earnings per share

Profit for the period was £230 4 mithon (2012 £174 4 million)
Adjusted basic earnings per share (before exceptional items,
gansf{losses) on financial instruments and deferred tax)
were 98 9 pence (2012 88 9 pence) {see note 15) Basic
earrings per share were 95 7 pence {2012 72 5 pence)

Cash flow

2013 2012

£m £m

Cash generated frorm operations 7312 7259
Net capital expenditure {401 8) (351 2)
Net interest pard {233 4) (210 4)
Tax (paid)/received (72 5) {720}
Other cash flows {05) {10)

Free cash flow 230 913
Acquisitions and disposals 111 -
Dividends (3220) {1590y
Net 1ssue of shares 53 24
Change in net debt from cash flows {282 6) (653)
Non-cash movements (469) (337)
Change in net debt (329 5) (99 0)
Net debt 1 Apnl (3,9678) (3,8688)
Net debt at 31 March (4,2973) (3,967 8)

Net debt comprises

Cash and cash equivalents 4036 2951
Bank overdrafts (04) {04)

Cross currency swaps hedging debt 1007 1359
Bankloans (7587) (852 5}
Other loans (3,8409) (3,3269)
Finance leases (201 6) {(2150)
(4,2973) (3,967 8)

Cash generated from operations was £731 2 million
(2012 £7259 mullion) Capital expenditure net of grants
and proceeds of sales of fixed assets was £401 8 millson
(2012 £351 2 milion) Net interest paid increased to
£233 4 million (2012 £210 4 mullion)

Net debt at 31 March 2013 was £4,297 3 million

(2012 £3,967 8 million) Balance sheet geanng (net debt/net
debt plus equity} at the year end was 83 6% (2012 80 2%)

Net debt, expressed as a percentage of Regulatory Capital Value
at 31 March 2013 of £7,364 mithon was 58 4% (2012 56 0%)
The group's net interest charge, excluding gams/(losses) on
financial nstrurments and net finance costs from pensions,

was covered 3 4 times (2012 3 4 times) by profit before
interest, tax, depreciation and exceptional items, and

21 times (2012 2 2 tmes} by underlying PBIT

The fair value of the group’s net debt at 31 March 2013 1s
estimated to be £5,071 1 million (2012 £4,579 3 million)
compared to the book value of £4,297 3 mdlion (2012
£3,967 & million) Discounted future cash flows are used

to determine fair values for debt Discount rates are derived
from yield curves based on quoted interest rates ond are
adjusted for the group’s credit nsk.
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Treasury management and hiquidity
The group’s pnncipal treasury management objectives are

+ toaccess o broad range of sources of finance to obtan both
the quantum required and lowest cost compatible with the
need for continued avallability;

- to maintan an investment grade credit rating, and

+ tomamntana flexible and sustainable balonce sheet structure

The group continues to carefully montor iquidity At 31 March
2013 the group had £403 & millior in cosh and cosh equivalents
and committed undrawn faciites amounting to £500 million
The group 1s funded for its investrent and cash flow needs up
to January 2015

In July 2012 the group 1ssued a £75 million sterling
denominated RPI Linked bond in the retail bond market
A coupon of 1 3% is payable on the notes which are due
to mature in July 2022

In Jonuary 2013 the group 1ssued £500 million 3 625%
Guaranteed Notes under its Euro Medium Term Note
programme The notes have a 13 year term

Cash Is Invested in deposits with highly rated banks and Liquidity
funds and the list of counterparties 1s regulary reviewed and
reported to the beard

Treasury policy and operations

Qur treasury affars are managed centrally and in accordance
with our Treasury Procedures Marwual and Policy Statement

The treasury operatiory's role 13 to rmanage liquidity, funding,
investrment and our financial sk, including nsk from volatility in
interest and (to a lesser extent) currency rates and counterparty
credit nsk The board determines matters of treasury policy and
its approval 1s required for certoin treasury transactions

Our strategy 1s to access a brood range of sources of finance to
obtain both the quantum required and lowest cost compatible
with the need for continued avallability Cur prncipal operating
subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, 1s a long term business
characterised by mult year investment programmes

Our strategic funding objectives reflect this and the liquidity
position and the avallability of committed funding are essential
to meeting our objectves ond obligotions We therefore aimn for
a balance of long term funding or commitment of funds across
a range of funding sources at the best possible economic cost.

The group’s current policy for the management of interest rate
nsk requires that not less than 45% of the group’s borrowings
should be at fixed interest rates, or hedged through the use of
Interest rate swaps or forward rate agreements At 31 March
2013, interest rates for 76 8% of the group’s net debt of
£4,297 3 million were fixed

We use financial derwvatives solety to manage nsks associated
with our norrmal business activities We do not hold or issue
dervatrve financial instruments for financial trading

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which is fully hedged,
our business does not Invalve significant exposure to foreign
exchange transactions We have investrnents in vanous assets
denominated in foreign currencies, principally the US dollar

and the euro Our current policy 1s to hedge an elernent of the
currency translation nsk associated with certain foreign currency
denorminated assets
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The group 1ssues notes in foreign currency under its Euro
Mediurn Term Notes (EMTN) programrne and uses cross
currency swaps to convert the proceeds to sterling The effect of
these swaps 1s that interest and prnincipal payments on the
borrowings are denominated in sterling ond hence the currency
nsk 1s ebminated The foreign currency notes and the cross
currency swaps are recorded in the balance sheet at therr far
values and the changes in fair values are taken to gains/(losses)
on financial nstrurnents in the income staterment Since the
terms of the swaps closely match those of the underlying
notes, such chunges tend to be broadly equal and opposite

The group holds interest rate swaps with a net notional principal
of £364 9 million and cross currency swaps with a net notional
principal of £610 2 millien which economically act to hedge the
interest rate nisk on floating rate debt or the exchange rate nsk
on certan foreign currency borrowings However, the swaps do
not meet the haedge accounting rules of 1AS 39 and therefore
the changes in farr value are taken to gains/(losses} on financiol
instruments in the Income statement Dunng the year there
was a charge of £26 O million in relation to these instruments

Some of these swaps, which were entered into in 2000-2005,
include opticns for the counterparty to terminate the contracts
at specified points in their lives During the year the group
terminated three of these contracts at a cash outlay of

£44 3 millon These swaps had a notional principal amount

of £100 0 million As o result of the termination the
corresponding amount of our net debt will now be subject to
current market interest rates, which are presently lower than
the arounts that were payable under the swaps

The fair value at 31 March 2013 of remaining swaps with
termination options was a liabiity of £110 0 milbon and their
aggregate notional principal amount was £275 0 million

The next terrmination options for the remaining swaps occur
between Novernber 2014 and May 2016 and the group will
actively manage its exposure to these contracts over that period

The group has entered into a senes of forward starting Interest
rate swaps with a notional pnnaipal armount of £450 O million
that hedge the interest rate nisk on the anticipated borrowing
requirements of Severn Trent Water for AMPS These swaps are
treated as cash flow hedges and the changes in far value are
taken to other comprehensive Incame

The group manages its electnoity costs through a combination
of forward price contracts and financol denvatives All of our
power requirements for the first four years of AMPS and some
of the remaining year have been hedged in this way, at prices
below those allowed in the Final Determination

The group’s long term credit ratings are

The final salary sections of the pension schernes were closed
to new entrants in 2006 and the age profite of scheme
participants 1s expected to nse and hence service costs are also
expected to nse untd the schemes are closed to future accrual

The defined benefit persion schemes will close to future accrual
on 31 March 2015 A new defined contribution pension scherme
has been established and members of the defined benefit
pension schemes will then become members of the new
defined contrbution pension scheme The existing defined
contribution pension schermne will also be replaced by the

new pension arrangements with effect from 1 Apnl 2015

Fromn 1 April 2012 new employees have been autormatically
enrolled into this scheme and those employees who were not
members of a Severn Trent scherme were automatically
enrolled into this scheme from 1 April 2013

The ke actuanal assumptions for the defined benefit schemes
have been updated for these accounts On an IAS 19 bass,

the estirmated net position of the schernes was a deficit of
£383 7 mitlion at 31 March 2013 This cormpares to a deficit of
£345 8 millon at 31 March 2012 The movements in the

net defict are summansed innote 27 The funding level has
remained constant at 81 8%

The major assumptions used in the valuation of the defined
benefit pension schemes were as follows

2013 2012
% %

Price inflation 32 31
Solary increases 30 36
Pension increases In payment 32 31
Pension increases In deferment 32 31
Discount rate 44 49
Long term rate of return on equities 66 68
Remaining life expectancy for
members currently aged 65 (years)
-men 215 212
- wormen 246 251
Rermaining life expectancy at age 65
for members currently aged 45 (years)
-men 227 218
- women 262 259

The following table summarses the estmaoted iImpact on
scheme liabilities resutting from changes to key actuanal
assumptions whilst holding all other assurmptions constant

Long termn rotings Severn Trent Plc Severn Trent Water
Moody's Baal A3
Standard and Poor's BBB- BBB+
Pensions

The group operates two defined benefit pension schermes,

of which the Severn Trent Pension Scherne (STPS) 1s by far the
largest. Formal tnenmial actuanal valuations and funding
agreements for the STPS were renewed as at 31 March 2010
The next tnennial valuation as at 31 March 2013 1s currently
underway Deficit reduction contributions include a payment of
£10 0 million per annum in cash and a further £8 2 mithon per
annum through an asset backed funding arrangement.

Impacton

Assumplion Change in assumption scheme liabilities
Discount rate Increasel/decrease  Decreasefincrease
by 0 1% by £38 ¢ million

Price inflation Increase/decrease  Increose/decrease
by01% by £35 0 rmillion

Mortality Increase nife Increase
expectancy by 1 year by £55 0 million

Accounting policies and presentation of the
financial statements

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with International Financio! Reporting Standards
that have been endorsed by the European Union




Risk management

Our approach to nsk

Across the group our approach to sk
balances the need to effectively manage
inherent nisks and also the opportunity
to improve our performance through
selected nsks

Within the largest part of cur group,
Severn Trent Water, our approoch reflects
our status as a requlated utility providing
essentwal services and operating as part
of the Critical National Infrastructure for
the UK. The nature of our Severn Trent
Water business 1s such that there are
sorne sigrificant nherent risks as
lustrated in the section headed ‘Principal
nsks’ We aim to have a strong control
frarmework in place to enable us to
understand our nsks and manage

them effectively

Although the Severn Trent Services
businesses are not generally requlated,
we provide products ond services for
clients who operate in regulated
environments and, as a result, we take
a similar approach to risk

Across the group the management of
nsks takes place within the overall
governance framework which includes
clear accountabitities and defegated
authority lirnits

Our Enterpnise Risk

Management process

We continue to use our established
Enterpnse Risk Management (ERM)
process across the group to assess and
manage our most significant nsks

We analyse both the possible causes

of a nsk and what the impact would be
if the nsk occurred Using this process,
we are able to consider the controls
needed to mimimise the likelhood of
nsks occurnng and those which can
help ta maxirmise our resilience te nsks
Cur assessment of nisks indudes explicit
consideration of the possible impact of
the nsk on the reputation of the group
as awhole The understanding which
we are able to gan from our ERM process
allows us to put in place effective
mitigation strategies

Key nsks are reported to the Audit
Committee and to the board every
six months in the form of nsk maps

In addion, indmdual risks or specific
nsk topics are also discussed by the
board during the year We also have
regular nsk ‘deep dves’ at our executive
teamn meetings These take the form
of updates from indidual business
teams within Severn Trent Water on
ther progress with improving controls
and providing effectve rmitigation for
ther most significant rsks

We have also continued with our work
to make sure that the annual business
pltanning process within Severn Trent
Water is closely aligned to the ERM
process so that we can be confident that
our business plans adequately address
key nsk areas

Principal nsks

There ore a number of sigruficant nsks
which are inherent to cormparies
operating water and sewoge treatment
works, distnbution networks and related
activities These are shown on our
business models on pages 14 to 15 and
26 te 27 and include

= we, or our clients, operate in heawly
regulated environments and are
subject to mony varied, complex and
changing obligations As result, we face
nsks associated with non-compliance,

+ Severn Trent Water has an extensve

network of assets and the fallure of key

indmducl or collechions of these assets

could result in a significant impact on

our core business activities,

we face nsks to the health, safety and

well-being of our people, customers

and contractors as a result of the

nature of our operations,

our business operations depend on the

effective performance of key supply

chain partners,

« we share a concermn with many other
businesses over our ability to fund
long term pension prormises, and

+ we share concerns with other
businesses over access to funding and
over the securty of funds ploced with
counterparties, particularly in the
current unsettled economic dimate

Where appropricte, these are discussed
n the table of pnnaipal nsks overleaf
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Risk management in practice

Qur assets nght across our region work

24 hours a doy seven doys aweek to
provide water to our custormers or to take
away and treat our customers’ waste water
With so many assets working $o many
hours, occasionally things break down and
we need to know about this as soon as
possible so that services to our customers
are not affected

We have systems in place to monitor the
performance of assets and processes so
that we can be alerted as soon as possible
to potential problems A few examples
include dewices ta morutor water levels in
our sewerage networks, chlorine levels

1in our water distnbution network and levels
of water stored in our reservorrs

The montoning of our processes is cntical to
us and the ERM process has helped us to
highlight the nsks associated with the failure
of this monitonng systern and has allowed
us to put controls In place For example,

we have reviewed our stock of critical spares
to ensure continuous monitonng can be
achteved, established an auditable process
to track changes to the monitoring software
combined with a planned back-up of the
programme, and have set up Framework
Agreernents (contracts} with our business
partners to suppart us with maintaining

the system

Effective nsk control within these systemns
helps to reduce interruptions to custormer
supplies, and minimise the nsk of sewer
flooding and pollution events
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Ref What s the nsk? Which part of
Severn Trent

is affected?

What does it mean for us?

Whoat are we doing to manage the nsk?

Customer Perceplion

1  Wemaybeunableto
iImprove and maintain
our levels of customer
service sufficiently
o delver what our
customers tell us
they want

Severn Trent
Water

2 Wemaybeunableto
respond effectively to
the opening up of the
business retail market to
competition

Group wide

Legal and Regulatory Environment

Severn Trent
Water

3 Wemaybeunableto
effectively anticipate
and/or nfluence
future developments in
the UK water industry
resulting in our business
plans becoming
unsustainable

Severn Trent
Water

4 Ofwat may not support
our business plan
submussion for the next
price review period
(AMPG) for 2015-2020,
or we rnay fall to meet
some of the targets
agreed with Ofwat in our
current business plon

Failure to deliver the service customers
expect will lead to customer
dissatisfaction and as a result we may not
gain customers’ support for our business
plan for the next price review penod
(AMP6) between 2015-2020

If we are unable to provide the level of
service we want to our custormers we
may also suffer financiol penalties under
Ofwat’s SIM

We may lose Income as a result of
business retail customers moving to
competitors or we may fail to successfully
grow our business by offerning @ more
attractive service which resuits in
custormers moving to us

The mieyor part of our business, Severn
Trent Water, operates in @ highly
regulated environment Whilst we are
broadly content with the direction of
changes proposed for our industry,
there remamns a nsk that future
changes could have a significant
impact on Severn Trent

We submit a business plan to Ofwat
every five years When we submit our
plans, there 1s a nsk that they will nat
achieve the required Ofwat assessrment
level This may result in more changes
being required to the plan

There s a risk that we will be unable to
delrver all of our agreed objectives nour
current plan Failure to achieve the targets
could result in Ofwat being less wiling to
support our business plan subrrussion for
the next pnce review period and could
result in additional funding requirements
in the current period

We have co-ordinated programimes of work
underway across all parts of Severn Trent Water
to iImprove our processes and our technology
to enable us to deliver outstanding

customer service

We are pleased that we are the most improved
water and sewerage company in the UK in terms
of customer satisfaction as measured by Ofwat's
SIM meosures Whilst our performance inthe
league tables has significantly improved, it is still
not as good as we would like

We will continue with our organisation wide
impraverment programmes which include looking
for ways to make our processes as customer-
fnendly as possible

We have worked to improve our levels of service
for all customers and we continue to focus on
offenng the lowest charges

Within Severn Trent Water, we are developing a
strategy for improving our offenng to large
business customers and we are iImplementing
the necessary organisational and system changes
needed to better serve these customers

Our jont publication with National Gnid,
‘Changing course through sustainable
financing” which was published during the
year set out our proposals for securing the
long term future of the UK water industry

We will continue to engage with our peers,
Ofwat and ather requlators, UK Government
departments and other stakeholders to influence
the diraction of regulatory palicy where possible

In developing our five year plan for the next price
review penod, we have worked closely with our
customers and with our independent custormer
challenge group, the Water Forum, to ensure our
plons reflect customers’ prontes

We operate an established and robust internal
business planning process We review and update
our business plan on an annual basis Progress
against the targets agreed in our onnual business
plans is rmonitored each quarter This enables

us ta make adjustrents to planned activities

if we identify any concerns about our abilty to
achieve our annual plans or the five year plan
agreed with Ofwat.

We will continue to monitor achievement of

our current plan and to engage with the Water
Forum to valdate our proposals for the next prce
review penod
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What does it mean for us?
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What are we doing to manage the nsk?

Ref What isthe nsk? Which part of
Severn Trent
i1s affected?

5  Theregulatory Group wide

landscape 1s complex
and subject to ongoing
chonge Thereis a nsk
that processes may farl
or that our processes
may not effectively keep
pace with changes in
legislation leading to the
nisk of non-compliance

Operations, assets and peaple

6  Ourossetsorprocesses  Groupwide
may fail resulting n
njury to an employee,
contractor or member
of the public

7 Wemayfoltomeetall Severn Trent
of our regulatory targets ~ Woter
induding targets from
Ofwat in relation to
ongong operational
performance of our
assets resulting In
regulatory penalties

Our polices and processes must reflect
the current legal and regulatory
erwironment ond oll relevant employees
must be kept aware of new requirements
Due to the spread of our operations, and
changes in actvity and organisational
structure this 1s not always straightfonwvard
The group o5 a whole may face censure
for non-compliance in an indwidual group
¢ampany or a specific regian N which

we operate

The nature of our work requires our
employees and contractors to undertake
actmties or to use equipment which have
potential to cause senous harm Whilst
we take every precaution to prevent injury,
asset falure or falure to follow agreed
pracesses may result i sorneone being
hurt. Specific examples include injury to
our employees using chermcals in our
processes Additionally, falure of one of
our key assets such as a reservair could
result in inury to customers or members
of the public

If we are unable to meet operational
performanice torgets, we may be
subjected to significant regulatory
penalties ether within the current price
review penod, or applied to the next
price review

Requlatory targets apply to all of

our water treatment, distrbution,
sewerage and sewoge treatment
assets Measures are in place in relation
to water quality, continuous supphies,
sewer flooding, sewer collapses and
pollution events

We have o group wide code of conduct ‘Doing the
nght thing - The Severn Trent way’ together wath
polictes, standards, procedures and relevant
traning for employees to mitigate this nsk.

Dunng the year, we have continued with our
extensive programme to raise awareness of
updated policies This has included e-learming
for relevant employees in relation to Competition
Law and Ant-Bribery ond Corruption legislation

We will continue our programme of traning and
raising awareness We are also carrying out a
review of the mechanisms by which we goin
assurance that pohicies are fully complied with
across the group to ensure these mechanisms
remain fit for purpose

We have clearly dentified roles, responsibilities,
stondards and processes for controlling health,
safety and well-being nsks Our strategy, which
seeks to ensure that no one gets hurt or made
unwell by what we do, Includes iImprovement
actvity on the management system, behavioural
safety culture and cccupational health with a
focus on preventing Incdents At a local level,
safety improvernent teams identify and cddress
hozards We monttor safety performance and
have delivered year on year reductions in
inadents and increases i prevention activity

Qur ossets are subject to regular and ngorous
monitoring including independent inspection of
our reservorrs to ensure that they reman safe
and that mantenance work is undertaken
where needed

We will continue with our prograrnme of safety
education and improverments and with our
ngorous menitonng and mantenance regimes
for cnbical assets

We continue to monrtor and invest in our assets
and to improve our processes In order to
maintain cur senvices to our custormers We have
continued our major prograrmmes of work to
review all aspects of our operations, ncluding the
necessary Improvernents to maintain continuous
supplies, ensure water quality, reduce sewer
collapses and sewer flooding and improve
environmental performance

Our business plan subrmission for the pnce review
peniod from 2015-2020 will include the necessary
funding for upgrades ond mprovements to our
assets to allow us to continue to provide good
quality water and to effectively treat waste water
for our customers
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Business review Risk management

Ref What is the nsk? Which part of  What does it mean for us? What are we doing to manage the nsk?
Severn Trent
15 affected?

8  Falure of certain key Severn Trent Sorne of our assets are antical to the We have asset management plans in ploce
assets may result nan  Water provision of water tolarge populations for -~ which dnve investment in maintencnce and
nability to prowde a which there are imited alternatvermeans improvernent of our assets in order to mantain
continuous supply of of supply These assets are reqularly our service to custormers
quality water to large nspected and mantained and our We also have security measures to protect our
populations within our assessment of the overall conditon 5 good  gssets and contingency plons to maintain
areq, or ndomage to \l{\f’g&c:jﬂure \Ivere to occur the consequence g pplies in the event of fallure
thrd party property connnlft‘:)tsgrsgrgﬁ)? ggg:ggr? 0 We will continue to develop and implerment

asset management ptans to ensure the long term
sustanability of our services

Financial Risks

9  The cument economic Group wide As a result of current nnarket conditions We ensure we mantain access to funds through
chmate moy ncrease and economic conditions across the cash held on short term deposit and through our
the difficulties associcted eurozone, there may be increased commutted borrowing focilities We constantly
with obtaining funding difficulty for ol businesses to obtan funds  monitor the possible impacts of econormic
for the group (at simiar We may therefore be unable tomeet all  conditions on the funding requirernents for the
rates to those assumed of our funding requirernents at group We have dversified sources of funding and
In our business plan} commercially attractive rates have a timetable for replacement of committed

10 Changing demographics  Group wide
and fluctuations in the
nvestment market ray
affect our ability to fund
pension promises
sustainably

11  Counterparties with
whom we have invested

money may fail, putting
our investment at nsk.

Group wide

We already provide significart funding
We may be called upon to provide
more rmaney to reduce deficits in our
pension schemes

From time to time we may have
considerable sums available which we
have not yet iInvested in agreed capital
prograrrrmes, and we need to rmanage
this In the most odvantageous way for
our customers and shareholders
However, with any investment there s a
risk of default which could resutt in
financial loss

lending focilities which allows us more than one
opportunity to go to market in order to mitigate
agamst short term problems in the marketploce

We will continue to monitor our financial position
and future requirements and to maontain access
to a diversified source of funds ‘We will also
continue our strategy of early refinoncing where
this s beneficial to the group

We regularly revalue our schemes and monitor
our investment performance

We have introduced new pension arrangements
which we believe will be farer for all our
employees as well as reducing the build up

of deficit in future years, thus allowing us to
continue to fund pensions sustainably into

the future

We will continue to monitor the performance of
our pension Investments and to work closely with
our third party adwisors to ensure that the
schemes are manoged effectively

We have stnct polices which restnct the
counterparties we can invest with and bimit the
ameunt which can be invested with indmdual
counterparties We continuously monitor the
credit status of all our counterparties to ensure
we only deposit with those who have good credt
status Compliance with our policies 1s monitored
continuously to mitigate this nsk.

We will continue to montitor the external market
environment and maintain our polices to
mitigate this nisk.
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Board of directors

Image removed

Dr Tory Ballance

BSc (Hons) MA (Econ) PhD (48)

Director, Strategy and Regulation

Appointed to the boord on 2 October 2007
Tory's extensive expenence in utility policy and
regutation leoves him deolly ptaced toleod
the company’s strategic ond requlatory work,
Prior to Jowrng Sevem Trent he held the posts
of Chuef Econonrust for Ofwot, econormic
consultant, director of London Econormics and
was o director of Stone and Webster Consultants

External appointments
Mernber of Water UK Council

Commuttee membership
Executive Commmittee

Image removed

Martin Lomb

BSC MBA (53)

Independent nor-executive director

Appointed to the board on 29 February 2008
Martin has extensive expenence of monoging and
developing lorge engineenng businesses i all parts of
the world Martin has worked for IMI for over 25 years
where he hos held a number of serior monagernent
roles His strong commernal acumen, expenence of
managing complex projects, and farnhanty with
current market pressures as a serving Chief Executive
leave him well ploced to odd value to the Severmn Trent
business Previously Martin was o non-executive
director of Spectns plc

External appointments

Chief Executive and member of the Nominations
Comrmittee of IMI plc

Mermnber of the Adwisory Board of AEA

Investors {UK) Limited

Committee membership

Nominations Ccmmittee
Rermnuneration Committee

Image removed

DrBernard Bulkin

BSPhD FRSC FRSAFIE (71)

Independent non-executive director

Appointed to the board on 1 January 2006
Bemnard's successful and wide ranging coreer in
academia and business has prowided him with in
depth expenence n saentific, technology end
engineenng industries. He held the prominent position
of Chuef Scientist of BP Pie. His irvolvernent i both
innovation and policy on chmate change ond
renewable energy, ond bis sigrificant skills and
expenence in delvening performance improvement
onsofety ond environmental operational issues,
mgke his contribution to the board involucble

External appointments

Non-executive director of Ze gen Corporation {US)
Non executive Charman of Pursuit Dynamics plc
Charr of the Office of Renewabte Energy Deployment
at the UK Deportenent of Energy and Climate Change

Commuttee membership

Audit Commuttee

Corporate Resporsibility Commuttee (Chairmon)
Normnations Committee

Rermuneroton Commuttee

Image removed

Michael McKeon

MA CA {56)

Finance Director

Appainted to the board on 13 December 2005
Michoel bhings sigruficant finanaal ond commeraol
expertise to the board and has over seven years'
expenence of the Severn Trent group Pror to joiming
Severn Trent he was Finance Director of Novar Pl ard
before that, held vanous senior roles with Rolls-Royce
Pic, induding Finance Director of Aerospace Group
He has extensive internabional business experience
hawing worked overseas for CamoudMetalbox,

Elf Atochern and Price Waterhouse Michoel 1s @
Chortered Accountant and @ Member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Scottand

External appointments

Non-executive director and Chairman of the
Audit Commuttee of The Merchants Trust Pic

Commuttee membership
Executve Committee

Image removed

Richard Davey

BA (64)

Servor ndependent non-executive director
Apponted to the board on 1 January 2006

Richard spent the majonty of his executive career n
investment banking at NM Rothschild ond Sons,

in roles including Heod of Investrnent Bonking
Richard brings rwatuoble specialist finoncol expertise
to the board, the Audit Comruttee ond as charr of
the Remuneration Cormimittee, having run Rothschild's
Financial Senaces Group cnd worked with o number
of high street bonks and insurers Previously he held
non execulive roles at Yorkshire Building Society,
where he was Vice Charmon, Freeserve Plc and
Scottish Widows Fund ond Life Assurance Society

External appointments

Non executive Chairman, member of the Audit ond
Nominauon Cormmittees of Amlin Pic

Committee membership

Audit Committee

Nominations Committee
Remuneration Committee (Charman})

fmage removed

Baroness Noakes

DBE LLB FCA (63}

Independent non-executve director

Appointed to the board on 29 February 2008
Sheilo bnngs voluable expertrse to the boord as an
expenenced drector and Audit Committee Chairmon
of UK bsted comparues and with extersve and vaned
professional, pelibeal and public sector expenence

A qualified chertered accountant, she previously
headed KPMG's European and International
Government practices ond has been President of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Englond and
Wales. Shello was appointed to the House of Lords n
2000 and hos served on the Conservative front bench
in vanous roles including as shadow treasury minister
between 2003 and May 2010 Previously she held
non-executive roles on the Court of the Bank of
England, Hanson Ple, ICI Pic, John Laing and SThree

External appointments

Non executve director, member of the Group Audit,
Group Norminations and Board Risk Comrmittees of

The Royal Bank of Scotland Graup Plc

Deputy Chairman, senior independent director and
Charman of the Nominations Committee of
Carpetnght Plc

Trustee of the Thomson Reuters Founders Share Comparty
Committee membership )
Audit Committee {Chairman)

Nominations Commuittee
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Andrew Duff
BSc FEE (54}
Non-executive Charmean

Appointed to the board on 10 May 2010 and
Chairmon on 20 duly 2010

Andrew’s extensive experience of internobionot and
requlated business, strategic managerent and
customer service in high profile, dynemic environments
have equipped him well for the role of Chairman of
the group Andrew spent 16 years at BP in marketing,
strategy and oil trading He joined National Power in
1998 and the board of its daughter company Innogy
plc upon is demerger frorm Notional Power in 2000
He led the restructunng and subsequent sote of
Innogy to RWEIn 2003 He becarme CEO of the
successer company, npower, and a member of

the RWE Group Executive Committee He was
nen-executive Charmman of RWE npower until his
retrernent in December 2010

External appointments

Senior ndependent director, Chairman cf the
Remuneration Committee, member of the Audit
Committee and Norminations Committee of Wolseley Pic
Member of the CBI President’s Commuttee

Trustee of Macrmillan Cancer Support and Earth Trust
Fellow of the Energy Institute

Committee membership

Corporate Responsibility Committee
Nominotions Comrmittee (Chairman)
Remuneration Committee

Image removed

Andy Smith

BYech {Hons) (52}

Director of Water Services

Appointed to the board on 2 October 2007

Andy bnngs a broad range of executive and
operational expertse gained from diverse sectors to
the board Andy has significont experience having
worked in the UK and overseas with global businesses
such as BP, Mars ond Pepsi, in engineenng and
operationol management roles Previcusly he was
Group HR Director and o member of the board at
Boots Group Pic

Committee membership
Executive Committee

Image removed

Gordon Fryett

(59

Independent non-executive director

Appointed to the boord on 1 July 2009

Gordon's extensve expenence working n and with
interngtional businesses, managing sigrificant capital
expenditure ond n depth retad expertise at both
executive and operational level in a custorrer facing,
highly competitive emvironment, enables hirn to bnng
substontiol expenence and expertise (o the board

He 15 currently Group Property Director at Tesco Plc,
having previously beld a number of senior roles
within the Tesco Group, including Operations

Dwrector, International Support Director and CEQ
Republic of Ireland

External appointments
Alurnnus of INSEAD

Committee membership

Corporate Responsibiity Committee
Nominations Committee

Image removed

Tony Wray

BSc (Hons) {51)

Chief Executrve

Appointed to the board on 7 March 2005

Tony becorne Chief Executive on 2 October 2007

His extensive experience In a wide ronge of operaticnal
ond strategic leadership roles i the energy, telecoms,
water and waste industnes enables hirn to bring a
multi disciplined approach to his contnbution to the
board Tony brngs to his position anin depth
operational knowledge of Severn Trent and strategic
visson for the group Previously he was director of
Networks at Eircom, the Republic of Ireland's
telephone operation and has held director roles
wittun Transco and Nabional Grd Transco

External appointments

Non-executive director, Chairman of the Board Risk
and Cornpliance Committee and member of the
Audit Com—muttee of Gronger plc

Member of Business Advisory Board for ‘Lmng with
Environmental Change’

Member of Water UK Board

Committee membership
Corporate Responsibility Comrmitiee
Executive Cornmuttee (Chairman)
Nominations Committee
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Martin Kane

BSc CEng CEnv MICE MIWEM FIW (60)

Chief Executive Officer, Severn Trent Services
Appointed to the board on 2 October 2007

Martin joined Severn Trent Woter in 1975 and has
hetd various senior roles giving hirn an extensive and
umgue understanding of the design, construction ond
operaticn of water ond woste water treatment plants,
water distnbution networks and sewerage systems
Martin was Director of Custorner Relations, Severn
Trent Water, frorn May 2606 until January 2012,
when he wos appointed Chief Executive Cificer of
Severn Trent Services

External appointments

Mermber of the boards of Utilities ond Service
Industnes Trawung Limited and National Association
of Water Companies (US)

Trustee of Internationat Society for Trenchless
Technology

Committee membership
Executive Committee
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Executive Committee

The Chief Executive ts supported in his role by the executive
managerment team and together they comprise the Executive
Commuttee During the year, the Executive Committee
comprised the executive directors and senior executive
managers responsible for key operational and central functions
Photographs of the members of the committee, together with
therr bicgraphies are set out below

The Executve Committee oversees the development and
execution of the Severn Trent strategy It also has accountability
for achieving business results The terms of reference of the
Executive Commuttee are avallable on the company’s website
(www severntrent com} or from the Company Secretary

During the year, the Executive Committee met to consider
strateqy, business management, policy and planning,

and operational performance

Members of the Executive Committee are delegated
responsibility to sit on steenng groups that oversee the
delivery of our strategy and business management

During the year, steering groups were set Up to oversee
areas such as the integrated delivery of our year end results
and Gfwat Annual Regulatory Returns

image removed Image removed Image removed Image removed
1 2 3 4
Image removed Image removed Image removed Image removed
5 6 7 8
Image removed Image removed Image removed
9 10 11
1 DrTony Ballance 3 Evelyn Dickey 5 Angela Hunter-Dobson 8 Michael McKeon
BSc (Hons) MA (Econ) PhD (48) BSc (Hons) (50 MaA (Hons) (41) MA CA (56)
Director, Strategy and Regulation Director of Humon Resources Custormer Relations Director finance Director

Please see full biography on page 44

2 Simon Cocks

BA {Hons) (47)

Waste Water Services Director
Joined Severn Trent 1n July 2009
Simon 1s on etectncal engineer by
traning He previously worked for
Londoen Electnaty in vanous
operotional and management roles
and, more recently, for National Grd
where he was Head of UK Operations
Performance and Plarining, then
Commercial Director for the gas and
electnaty business in the UK and
Europe and held the position of
Chvef Procurement Officer before
Joining Severn Trent. Simonis a
board member of UK Water
Industry Research

Jained Severn Trent in Novernber 2006
Evelyn has extensive HR expenence
leading design and delivery of major
change programmes, business
restructuring, employee relotions,
resourcing, executive remuneration,
organisational capability and
performance managenent
initiatives. Before joinung Severn Trent
Evelyn worked in HR consuttancy and
as HR Director (HR Qperations) for
Boots the Chemists

4 Myron Hrycyk

MBA (56)

Chief Information Gfficer

Joined Severn Trent in Apnl 2008
Myron has held senior [T posts

for major crgarisations across a
range of business sectors, Financiol
Services, Publishing, Autormotsve
ond Logistics/Supply Chain He has
delvered strategic IT and business
transformation programmes,
restructured corporate IT urits
and deployed hwgh perfarmonce IT
practices Myron olso has executive
responsibility for Supply Chain &
Procurement

Joined Severn Trent in May 2012
Angelo commenced her career with
[BM during its transformotion from
manufactunng to services business
She has since held senior operctional
leadership positions for Barclays,
Hiscox and Vodafone, delivering
customer services across B2B, B2C,
domestic, international, ndirect and
reguloted morkets In additonto
leading award winning customer
operations, she has consulted
widely in the area of custorner
service in multiple sectors

6 Martin Kane

BSe¢ CEng CEnv MICE MIWEM FIW (60)
Chref Executrve Officer,

Sevemn Trent Services

Please see full biography on page 45

7 Bronagh Kennedy

(BA} (Hons) (49)

General Counsel and

Lompany Secretary

Joined Severn Trerit i June 2011
Brenagh s a solictor and wos
previously Group Company Secretory
and General Counsel at Mitchells &
Butlers, where she worked for 15
years Prior to that, she was a Senior
Associate at Allen & Overy

Please see full biography on page 44

9 Alec Richmond

BSc (Econ) FCA FIIA (55)

Director of Internal Audit

Jained Severn Trent in June 2007
Prior to that, he worked for Cadbury
Schweppes Plc, leading the
comporty’s global mternal audit
service frorm 2000-2005 Before
Joining Severn Trent, he worked for
RSM Robson Rhodes as a drector
and o member of the manogement
board responsible for Risk Assurance
Services. Alec s a fellow of the
[nstitute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Institute
of internal Auditors

10 Andy Smith

BTech (Hons} (52)

Director of Water Services

Please see full biography on page 45

11 Tony Wray

BSc (Hons) (51)

Chief Executive

Please see full biography on page 45




Chairman’s letter
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Andrew Duff
Charman

Governance in Severn Trent
The way we are structured

» Our organisation 1s structured to allow for
effectve and efficient decision making
with clear accountabilities

The way we choose to behave

* Our Code of Conduct. 'Doing the nght
thing - The Severn Trent way’ sets
out cur approach to respongible
business behaviours

» The Code of Conduct 1s supported by 15
group policies and our behaviours model
Further details of these can be found on
our website (www severntrent com)

The way we ensure our effectiveness

+ We always look to ensure our people
have the nght skills in order to drve
performance iImproverment

+ Management assurance 1s provided by
a combination of effective management
processes and nsk and compliance
actvities

+ Independent assurance is provided

prirmanty by Internal Audrt, by our external
audritors and other external bodies

N

The way we are The way we
structured choose to behove

The way we work
The way we
ensure our
effectveness
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Dear Shareholder

At Severn Trent, we are committed to delivenng value to our stakeholders and building
a sustainable business, which 1s underpinned by good governance As a board we are
accountable to shareholders for ensunng that effective governance processes are in
place and complied with

The board’s role 1s to

+ understand and meet its obligations to the company’s stakeholders,

+ govern the group within a framework of prudent and effective controls which enable
nsk to be assessed and managed,

+ approve the group’s strategic objectives, and

+ ensure that sufficient resources are available to enable it to meet those objectives

Good governance provides a framework that allows the nght decisions to be taken by
the nght people at the nght time

Duning the year I led the review of cur board’s effectiveness and looked at how we
have made progress with the areas identified as requinng further improvernent at the
last review We have overseen the continued embedding of our Code of Conduct
across our businesses and reviewed our supporting policies

The following sections of this report set out how good governance supports our
activities at Severn Trent and describe how the board applies the principles of the
UK Corporate Governance Code - in the way we are structured, the way we choose
to behave and the way we ensure our effectiveness

I believe that assessing our governance arrangerments in terms of these headings
enables us to establish the nght long term behaviours, which will help us to deliver the
group’s strategic objectives in a sustainable manner

I firmly believe that we will continue to deliver value and achieve sustainoble growth
for our company through the successful rix of good governance, a clear strategy with
a supporting business plan and a strong management team to execute it.

Andrew Duff
Charrman

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The UK Corporate Governance Code 2010 (the ‘Governance Code’) was revised by
the publication of the UK Cerporate Governance Code 2012 in September 2012
The new code applies to financial years beginring on ar after 1 October 2012,
although we intend to comply early with the new code where appropriate and
reasonably practicable Our formal obligaticn for 2013 1s to report how we have
applied the pnnciples of the current Governance Code

The Governance Code 1s available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website
{www frc org uk) For the whole of the financial year ended 31 March 2013,

Severn Trent was complant with the Governance Code, with the exception that the
adequacy of amongements in relotion to the company’s whistleblowing procedures
falls withun the remit of the Corporate Responsibility (CR} Committee, rather than
the Audit Committee The CR Committee’s remit is to deal with any allegations
from employees relating to any breaches under Severn Trent's Code of Conduct.
The Audit Committee reviews reports of matters ansing in respect of financial or
nternal control matters from the compary’s whistleblowing procedures and the
cornpany’s procedures for preventing and detecting fraud and bribery, and
receves reports on non-comphiance The board considers that these arrangements
are approprate
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Governance report

Group Authonisation Arrangements

The Group Authonsation Amangernents
(GAA) are the framework through which the
Severn Trent, Pic board authonses the nght
people, at the nght level, to take important
decisions as we manage legal, financial and
adrministrative 1ssues throughout the group
The GAA are designed to facilitate good
control, efficient decision making and
demonstrable compliance

The flow of authonty 1s from the Severn
Trent Plc boord to the Chief Executive and
the Severn Trent Executive Commuttee

In respect of certain 1ssues, the delegated
authonty 1s subject to an obligation to work
with speciabst business services areos
(such as Tax, Treasury, Group Finance

and Company Secretanat) that provide
addtional expertise and a group wide
perspective

Governance of subsidiaries

The membership of the board of the
listed company, Severn Trent Pic, 1s the
sarme as that of its regulated subsidiary,
Severn Trent Water Lirited This structure
was implemented in 2007 when it was
decided to integrate the management

of the comparies to gain greater
transparency and insight of Severn

Trent Water by the Pic board

Following his appointment as CEQ of

Severn Trent Services n January 2012,
Martin Kane became a non-executive
director of Severn Trent Water Limited

The two companies operate as distinct

leqal entities The boards comply with

the Severn Trent Plc Board Governance
document and the Severn Trent Water
Limited Matters Reserved to the board

They are assisted through the management
of separate agendas, meetings and

minutes by Company Secretanat and
adwsed in their meetings by the Company
Secretary where appropnate

Subsidiary company boards are required to
be managed scrupulously with respect to
legal, fiscal and admimistrative matters

In particular, the relationships between
Severn Trent Water Limited and our other
businesses such as Severn Trent Senices
are monitored and controlled to ensure that
we comiply with our obligations on arm’s
length transactions between them

The way we are structured
Board mernbership

Dunng the year under review the board has compnsed your non-executive Charman,
five executive directors and five independent non-executive directors Photographs of
the members of the board, together with their biographies and a descnption of the
complementary skills and wealth of expenence that they bring to bear, can be found
on pages 44 and 45

We believe this umitary board brings an appropnote balance of innovation, expenence,
independence ond challenge to ensure effective decision making

In accordance with the Governance Code, all the directors will retire at this year's AGM
and submit themselves for reappointment by the shareholders

Detals of our policy on diversity n the boardroom are provided in the Nominations
Cormmittee report on pages 52 and 53

Role of the Charman

The role of Andrew Duff, your Chairman, 1s to lead a unitary beard, facilitating the
contnbution of its members at its meetings, and to be responsible for ensunng that the
pnnciples and processes of the board are mamntained in line with the board governance
framework, which can be found on our website (www severntrent.com)

Agendas for board meetings are agreed by the Chairman in consultation with the
Chief Executive and Company Secretary, although any director may request that an
itern be added to the agenda The Chairman has authonty to act and speak for the
board between its meetings, Including engaging with the Chief Executve He reports
to the board and commuttee charmen os appropriate on decisions and actions taken
between meetings of the board He also meets with the non-executve directors
without the executive directors present, to consider the performance of the
executive directors and to provide feedback

Senior iIndependent non-executive director

Richard Davey 1s your senior independent non-executive director He chairs

the Remuneration Committee and 1s a mermber of the Audit and Norminations
Cormmuttees The board has agreed that Richard wili act as Chairman of the board
in the event that the Chairman s unable to do so for any reason

Non-executive directors

Your non-executive directors are appointed to the board to contribute their
indwvidual external expertise and expenence in areas of importance to the group
Their competences include corporate finance, general finance, corporate strategy,
customer care, property, environmental and technology matters, general
management and supply chain management. They also provide independent
challenge and ngour in the board’s deliberations and are encouraged to make
independent assessments of the group’s competencies The non-executve
directors, led by the senior ndependent non-executive director, meet without the
Chairman at least once a year for them to appraise the Chairman's perfarmance
The non-executive directors and the Chairman olso meet without the executive
directors present at least once a year

Your board has reviewed the status of the non-executive directars and considers them
dll to be independent in character and judgement as defined by the Governance Code

Chief Executive

Responsibility has been delegated to the Chief Executive, Tony Wray, to achieve
the company’s strategy He 1s empowered to take all decisions and actions that
further the company's strategy and which in his judgement are reasonable,
having regard to the Chief Executive hmits set out in the company’s GAA The
non-executive directors, led by the Charrman, appraise his performance annuatly

Executrve directors

The executive directors support the Chief Executive in driving the irmplementation of
strategy forward in Sevemn Trent. They are commutted to doing this in a responsible
way which takes account of our commitment to long term sustainable and
responsible stewardship of the business, the environment, our customers and the
communities in which we live and work




Govemnance

Reporting obligations

As a public bsted company, the company is
required to comply with a range of reporting
obligations set out by law and regulation
The company s commutted to the
promotion of Investor confidence by taking
steps within its power to ensure that trade
inits secunties takes place in an efficent
and informed market

The cormpany recognises the importance of
effective communication as a key part of
bullding shareholder vatue and that, to
prosper and achieve growth, it must eam
the trust of secunty holders, employees,
custormers, supplers and communities,

by being open inits communications and
consistently delvening on its commitments

The company announces Its results on g
half yearly basis and complies with the
requirement to make interim management
statements

The Chief Executive has established a
Disclosure Committee, chawed by the
Finance Director, with specific responsibilities
for the delivery of the interim and year end
reporting processes The Disclosure
Committee oversees the delivery of an
integrated plan incorporating all elements of
the year end reporting process, namely the
group's preliminary resutts announcement
ond report and accounts, the company’s
AGM, the statutory and regulatory accounts
of Severn Trent Water Limited, the Arnnual
Regulatory Compliance Statement and the
Annual Regutatory Performance Report.

Graph removed
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Role of the Company Secretary

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
Bronagh Kennedy, and the Company Secretanat team Bronagh is responsible for
ensunng that the board operates in accordance with the governance framework it has
adopted and that there are effective information flows to the board and its
committees and between senor management and the non-executive directors

The oppontment and resignation of the Company Secretary 1s a matter for
consideration by the board as a whole

Terms and condrtions of appointment

We have made the terms and conditions of appomtment of the directors available for
nspection by any person at the company’s registered office during normal business
hours They will also be avallable at the AGM The letters of appointment of the
directors can also be seen on our website (www severntrent comn)

Board processes
We have processes in place regarding

= the board’s tasks and activities,

+ the matters specifically reserved for the board’s decision making, the authority
delegated to the Chief Executive, the accountability of the Chief Executive for that
authority, and guidance on managing the relationship between the board and
the Chief Executive, and

* the boundanes on Chief Executive action (Chief Executive timits)

The board has reserved the following for its own consideration

+ the appointment of the Chief Executive, directors, the Company Secretary ond the

Director of Internal Audit,

the strategy and budgets of the company;

+ the GAA which set out the group’s detegated approval limits,

decisions regarding the compariy and its subsidianes required to be made by the

company’s GAA, constitubional documents, statute or external requlation, and

« the approval or adophion of documents (iIncluding the publication of reports and
staterments to shareholders), required to be made by the board by the compary’s
GAA, constitutional docurnents, statute or external regulation

Board meetings

We have reqular scheduled meetings of the board and of its permanent committees
throughout the year and any additional meetings and od hoc committee meetings
are convened when required

Papers, Including minutes of board committees held since the previous board meeting
and performance reports, are circulated in advance of each meeting

There 1s an agreed procedure in place which altows directors to take independent
professional advice in the course of their duties and all directors have access to the
adwvice and senvices of the Company Secretary If a director has a concern over any
unresolved matter they may require the Company Secretary to minute that concern

In addtion to formal board meetings, the board attended a full day strateqy session
this year, where the board and executive management tearn together considered the
value proposition for Severn Trent and the potential areqs of future value creation
across the business Dunng the financial year, six ad hoc committee meetings of the
board were convered ta consider such matters as Severn Trent Plc’s preliminary and
intenm resutts and intenm management statements

Board attendance in 2012/13

Andrew Duff 7/7  Martin Lamb Y
Tony Ballance 77 Michoel McKeon 7
Dr Bernard Bulkin 7/7  Baroness Noakes "7
Richard Davey 7/7  Andy Smith 717
Gordon Fryett 77 Tory Wray 717
Martin Kane 7
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Governance

Institutional shareholders and analysts

The board recognises the importance of
representing and promoting the nterests of
its shareholders and that it 1s accountable to
shareholders for the performance and
actvities of the company

Presentations are made to shareholders and
analysts following the release of the intenm
and year end results. The Chief Executive
and Finance Director regularly meet
shareholders during the year The Chorman
and the senior independent non-executive
dwrector have also met shareholders
separately from executive directers and are
ovailable to meet shareholders if required
The board receves wntten feedback
following meetings with nstitutional
shareholders and moriters shareholder
actvity on o quarterly basis at its meetings

During the year we have undertaken an
investor audit which sets out to ascertain
both bondholders' and shareholders’ views
of us as a company, our strategy,
performance, and effectiveness of our
communications It alse ams to determine
our standing relative to our peers and to
the equity and debt markets as a whole
The results will be avalable early in the
2013114 fingnciat year

Board commuttees

We have established committees of the board to deal with specific Issues ar approvals,
as and when necessary

The four permanent commuittees of the board assist in the execution of its
responsibilites and the board has delegated some of its responsibilties to those
board committees The comrmittees assist the board by fulfiling therr roles and
responsibilities, focusing on therr specific actmvities, reporting to the board on decisions
and actions taken, and making any necessary recommendations

The terms of reference of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Committees
comply with the prowisions of the Governance Code, except as reparted on page 47,
and are availlable for mspection, together with the terrns of reference of the
Corporate Responsibility Committee, on our website (www severntrent com) or
may be obtained on request from the Company Secretary

The effectiveness of each of the committees has been reviewed dunng the year as
part of the mternal board review and the cormmittees have also considered therr terms
of reference dunng the year

Reports from the Chairmen of these committees are set out on pages 52 to 70 of
this report

The way we choose to behave
Code of Conduct ‘Daing the nght thing - The Severn Trent way’

Every day Severn Trent employees have to make choices about what they do and how
they do it Most of the time it 1s dear what the nght thing to do 1s, whether it 1s about
doing what 1s safe, doing the nght thing for customers, doing what is nght ethically -
and indeed what is nght legally

However, sometimes it 15 not soclear ‘Daing the nght thing - The Severn Trent way’
detalls the pnnaiples we work by This 1s our Code of Conduct and explains who we are,
what we stand for and how we work, it also tells our customers and business partners
that they can rely onus These principles apply to everyone in Severn Trent’s
businesses, no matter where in the world they are based They provide a common
and consistent framework for responsible business practices and set out the standards
we need to follow in our day to day actvities

During the year we have continued te roll out the Code of Conduct across the group to
make sure that everyone in the business understands what it 1s all about and upholds
our ethical standards  All employees are provided with a copy in therr local language as
part of their nduction Training sessions are also avallable and oll teams have been
encouraged to discuss it

Policies

The Code of Conduct is supported by 15 group policies and our behaviours model
Further details of these can be found on our website (www severntrent.corn)

Duning the year we have completed the annual review of the policies to ensure they
are fit for purpose In particular the Whustleblowing Policy has been refreshed and new
guidance on the process has been issued to assist those who may need to deal with
whistleblowing concerns New posters advertising the whistleblowing procedures
hove also been distributed throughout the business

Conflicts of interests
The board has a full process in place to authonise situational conflicts in accordance
with the prowisions of the Companies Act 2006

At every board meeting there is a standing agenda item at the beginning of the
meeting to consider and discuss whether any potential conflicts exist. If it does then
the relevant director does not participate in the discussion on that item

Anannual review of conflicts 1s comed out and 1s incorperated into the year end
process of venfying directors’ interests Half yearly reports are also made to the
board of all directors’ conflicts and directors are reminded from time to time of
their obligations

Interests

No director had a materal interest at any time dunng the year in any contract of
significance with the cormparny or any of its subsidiary undertakings




Governance

Retall sharehelder engagement strategy

The board has an active shareholder
engogement strategy, the main elements
of which are set out below

The annual report and accounts 1s the
principal means of communicating with
shareholders. The group has adopted
e-communications ds an alternative
method of sending company information
InMarch 2012 shareholders were
re-consulted as to therr preferred method
of recening company commurnications
Following the consultation, 54,856
sharehalders (82%) receive confirmation
that the annual report 1s avatlable to view
online, whilst 11,829 shareholders (18%})
continue to recerve a hard copy

Our website (www severntrent com)
contains on archive of annual reports
together with other information relevant
tonvestors This includes comprehensive
share price nformation, financial results,
company news and financiol catendars

The company offers a Dnvidend
Reinvestment Plan (DRIP) Details of the
DRIP are availlable on our website and
the website of Equiniti, our registrar

Shareholder networking programme

The arm of the programme 1s to offer retail

shareholders the opportunity to leam more
about the company, through site visits and
talking to staff

As part of our Shareholder Netwerking
Prograrmme, parbapants i October 2012 had
a choice to vist ether o waste water or dean
water ste These were hosted by Simon Cocks,
Waste Water Services Director and Andy
Smith, Director of Water Servces. Nineteen
partopants were taken te our Minworth
Sewoge Treatment Works (Bimminghamn) for
atour and presentation on renewable energy
Twenty-one parbapants were taken to
Carmpion Hills Water Treatment Works (Royal
Learnington Spa) for a tour then on to Sevem
Trent Water (Finharm) for a demonstration of
making a connection to o lve water mam and
a desplay of matenals used n the distribution
network. This was followed by both groups
wvsiting our operating centre in Covertry
Fosttve feedback wos gven onthe
organsation and contert with strng support
for the company continuing the programme,
both from shareholders and employees who
enjoyed the interest shown in their work.
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Shareholder engagement
Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the cornpany will be held at the Intemational Convention Centre,
Broad Street, Brringharm B1 2EA at 11am on Wednesday 17 July 2013

Presentations are made on the group’s activities, performance during the year and
an operationally focused presentation prior to the formol business of the meeting
The Chairmen of the Audit, Corporate Responsibility, Rernuneration and Nominations
Committees, together with all other directors, attend the AGM

The AGM gives shareholders an oppertunity to feedback to the company on
performance, management and the way we work in avery direct fashion, through
the way they vote Shareholders may atso meet informally with directors and
serior managerment before and ofter the meeting and ask formal questions
during the meeting

The board encourages shareholders to attend the company’s AGM and to exercise
their nght to vote The notice of meeting and related papers are sent to shareholders
at least 20 working days before the meeting Separate resolutions are proposed on
each substantiolly separate issue The poll results from the 2013 AGM will be made
availlable on our website after the meeting

The way we ensure our effectiveness
Induction

On joining the board, a director’s induction needs are evaluated ond then they are
provided with a comprehensive and personalised induction pack which includes
nformation on the group structure, the regulatory framework of the operating
businesses within the group, strategic plans, financidl reports and business plans
and nformation on our governance framewaork.

Meetings are arranged with members of the executve management team and with
external adwvisers who provide support to the retevant board committees on which
the directors may serve Visits to operational and office sites across the group and
management presentations are also arranged for directors joining the board and
subsequently throughout the year

Continuing professional development

The directors received updates throughout the year on matters such as changes to
best practice governance guidelines The directors also have access to professional
development provided by external bodies and our advisers

Continuing professional development requirements were considered as part of
the boord effectiveness review referred to below No additional requirerents
were identified

Performance and effectiveness reviews

An independent external review of the effectiveness of the board s conducted

every three years The last external review was carmed out in November 2011

In November 2012, the board commenced an intermal review of its effectveness and
the effectiveness of its key commuittees The review was led by the Chairman, assisted
by the Company Secretary and was in the form of a senes of confidential interviews
between each director, the Company Secretary and the Chairman

The board's strengths inctude a tugh quality of debate, relevant and cornplementary
collective skills and talents and an effective use of time The Audit, Corporate
Responsibility and Remuneration Commuittees were strong, effective and continued
to improve during the year

The review also considered progress made in the areas identified as requinng further
development in the Independent external review, camed out in the previous financial
year It conduded that good progress had been made with respect to the pnontisation
of strategic matters on board agendas

To become even rmore effective, the most recent board review identified the need to
continue to allocate time for consideration of strategic matters, improve comparative
peer performance analysis and, with regard to leodershup and succession planning,
continue to focus on developrnent of management below the Executive Cornmittee level
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Nominations Committee

Image removed

Andrew Duff
Chairman of the Nominations Committee

The main purpose of the Committee s to
assist the board by keeping the compaosition
of the board under review and conducting a
ngorous and transparent process when
making or renewing appointments of
drectors to the board 1t also adwises the
board on 1ssues of directors’ conflicts of
interest and independence The full termns of
reference for the Committee can be found on
our website (www severntrent com) and are
dlso avallable from the Compony Secretary

This report provides detalls of the role of the Nominations Committee and the work it
has undertaken during the year

The Committee keeps under review the balance of skills on the board and the
knowledge, expenence, length of service and performance of the directors It also
reviews their external interests with o view to identifying any actual, perceved or
potentiol conflicts of interests, nclucing the time availoble to cornmit to ther duties to
the company The results of these reviews are important when the board considers
succession planning and the election and reappointment of directors Members of the
Committee take no part in any discussions concerning thetr own circurmstances

The members of the Committee in 2012/13 were the non-executive directors of the
board and the Chief Executive, Tony Wray

Dunng the year the Committee considered the composition of the board, the board's
diversity policy, the board's effectveness review and the succession plan for the Chief
Executwe It also reviewed the strength and depth of talent and succession plonning

below Executive Committee level

In accordance with the requirements of the Governance Code, all members of the
board will seek re-election at the AGM in July 2013 In March 2013 the Commuttee
formally reviewed the performance, cantribution and commitment of each of the
directors retinng at this year's AGM and seeking reappointment, and supported and
recommended therr reappointment to the board The Committee has canfirmed that
each director continues to perform well both on an indvidual and coltective bass,
making a valuable conirbution to the board’s deliberations and demonstrating
commitment to the long term interests of the company

Nominations Committee attendance in 2012/13

Dr Bernard Bulkin 2/2  Martintamb 2/2
Richard Davey 2/2  Baroness Noakes 212
Andrew Duff 272 Tony Wray 212
Gordon Fryett 212

Eoch Committee meeting complied with the terms of reference In that o minimum
of five rmembers were in attendance, with the majonty being independent,
nen-executive directors




Govermnance Nominations Committee

Successton planning

When considenng new appointments to the
board, the Committee gversees the
preparation of a role specification that 1s
provided to an independent recruitrment
organisation retamned to conduct a global
search In addition to the specific skills,
knowledge and expenence deemed
necessary, the specification contains cntena
such as

+ a proven track record of creating
shareholder value,

» unquestioned integrity and a diversity of
psychological mindset,

+ g commitment to the highest standards of
governance,

* having the required time available to
devote to the job,

+ strategic mindset, an awareness of market
leadership, outstanding monitoring skills,

- a preparedness to question, challenge and
openly assess, and

+ an independent point of view
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Diversity

Further to the publication of the Davies Report, ‘Wormen on Boards’, In February 2011,
boards of FTSE 350 companies have been encouraged to promote grecter female
representation on corporate boards Guidance from the Financial Reporting Council has
also highlighted the importance of greater dwersity of psychological profile around the
board table

Severn Trent believes that a diverse and inclusive culture 1s a key factor inbeing a
successful business Severn Trent Plc shares the aspiration of the Davies Report to
premote greater fernale representation on listed company boards

As and when board appointment opportunities arise, we will make full use of the
procedures recommended by the Davies Report and by the Governance Code to
support this aspiration All board appointments will be based on ment and must be
in the interests of all stakeholders

As at 31 March 2013 and at the date of this report, we had one female member
on our board of 11 (representing 9%} and three female members out of 11 on the
Executive Committee (representing 27%) The total workforce gender split is 30%
fernale and 70% male

As we reported last year, we have conducted gender diversity research with women
employees in Severn Trent Water to understand what is importont to themin
developing careers at Severn Trent The research was designed so that the insights
provided would help us to improve polices and practices in developing women in
our arganisation

We plan to use the same methodology to explore ethnic diversity in the future, so we
can gain more instghts into this aspect of our workforce cornposition and the findings
will be exarmined by our Diversity Working Group

Graph removed

Andrew Duff
Charrman of the Nominations Committee
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Audit Committee

Image removed

Baroness Noakes DBE
Chawrman of the Audit Committee

The Committee assists the board In
discharging its responsibilibies for the
integrity of the company’s financiol
statements, the assessment of the
effectiveness of the systerns of nternal
controls and monitonng the effectiveness
and objectvity of the internal and external
auditors The role and the responsibilities of
the Commuttee are set out In written terms
of reference These can be found on our
website fwww severntrent.com) and are
also available from the Company Secretary

This report provides detalls of the role of the Audit Committee and the work it has
undertaken during the year

The members of the Committee are Baroness Noakes DBE (Chairman), Dr Bernard
Bulkin and Richard Devey whose expenence and background are set out on page 44
The board 1s sabisfied that Baroness Noakes end Richard Davey have recent and
relevant financial expenence and that all members of the Committee remain
independent

The members of the Committee receve updates in financial reporting and the
group’s regulatory framework in vanous forms throughout the year The Chawrman,
Chief Executive, Finance Director, Director of Internal Audit, Group Financial Controller
and the external auditors normally attend, by imatation, all meetings of the
Commuittee Other members of sentor management are also invited to attend

as appropriate The Committee regularly holds private discussions with both the
mternal and external auditors

In performing its duties, the Commuttee has access to the services of the Director of
Internal Audit, the Company Secretary and, if required, external professional advisers

The Cormmittee reports to the subsequent meeting of the board on the Committee’s
work It met five times in 2012/13 and its work focused on four key areas

» financial statements and accounting policies,

- nsk management and internal controls,

- oversight of internal and external cudit, and

+ the regulatory reporting cbligations of our subsiciary Severn Trent Water Limited

The Committee’s performance was included in the review of the board referred to on
page 51 No matters requinng action by the Committee arose from that review

Financal statements and accounting policies

The Committee looked carefully at those aspects of the finanoial stotements
which required significant accounting judgements or where there was estimation
uncertainty These areas are explaned in note 4 of the finanaal statements on
pages 88 and 89 The Commuttee paid particutar attention to

= whether further impaiments of the goodwill and intangible assets related to

businesses In Severn Trent Services were properly estmated,

whether the assumptions used to calculate the amount of the deficit in the group's

defined benefit pension schemes were reasonabte and in line with those used by

similar companies,

» the way in which dervative instrurents were accounted for and in particutar the
impact of terminatron options which resulted in the termination of three nterest
rate swaps dunng the year, and

= the amount of provisions held for tax labiliies which were still the subject of
discussion with the tax cuthorties

The Commuttee also examined the disclosure of items which are described as
exceptiondl in the consolidoted income statement.

The Committee reviewed the evdence and assumptions underpinning the use of the
going concern assumption in preparing the accounts and in making the statement
rmade in the Directors’ report that the company 1s a going concern

In reviewing the financiol statements, the Committee receves input from the
Disclosure Committee, which 1s chared by the Finance Director The work of the
Disclosure Committee 1s descnbed further on page 49

Delortte LLP (Deloitte) reported to the Commitiee on their review of the half year
intenm results and on ther cudt of the year end financial statements

Internal controls

The Comrmittee receves regular reports frorn Internal Audit in respect of their work on
internal controls and reviews management letters receved from the external auditors

The Cornrmittee reviewed the processes for and outputs from our Enterpnse Risk
Management process, through which the principal nsks and related controls are
identified The Committee discussed the approach to documenting nsk appetite and
prowiding guidance to nsk owners on the board’s tolerance for different types of risk
In addition, it monitored the ongoing development of our complionce and assurance
processes In respect of the key nsks




Govemance Audit Committee

Policy on the provision of
non-audit services

The company has approved a formal

policy on the provision of non-audit services
aimed at safeguarding and supporting the
independence and objectmty of the
external gudrtors

The policy sets out the approach to be taken
by the group when using the services of the
external audttors, including requinng that
certain services provided by the external
auditors are pre-approved by the Committee
or its Chairman

It defines the non-oudtt services that may
be provided by the external auditors and
separately sets out those non-audit services
which ore prohibited, since the mdependence
of the external auditars could be threatened

Non-gudit services where the external
auditers may be used include cudit refated
services required by statute or regulation,
tax comphance and tax planning advice,
due diligence on acquisitions and
disposals, services related to fraud,
corporate responsibility report reviews

and regulatory support.

The approval of the Committee or its
Chairman 1s always required If a non-oudit
service provided by the auditors 1s expected
to cost more than £100,000 or if non-audst
fees for the year would exceed the amount
of the qudit fee

Furthermore, the procurement of non-audit
sarvices will need to comply with the

Utidity Controcts Regulations and all services
requirernents over the current EC threshold
will have to be subject to tender
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The Committee reviews the procedures, systems and controls designed to prevent and
detect fraud and bribery and receves a regular log of incidents of fraud or bribery
which includes the actions taken to investigate and respond to the incidents

There were no matenal incidents dunng the year

The Committee also reviewed the group’s approach to IT continuity Given the
ncreasing dependency of the business on technology, this 1s an area of crucial
inportance ond further reviews will be camed out in the next year

Further details of our internal control framework can be found in the Directors’ report
on page 71

Internal Audit

The Director of Internal Audit and his team report on a day to day basis to managerment
on the effectiveness of the group’s systermns of internal controls and the adequacy of
these systerns to manage business risk and to safeguard the group’s assets and
resources This work1s summansed and reported to the Committee on a regular basis
and 15 a key element of the assurance that the Committee recewves on the risks and
controls in the group

The effectiveness of the Internal Audit function, its plans, level of resources and budget
are reviewed at least annually by the Committee The Directar of Internal Audit 1s free
to raise any 1ssues with the Commuttee or its Chairman at any time during the year

External auditors

Delortte were appointed auditors of the company in 2005, pursuant to a competitive
tender process Deloitte oudit all stgrificant subsidianes of the group Annuglly, the
Committee reviews the external cuditors’ audsit plan and reviews and assesses information
provided by them confirming therr ndependence and objectivity withun the context of
applicable regulatory requirements and professional standards The Committee also
reviews the auditors’ effectiveness, which involves assessment of the auditors by the
Commmuittee and key executives, and confirmation that the auditors meet minimum
standards of qualification, independence, expertise, effectiveness and commurication
These assessments are carned out prior to the Cornmittee reccrmending to the
board that the external auditors be proposed for reappointment at the AGM

The company does not currently have a policy of tendenng the external qudit at speaific
intervals but would nitiate a tender process if there were any concerns about the
quality of the audit or the ndependence and objectmity of the auditors In addition the
company will comply with the tendenng requirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Code 2012 which will require an audit tender no later than 2020 There are no
contractuat obligations that act to restrict the Committee’s choice of external auditors

Details of the amounts paid to Delortte for gudit and non-audrt services are provided
In note 7 to the accounts on page 93

Severn Trent Water Limited

The requlated activities carried out by Severn Trent Water Limited require two mam
reporting requiremments to Ofwat which are reviewed by the Committee on annuol
subrmission on Severn Trent Water bimited’s regulatory obligations, known as the
Annuol Regulatory Performance Report together with the Annual Regulatory
Complance Statement, and a staterent that underpins the custorner charges made
by Severn Trent Woter Limited, known as the Pnncipal Statement.

In March 2013 the Commuttee reviewed the assurance framework in place for the
Annual Regulatory Compliance Statement process [n Novernber 2012 the Committee
reviewed the assurance framework for the Prncipal Statement and the PR14 process

Deloitte make reports to Ofwat in respect of Severn Trent Water Limited's regulatory
accounts The Annual Regulatory Performance Report, which provides an overall
picture of company performance, covers many aspects which are not financial and
Severn Trent Water Lirmited appoints engineenng consultants, Atkins, to report on
those aspects The Committee receves reports from Delortte and Atkins on their wark
as part of its review of the Annual Regulatory Returns

Audit Committee attendance in 2012/13

Baroness Noakes 5/5  Richard Davey 5/5

Dr Bernard Bulkin 45
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Corporate Responsibility Committee

Image removed

Dr Bernard Bulkin
Chairrnan of the Corporate
Responsibility Cormnmittee

The Commmuttee provides guidance and
direction to the group’s Corporate
Responsibility (CR) programme, reviews
the group’s key non-financial nsks and
opportunities and monitors progress

The terms of reference for the Commuttee
can be found on our website

{www severntrent.com) and are also
available from the Company Secretary

The Committee reviews annually the
adequacy of the group’s formal
whistleblowing policy and procedures
which deal with allegations from employees
relating to breaches of the Code of Conduct
and reviews ot each of its meetings the
whistleblowing incident log

This report provides details of the role of the Corporate Responsibility (CRY Committee
and the work it has undertaken during the year

The members of the Comrittee are Dr Bernard Bullun (Chairman), Andrew Duff,
Gordon Fryett and Tony Wray

The purpose of the Commuittee is to provide board oversight of the management

of all non-financial nsks to the group This year we aligned the structure for our

CR frarework to ‘Doing the nght thing - The Severn Trent way’, our Code of Conduct.
This compnises nine key principles that we work to and provides a commen framework
for bath our businesses - regulated and non-regulated

1 Keeping everyone healthy and safe

Supporting ernployees’ nghts and diversity
Maintaining ethical and honest behaviour

Staying free from bribery and corruption

Keeping our communications open and responsible
Delvenng excellent customer service

Working within the community

Protecting our environment

Standing up for what’s nght

Within the nine principles of our CR frarmework, we have identified focus areas that
are critical to cur management of nisk and reputation These areas were determined
through stckeholder diclogue, nisk assessment and benchmarking within the

water industry and the FTSE 100 and are reviewed annually

The nine principles of our Code of Conduct provide the basis for the forward agenda of
the Committee Dunng the year the Committee has recewved papers on key business
programmes and strategies linked to the terms of reference of the Committee

These included water efficency, supply chain management, environmental
management systems, brand and reputation, occupational health, employee
volunteening, vulnerable customers, employee satisfaction and diversity In oddition,
the Committee responds to emerging issues ond received updates on disability access
and pollutions performance

The Committee also receved reports from Internal Audit with respect to their work
on non-financial nisk inked to the terms of reference of the Committee and regutar
updates on health, safety and environmental performance and whistleblowing

Within Severr Trent Water we have an effective performance management systermn
place through our core business KPIs These are overseen by the Executive Commuttee
and the board Many of the business KPIs relate directly to our CR focus areas and
therefore contrbute significantly to our CR performance We report internally on our
performance through both the Executive Committee and the Commuttee Externally,
we report through a number of channels incdluding our Annual Regulatory Returns to
Ofwat, our websites and our annual report and accounts

O 00~ O W

Corporate Responsibility Committee attendance in 2012/13

Dr Bernard Bulkin 3/3  Gordon Fryett 3
Andrew Duff 3/3  Tony Wray 33
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Remuneration Committee
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Richard Davey

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

The Committee determines, on behalf of
the board, the company’s policy on the
remnunergtion of executive directors, other
members of the Executive Committee and
the Charman of the board The Committee
determines the total remuneration
packages and contractual terms and
conditions for these individuals The policy
framework for remunerating all serior
executive managers Is consistent with the
approach taken for executve directors

The members of the Commmittee during the
year were Dr Bernard Butkin, Richard Davey
{Committee Chairmany} and Martin Lamnb all
of whorn are independent non-executive
drwectors Andrew Duff, the company
Charrman, who was independent on his
appontment to the board, 1s also a
member Accordingly, the compasition of
the Committee 1s in accordance with the
Governance Code

Dear Shareholder

This report sets out the remuneration policy for the directors of Severn Trent Pic and
discloses the amounts paid to them in the year ended 31 March 2013

The UK Government has tabled proposals to reform the way directors’ remuneration s
voted upon and reported The new legslative requirements will not come into effect
until October 2013 Although not mandatery for this report, the Commuttee has
sought to comply with the new requirements where procticable and where minimal!
duplication with current reporting standards occurs Therefore, this report has been
split into two sections, a Policy report which sets out the remuneration policy of the
executive and non-executive directors and an Implementation report which discloses
how the current remuneration policy has been implemented in the year ended

31 March 2013 We will be seeking your support for both parts of the report by way of
a single advisory vote at the forthcoming AGM on 17 July 2013

The remuneration policy for senior executives s set with close regard to the comparny's
four key focus areas and nsk management.

Key focus Remuneration policy

Customer = Customer focused KPIs form q substantial part of the annual
- detvening quality  bonus scorecard

services at prices - o general policy is to position fixed pay around the market

c‘#t%mers can median to ensure that remuneration remains affordable

artor * Return on Regulatory Capital Value (RoRCV) targets within the
Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and financiol based KPIs wathin
the annual bonus are set with close regard to Ofwat’s Final
Determination, ensuring that we closely manage our
performance within the regulatery imits

Employee + Insetting directors’ pay the Committee 1s sensitive to pay and
-investinginthe  conditions in the workforce generally

nght peaple with .- qiacted KPis for the annuat banus include health safety and
the night skils well-being and employee engagement.

» HMRC approved share plans {all-employee Share Incentive Plan
{SIP) and Sharesave) are operated annually for Severn Trent
Water (STW) UK based executves and employees Severn Trent
Services (STS) employees are eligible to participate inthe
Sharesave only given the SIF relates to STW performance

Ernvironment = Enmwronmental KPIs are included within the annual bonus for

- reducing all employees, nduding directors

p°“Ut'°'f‘ andOur . Tha Compmittee can overnde the formulaic bonus outturn if there
carbon footprnt s 4 ggnificant envirenmental issue

Financial + Avarety of financial KPIs are used within the annual borus

- making our scorecard to help ensure our financial performance 1s optirrused
business - Qutturn under the LTIP 1s determined by the achievement of
uttrotétrve to RoRCV against the Ofwat Final Determination Payrment will not
Investors

be made if performance 1s below the RoRCV target set by Ofwat,
Relative total shareholder return (TSR) 15 used to measure
performance tn the Share Matching Plan to reward executives for
Severn Trent outperforming a peer group of companies in the
stock market.

.
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Governance Remuneration Committee

Link between pay and Severn Trent performance in 2012/13

Annual bonus payments to executive directors were between 5% and 115% of bose salary, reflecting a strong year of operational
performance of the business Payments under the LTIP vested at 57 5% of the maximum award gvallable, reflecting a 43 3%
increase in share pnce over the three years to 31 March 2013 and TSR performance above median when compared to the

FTSE 51-150 {our TSR benchmark group for the 2010 LTIP award)

Key policy developments for 2013/14
There are no matenal changes to the remuneration policy or Committee processes proposed for 2013/14

The Committee continues to monitor policy to ensure that it is fit for purpose and aligned with shareholders’ interests, corporate
governance and all employee remuneration policies Therefore, in 2013, the Committee intends to examine whether the current
long term incentives can be simplified, assess whether sufficient weighting is given to long term performance and to review
drectors’ service contracts The Cormmittee will consult with major shareholders over the course of the next financial year regarding
any changes Any amendments to the revised remuneration policy will be effective from 1 April 2014 and will be voted upon under
the new BIS regulations at the 2014 AGM

Richard Davey
Charrman of the Remuneration Committee

[ Mﬁi\w\/c\/
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Governance Remuneration Commmittee

Policy report
This part of the Directors’ remuneration report sets out the remuneratton policy for the company with effect from 1 April 2013

Setting the remuneration policy

Each year, the Committee reviews the remuneration policy for executive directors and other senior executive managers, taking into
account both the external market and the company’s strategic objectives over the short and the medium term Furthermore, there
15 a clear ink between all-employee remuneration polices and those operated ot a senior executive level

The Committee addresses the need to balance nsk and reward The Committee continues to monitor the vanable poy arrangements
for the executive directors and ather mernbers of the Executive Cornmittee to take account of the nsk profie of the company
ensurng sustainability and how this 1s reflected in variable remuneration The Cornmittee believes that the schernes are appropriately
managed and that the choice of performance measures and targets does not encourage undue risk taking by the executives The
schemes incorporate a range of internal and external performance metrics, measuring both operational and finanail performance
providing a rounded assessment of averall company performance

Linkage to oll employee pay

The Committee addresses the need to ensure that changes in senior executive remuneration are kept in ine with workforce pay
Whilst it has not set a specific policy on the relationship between executive directors’ pay and thot of the rest of the workforce, it
aims to ensure that executive salary movement is appropnately aligned to the rest of the workforce and specifically considers this
carefully as part of its deciston making process Furthermore, bonus schemes operate on a consistent basis throughout Severn Trent
{using the same balanced scorecard) and all UK employees may participate in the Sharesave and Share Incentive Plan

Shareholder views

The Committee engages proactively with the compary's major shareholders, and takes seriously therr views When any matenal
changes are made to the remuneration policy, the Commuttee Charman will inform, and where appropriate, meet major
shareholders in advance

Remuneration policy for the executive directors

The remuneration policy for executive directors compnises the following elements

base salary,
annual bonus scheme,
long term incentive schermes, and

pensicn and benefits
The following table sets out a summuary of each element of the executive directors’ remuneration packages
Tony Ballance Martin Kane Andy Smith
Tony Wray Michael McKeon Drrector, Strategy CEO - Severn Director of
Component Chief Executive Finance Director and Regulation Trent Services Water Services
Base salary from £575,000 £466,800 £211,300 £256,900 £274,600
1 July 2013
Ontarget annual 60% 60% 60% 60% 60%
bonus (% of salary)
Maximum annual 120% 120% 120% 120% 120%
bonus (% of salary) ) )
% of bonus earned 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%
deferred into shares )
Annual LTIP award 70% 50% 50% 50% 50%
(% of salary) ) )
SMP award - 051 051 051 051 051
maximum ratio of
matching shares to
deferred shares )
Pension Cash supplement of Cash supplement of Defined contribution  Cash supplement of  Final salary defined
arrangement 40% of base salary  40% of base salary scheme, 30% of bose salary benefit scheme
contnbutions of with cash
30% of base salary supplement of 40%
of base salary above
) the salary cop
Benefits Acar dllowance of £15,000 per annurn, family level pnivate medical insurance, life assurance worth 6 x

base salary and an incapacity benefits scheme
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Governance Remuneration Committee

Bose salary

Base salaries for indvidual directors are reviewed annually by the Committee and take effect from 1 July Solanes are set with
reference to iIndmidual performance, experience and contribution, together with developments in the relevant employment market
{having regard to the market medion for smilar roles in publicly quoted companies of a comparable size and practice in other water
companies) and intermnal relativities

The Committee gives due consideration to the current econormic cimate, current market practice and affordability regarding
executive salary reviews and the broader employee salary review policy at the company

The Committee has reviewed salanes for 2013/2014 and has determined that the base salaries for alt executive directors will be
Increased by 2 5% from 1 July 2013 This level of increase 15 in line with the average increase across the rest of the company

Annual Bonus Scherme

Executive directors are eligible for annual bonuses te encourage improved performance, with targets established by the Commuttee
to align directors’ interests with shareholders’ interests The maximum annual bonus opportunity for oll executve directors 15 120%
of solary For the actuevernent of target performance (which requires satisfaction of challenging goals), 60% of salary could be
earned All annual bonus payments are non-pensionable

Executive directors’ bonuses are determined by performance ogainst a balanced scorecard of measures with their indwidual
contribution assessed through personal objectives

Half of any bonus paid 1s deferred into shares and held for three years following payment If the executive 1s summanly dismissed
without notice under his/fher employment contract then the deferred bonuses are forfeited In all other cases of cessation of
employment the deferred bonuses are not lost and the shares are automatically released on the deoling day ofter the cessation
of employment.

Severn Trent continues to operate a dawback provision
Details of the bonus outturn for 2012/13 are shown in the Implementation report on pages 64 and &5
Long term incentives
The executve directors are elgible to participate i two long term incentive schemes a) LTIP; and b) a Share Matching Plan (SMP)
a) LTIP
The LTIP was approved by shareholders at the 2005 AGM Under the LTIP, annual conditionat awards of performance shares

may be made te executive directors and senior staff, up to an annual maximum of 125% of base salary The policy level of LTIP
awards 1s 70% of base salary for the Chief Executive and 50% of base salary for other directors

RoRCY will remain as the performance metnc for the 2013 LTIP This measure 1s consistent with the measure used by Ofwat in
setting custamer prices as part of the Fina! Determination (the process whereby Ofwat sets the level of prices we con charge
customers) and reflects the efficiency of earnings rather than smply being an absolute measure of profit and 15 venfied and
published as part of the Annual Regulatory Perforrmance Report. The Committee believes that the use of RoRCVY provides a strong
alignment between the long term financial and operational performance of the group and the reward delwered to
management

Further information with regards to the performance of the 2009 and 2010 LTIP can be found in the Implementation report on
page 67, together with the vesting schedule
b) smp
Under the SMP, executive directors can receive up to one matching share for each share deferred under the annual bonus
plan The current policy is that they receive 0 5 matching share for each share deferred Awards will norrmally vest as soonas the

Committee determines that the performance condrions have been met provided that the partiapant remaimns in employment at
the end of the three year penod

Awards under the SMP are subject to a relatve TSR measure over three distinct performance penods However, awards will not
normally vest to particpants until the third anniversary of grant. The performance condition requires the company’s TSR 15
measured relative to those companies ranked 51-150 in the FTSE Index by market copitalisation {excluding investment
trusts) This 1s considered to be the most suitable comparator group since the number of comparable regulated companies
against which to compare the company’s performance remains too small to enable a meaningful analysis The FTSE
51-150 comparator group allows for the company performance to be measured against a broader market without any one
sector overly impacting the group In addition for awards to vest, the Committee must be satisfied that the TSR s reflective of
the company’s undertlying performaonce

At the trme of release participants will receve the value of the dwvidends paid on vested shares over the performance penod
The TSR vesting schedule and detal of shares vested dunng the penod reported are shown in the Implernentation report
The ptan was ntroduced in 2010 with the first awards due to vest this year
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Pension

Severn Trent executive directors receive retirement benefits from a vanety of legocy pension arrangements including defined
benefit, defined contribution (DC), payments made direct to persanal plans and cash inlieu However, whilst for legacy reasons the
executive directors participate in a varety of different arrangements, the policy for employer contributions for new executive
directors 1s 25% of salary If the value of the penston contribution is above the HMRC Annual Allowance or Lifetime Allowance
executive directors will receve cash in leu

Details of the specific pension arrangements implemented in the year for each executive director are detarled in the
Implementation report

Reward scenaros

The charts below show how the composition of each of the executive directors’ remuneration packoges varies at different levels
of performance achievernent Target performance assumes a 60% of salary bonus, a 0 25 to 1 match on the related SMP award

and 50% vesting under the LTIP award for a single year Maximum performance assumes full payment of borus and full vesting
of the SMP and LTIP awards No assumptions have been made as to share price growth over the vesting peniod

Graph Removed
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Executive service contracts

The Remuneration Committee reviews the contractual terrns for executive directors to ensure that these reflect best practice
and for new joiners a new model contract was introduced duning 2012 This provides for termination provisions that compnse
a maximum of 12 months’ salary ond fixed benefits only

The remuneration related elements of the current contracts for executive directors are shown in the table below

Prowision Policy

Notice peniod 12 months from either party

Termination Theoretical maximum payment in the case of redundancy or termination in breach of the agreement by the
payment company of 175% of base salary In determining actual payouts, the Comimittee has a duty to take into

account the following

- a reduction of up to 10% can be made ot the Committee’s sole discretion (1 e lowenng the payout to
157 5% of salary), and

- an explict clause in the contract stating that the company shall not be required to reward poor performance

The value of any payrment will not indude the release of awards which have been made under any share plans

The plans contan separate provisions regarding the tregtment of leavers in ine with best practice guidelines
Mitigation Any termination payment will not be made automatically but will be subject to both phasing and mitigation

(inctuding offset against any earnings from new employment) unless, in the circumstances, the Committee

considers it appropnate to achieve a dean break through payment of a lump sum, n which case it will require

some discount for early payment

Change of control  There are no specific contractuat payments or benefits which weuld be trnggered in the event of a change in
control of the company

Contract dates Executve directors Date of current agreement Date of appaintment to Severn Trent
Tony Wray 20 May 2008 7 March 2005
Michael McKeon 6 December 2005 13 December 2005
Tony Ballance 2 June 2008 23 Juty 2005
Martin Kene 1 January 2012 10 November 1575
Andy Smith 2 June 2008 1 January 2005

Personal shareholdings

The company operates shareholding guidelines under which executive directors are expected te buld and maintain a shareholding
in the company The Chief Executive 1s expected to build and maintain a holding of shares to the value of 15 x base salary and other
executive directors 1 x base salary Executive directors are expected to retain all of the net of tax number of shares they receive
through the LTIP, SMP and other share-based plans until the shareholding guidelines have been met. Details of the current
shareholdings of the directors are set out on page 66

Extemnat directorships

Executive directors are permitted to take on external non-executive directorships, though normally only one other FTSE 100
appointment In order to avord any conflicts of interest, all such appointments are subject to the approval of the
Nominations Committee Executive directors are normally only permitted to retain the fees ansing frorm one such
appointment External non-executive appointments help to brng a further external perspective to the group and help in
the development of key ndviduals’ experience

Michael McKeon was appointed as a non-executive director of The Merchants Trust Plc on 1 May 2008 and in respect of the
appointment for the year ended 31 March 2013 he was pad fees of £23,458

Tony Wray was appointed as a non-executive director of Grainger plc on 24 Octaber 2011 and in respect of the appeintment for the
year ended 31 March 2013 has been paid fees of £41,250

Both Michael McKeon and Tany Wray retained their respective fees in accordance with the above policy
No other executive directors currently hold ary external fee earning non-executive directorships
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Chairman and non-executive directors

The remuneration policy for non-executive directors, other than the Charrman, I1s deterrmined by the board, within the bimits set out
in the articles of association A single fee including such rmemberships 1s paid, with edditiond! fees paid for the senior independent
drrector and chairmanship of the board committees The Charman's fee 1s reviewed annually by the Committee (without the
Chairman present) He recenves a single fee of £250,000 to cover oll his board duties

The current fee levels for the non-executive directors are set out in the table below and rermnain at 2012 fee levels

Fees
Base fee pad to all non-executive directors £50,000
Supplementary fees
- Senior ndependent director i £10,000
- Audit Cornmittee Chairman £15,000
- Remuneraticn Committee Charrman f1 S,OOd
- Corporate Responsibility Committee Chairman £13,00(5
Non-executive directors normally serve terms of three years They do not have service contracts Instead they are engaged
by letters of appointment which are terrninable by either party with no notice period and ne compensation in the event of
such terruination

Iretial appointment Current cppointrment Current expiry date

Or Bernard Bulkin 1 January 2006 1 January 2012 31 December 2014
Richard Davey 1 Jonuary 2006 1 January 2012 31 Decermnber 2014
Andrew Duff {Chairman) 10 May 2010 10May 2013 9 May 2016
Gordon Fryett 1 July 2009 1 July 2012 30 June 2015
Martin Lamb 29 February 2008 1March 2011 28 February 2014
Baroness Noakes 29 February 2008 1 March 2011 28 February 2014
All of the directors are subject to reappointment ot the 2013 AGM
Implementation report
Membership of the Remuneration Committee
The merrbers of the Commuttee are listed in the table below All are independent non-executive directors, as defined under the
Govemnance Code, with the exception of the company Chaiman who was independent on his appointment.
Durning the year ended 31 March 2013, the Commuttee met five times to discuss key remuneration issues ansing, the review and
operation of the company’s remuneration policy and market updates by its adwvisers.
Committee attendance in 2012/13
Richard Davey 5/5  DrBermard Bulkin 5/5
Andrew Duff 5/5 Martin Lamb 4/5

With the exception of the company Charman, the Committee members have no personal financial interest, other than as
shareholders, in the matters to be decded

Extemal advisers

To ensure that the company's remuneration practices are market competitive, the Commmittee has access to detailed
externd advice from expenenced speaalist consultants

New Bndge Street (a trading name cf Aon Hewitt Limited) is the independent adwiser to the Committee Nerther Aon Hewitt
Limited nor any other part of Aon plc (Aon Hewntt’s parent company) provided other seruces to the company dunng the year
Dunng 2012/2013, the Committee carned out a review of its advisers, and reappointed New Bridge Street

The Chief Executive (Tony Wray), the Director of Human Resources (Evelyn Dickey) and the General Manager of Reward and Pensions
(Richard Golletly) ond New Bridge Street clso attended the Committee meetings to provide advice and respond to specfic questions
Such attendances specffically exduded any matter concerning ther own remuneration The Company Secretary, Bronagh Kennedy,
Is secretary to the Committee

The total fees paid to New Bndge Street in respect of its services to the Committee dunng the year were £130,799 {excluding VAT)
The fees charged for major projects are normally negotiated in advance of any major project being undertaken However, an
element of the fees relate to sundry ongoing adwvice, 0 line with New Bridge Street’s role to provide ongoing support throughout
the Committee over the entire remuneration year and are predominantly charged on a ‘time spent’ basis New Bndge Street s o
signatory to the Remuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct

UONDULLGIUI LG SILSLLINOS joruouy Auodwo)  SJUSLUSINIS joDUDLY dNIE)  SDUDLLIBACO  MBIAGI SSSUISNE MBLJBAD

£107 SIUNCODY PU Loday [ONULY  Jjd JURIL Wanas



64

Governance Remuneration Committee

The text and tables that follow comprise the auditable part of the Directors’ remuneration report, being the information required
by the UKLA Listing Rules 986 and 988

Ditectors’ emoluments

Total Totat

201272013 Total 2011/2012

Annual Anrwal before DC incuding DC including DC

Basicsalary  Benefits bonus bonus pensicn  DC pension pension pension

and fees n kind® cosh®  deferred® Other™ contributions contnbutions contributions contnbutions

{£7000) {£'000) (£000) (£'000) (£'000) (£°000) (£'000) (£'000) (£000)

Dr Bernard Bulkin 630 - - - - 630 - 630 594
Richard Davey 750 - - - 03 753 - 753 714
Andrew Duff 2500 - - - - 2500 - 2500 2500
Gordon Fryett 500 - - - - 500 - 500 464
Martin Lamb 500 - - - - 500 - 500 464
Baroness Noakes 650 - - - 03 653 - 653 586
Tony Ballance 1985 15 979 979 15¢ 4108 728 4836 3953
Martin Kane 2508 494 1440 1440 1668 7550 - 7550 5014
Michgel McKeon 45272 15 2231 2231 196 4 1,096 3 - 1,0963 8798
Andy Smith 2568 15 1269 1269 667 5788 - 5788 4665
Tony Wray 5524 15 2732 2732 2383 1,3386 - 1,3386 1,0349
Total 2,2637 554 8651 8651 6838 47331 728 48059 38101

Footnote-

) The figure shown for Mortin Kane 15 lorgely representative of hus US cost of Inmng expenses, {occommodation £22,799, UK ond US prvote medical insusance £10,605,
vehiele costs £5,858, ar fares £2,662, tax advice £7,390 ond flexible benefits £71 00

{i}) The directors recesve 50% of thewr annual bonus award in cosh and 50% in shares. The amounts shown in the table have been mode in respect of 2012/13 performance
Outstanding unrelegsed annual bonus scheme awards are shewn as nor-benefioal Interests i the table of directors’ share interests and in the deferred bonus oward table

() Other emoluments include experses chargeable to ncome tax, car allowances, troved ollowances, telephone allowarices, and amounts pord in beu of persion contnbubons,
Included in other emoluments arer
- fichord Davey expenses £333 50
- Baroness Noakes expenses £264 50
- Tony Bollance car allowonce £15,000
- Martn Kone pension supplement £75,180, car allowance £15,000, US disturbance allowance and utlity costs £32,309, and compensaton for UK tax suffered
onUS benefits £44,270
- Michael McKeon pension supplernent £181,270, cor allowonce £15,000 and o telephone altewonce £112 68
~ Andy Srmith pension suppterment £51,670 and car cllowance £15,000
- Tony Wray pension supplement £223,300 and £15,000 cor allowance

Details of vanable pay earned in the year
Annual bonus plan outtum - 2012/13

In the 2012/13 financial year, the Chief Executive ond Finance Director had (i} 80% of their bonus outtumn based on the
performance of Severn Trent Water, {n) 10% based on the performance of Severn Trent Services and (i) 10% based on personal
contribution The remaining executive directors with the exception of the Chief Executive Officer, Severn Trent Serwices, had 90% of
their bonus outturn attributed to the performance of Severn Trent Water and 10% based on personal performance

The Chuef Executive Officer, Severn Trent Services had 70% of his bonus inked to the performance of Sevemn Trent Services, 10%
inked to the performance of Sevemn Trent Water and 20% against personal contnbution

1} Severn Trent Water

The bonus outturn in respect of Severn Trent Water performance was operated by reference to a balanced scorecard of measures,
based on 10 of the company’s 16 KPIs {shown on page 139) The Committee believes that the use of the selected 10 Severn Trent
Water KPIs continues to be both an effective and challenging annual bonus metric and meets the needs of the business The bonus
entitlernent wos determined by reference to the aggregate number of points awarded across all the KPIs The targets taken
together are considered by the board to have animpact on the longer term financial performance of the corpany and a number
of them are reported to Gfwat.




65

Governance Remuneration Committee

A defirition of each KPT is listed below

Key area Objectve Key Perforrnance Indicotors

Employee Provide a safe working environment KPI 1 Lost time incidents per 100,000 hrs worked
Develop a confident ond productive workforce KPI 2 Employee motwvation

Customer Quality nteraction with the custorner KPL 4 Service Incentrve Mecharism - Qualitative

KPI 5 Service Incentive Mechanism - Quantitative
KPI 7 Serviceabllity - Waste
KPI 8 Serviceability - Water

Financial Asset base enhancement KPI 9 Capital Expenditure (net) versus Final
Determination ~ % outperformance
Management of cost base KPI11  Operating Expenditure versus Final Deterrnination
- % outperformance
Environment Minimise environmental impact KPI112  Pollution inadents {cat 1, 2 and 3)

KPI16 Leakage Mlfd - Post MLE

Each KPI has 100 target points, 130 stretch points and are uncapped For executive directors to be awarded the maxirnmum bonus
available they are required to achieve 1,300 oggregate points During the year 7 of the 10 KPIs exceeded the stretch level of
performance After examining the overall performance and indicative bonus outturn the Committee deterrnined that each of the
7 KPIs should be capped at the level of stretch performance As a consequence the bonus awarded for the Severn Trent Water
portion of the annual bonus was 77 7% of its bonus element maximurn, representing a strong performanice in the year and
continues the positive progressive trend i the outturn of the KPIs The chart below shows the points owarded by the Committee
for bonus purposes under each of the 10 KPIs in relation to the 2012/13 annual bonus scheme and the effect of capping of each
KPI at stretch performance

Graph Remowved

Capital expenditure {Capex) 1s measured annually and over the five year AMP penod The directors are incentivised to outperform
the annual Capex target, however, this year the annual target was not outperformed and therefore zero points were achieved
Severn Trent Water remains on track to meet ts five year Capex target at the end of the AMP

1) Severn Trent Services

A propertion of the bonus opportunity for the Chief Executive (10%), Finance Director {10%) and Chief Executive of Severn Trent
Services (70%) was measured agamnst the performance of Severn Trent Services Performance was measured against the profit
before interest and tax {PBIT) {before exceptional iterns) and the return on invested caprtal (ROIC) of Severn Trent Services A number
of the personat objectives set for the directors named above also relate to the performance of Severn Trent Services Following a
strong year of performance, the PBIT and RCIC targets were met in full and the bonus award for this element of the ptan will pay
out at the maximum

) Personal contribution

All directors had 10% of their bonus opportunity measured against personal objectives, with the exception of the Chief Executive
of Severn Trent Services who had 20% Performance against personal objectives in the year was strong with directors recening
between 90% and 96% of the maximum bonus opportunity avallabte under this element of the annual bonus plan

The Cornrmittee has reviewed the opergtion of the annual bonus plan over the year and concluded that it shoutd operate on
a similar basis for 2013/2014
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Directors’ pension provisions

Tony Wray and Michael McKeon receve a salary supplement of 40% of base salary in lieu of future pension provision and
Martin Kane recewves 30% of salary

Tony Ballance 1s a member of the Severn Trent Pension Scherme (Pension Choices section} which is one of the company’s defined

contribution schemes He currently contnbutes 3% of salary and the company contributes 30%, plus a further 2 5% in respect of

death in service and ill health benefits The normal retirement age for the scheme 1s 65 although retrrement prior to 65 1s possible
with the consent of the company

Andy Smith participates in the Severn Trent Pension Scheme which will dose in 2015 The scheme is a funded HMRC registered final
salary occupational pension scheme which provides

+ anormal retirerment age of 60 years,

+ anoverall pension at normal retirement age of two thirds of final pensionable salary, which for executive directors is defined as
base salary only, subject to the completion of 20 years’ pensionable service and member contnbutions of 6%,

= life cover of 4 x pensionable earnings,

- a pensicn payable n the event of retirernent on grounds of ill health, and

« adependant’s pension on death of two thirds of the member's pension

Andy Smith participates up to the level of the scherne specific earnings cap whichin 2012/13 was £137,400 He s provided with a
cash supplement in lieu of pension entitlemment above this scherne cap at 40% of his salary Early retirement 1s available after the
age of 55 with the consent of the company, subject to actuanal reduction, other than in the case of incapacity

Detals of directars’ interests in defined benefit pension schermes

Increase Iin Increasein  Transfer value

Service accrued  Transfervaolue Transfervalue  transfer value of accrued

completed in Accrued Increase In pension durng of accrued ofaccrued  over the year benefits net of

years (includng  pensionat 31 accrued pension the yeor {net of pension at pension at net of directors’ drectors'

transferredin . March 2013 duning the year inflation) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 contnbutions  contnbutions

Nome service credits) {£p0) {£pa) (£pa) (£000) (£000) {£'000) (£°000}
Andy Srnith 8 37,769 6,452’ 5,450 6808 4933 1793 1081
Tony Wray 6 29,818 3’*2 (596) 5115 4243 872 60
Martin Kane 35 149,113 14,340 10,027 2,7489 21661 5828 264 4

Notes
Accrued pension figures and tronsfer value calculations provided by Towers Wotson

The transfer volue basis has been updated since the last yeor end. Transfer values quoted above reflect the transfer value basts that was in force ot the bme of the accrued persion
colcutabon The impact of the chamge in methodology wos to wicrease the transfer volue at 31 March 2013 walue os follows, Andy Srrvth £23,400, Tory Wiray £17,100, Marbn Kone £85,300

Mr Wiy ceased to contribute to the scherme from 31 Decernber 2011 At this dote he become a deferred pensioner of the scheme and stopped oceruing pensionable sernce
Towers Watson have colculated fis accrued pension and Finol Pensionoble Salary as ot 31 Decemnber 2011 In addition, Towers Watson hove calculated hes transfer value as at
31 March 2013 allowing for deferred revaluation to this date

Inflaton figure used In respect of year 1s February 2013 (3 2%} os the lotest available figure prior to the yeor end This approach is consistent wath the pror year
Directors’ share interests

The directors of the company at 31 March 2013 and therr beneficial interests in the shares of the company were as follows
1) Beneficial holdings and outstarnding deferred shares

At 1 Apnl 2012 nurnber of At 31 March 2013 number of At 22 May 2013 number of
ordinary 97 Vhsep shares each ordinary 97 /p shares each ordinary 97 ¥hsp shares each
Beneficial Non-benefioial! Benefical Non-beneficial! Beneficial Non-beneficial!

Chairman and other non-executive directors
Dr Bernard Bulkin 554 - 554 - 554 -
Richard Davey 588 - 588 - 588 -
Andrew Duff (chairman) 3,500 - 3,500 - 3,500 -
Martin Larmb 3,012 - 3,012 - 3,012 -
Baroness Noakes 4018 - 4018 - 4,018 -
Gordon Fryett 1,064 - 1,149 - 1,149 -

Executive directors

Tony Ballance 4218 13,544 9,172 11,317 9,172 11,317
Martin Kane? 11,162 15,678 16,225 13,759 16,674 13,759
Michael McKeon 8,168 32,574 20,302 25,601 20,302 25,601
Andy Smith 5,514 19,333 16,051 15,364 16,051 15,364
Tony Wray? 13,429 35,453 26,419 29,733 27,542 25,733

1 Norvberefiogl holdings ore yet to be released condiuonally held under the Annue Bonus Scheme, to which directors become uncondiuonally entitied on the thrd anniversary of grant.
2 Martin Kane acquired 449 shares on 1 May 2013, with o market prce of 1,823p per share, following the exarcise of his 2010 three year Sharesave scheme option
3 Tony Wray acquired 1,123 shares on 1 May 2013, with o market price of 1,823p per shore, following the exercise of brs 2010 three year Sharesave scherme option




Govemnance Remuneration Committee

i) Long Term Incentve Plan
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The executive directors have further interests in the company’s erdinary shares of 97 /15 p each by wrtue of having receved
contingent awards of shares under the LTIP The LTIP operates on a three year rolling basis Awards do not vest until they have been
held in trust for three years ond specific perfarmance cntena have been satisfied The Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust
1s operated in conjunction with the LTIP Executive directors have a technical interest in 395,749 shares held by the Sevemn Trent
Ernployee Share Ownership Trust. The individual interests, for the executive directors, which represent the maximum oggregate

number of shares to which each indndual could become entitled, are as follows

Maximurm

outstanding awards

Awards granted Maximum award Awards vested Awards lapsed asat 31 March 2013

Tony Ballance 7 July 2009 7,405 2,103 5,302 -
21 June 2010 6,803 - - 6,803

22 June 2011 6,525 - - 6,525

19 June 2012 5,741 - - 5,741

Martin Kane 7 July 2009 8,154 2,315 5,839 -
21 June 2010 8,504 - - 8,504

22 June 2011 7,121 - - 7,121

19 June 2012 7,119 - - 7,119

Michael McKeon 7 July 2009 18,733 5320 13,413 -
21 June 2010 17,211 - - 17,211

22 June 2011 14,411 - - 14,411

19 June 2012 12,684 - - 12,684

Andy Smith 7 July 2009 11,019 3,129 7,890 -
21 June 2010 10,124 - - 10,124

22 June 2011 8,477 - - 8,477

19 June 2012 7,460 - - 7,460

Tony Wray 7 July 2009 27,769 7,886 19,383 -
21 June 2010 25,512 - - 25,512

22 June 2011 23271 - - 23,271

19 June 2012 21,875 - - 21,875

Market price on the date of the 2012 award was £17 49 (19 June 2012)

The LTIP awords mode in 2009 and 2010 were subject to TSR performance, measured relative to those companies ranked 51-150
in the FTSE by market capitalsation (excluding investrment trusts) At median performance, 25% of awards vest and 100% vest for
performance at or above the upper quartile In addition, for awards to vest, the Committee must be satisfied that the company’s
TSR 15 reflectve of the company’s underlying performance The 2009 award ended its TSR performance pencd on 31 March 2012
and vested at 28 4% The market pnce on the date of vesting {1 June 2012) of the 2009 award was £17 60 The 2010 award ended
its TSR performance perod on 31 March 2013 and will vest at 57 5%

The perfarmance conditions for the LTIP awards made in 2011 and 2012 are based on Return on Regulatory Capital Value (RoRCV)
A sliding scale of targets 1s used, inked to outperformance of the Ofwat Final Determination shown graphically below

Graph removed
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Thts vesting schedule 15 set so as to ensure that executives are appropriately rewarded for performance in excess of the Final
Determinotion, with no payouts for perfarmance below this However, it is also important that executives are not over incentvised
to achieve excesswe levels of RoRCY, which could in theaty incentivise inappropriate behawiours such as operational performance
which does not deliver customer value or Inadequate investment I our capital base The Committee believes the above scale
encourages delivery of strong performance against the Final Deterrmination, but without cornprormising the company’s wider values

Performance i1s measured over three financial years If the vesting result s 0% or greater than 50% then the Committee reserves
the discretionary power to change this result If it 1s greater than 50% it may reduce the vesting to a number not less than 50% as it
considers appropriate, and if it 1s 0% it may Increase 1t to any figure not greater than 50% The use of this discretion is expected to be
exceptional, but may be invoked by the Committee In order to take into account of any of the follewing factors (not an exhaustive list)

» actual RPI compared to the Ofwat assumed RPI figure - even though the RoRCY s adjusted each year for RPI a significant swing
nnflation dunng the year can result in substantial under or over performance on the RoRCY target RPI initself s not a factor that
management can influence,

+ changes to the financing of the company as approved by the board during the performance penod - for example a significant
change to the level of geanng of the balance sheet would result in partially meeting this performance condition, and

- policy changes that occur during the performance penod - there 1s much discussion on the future shape of the water industry
in the UK and if enacted we would wish to ensure that any changes have a neutral impact on existing awards

Participants are entitled to addibional shares inliew of dvidends pad on vested shares over the performance period
i Annual Bonus Scheme

The shares in respect to 2012/2013 performance year are due to be granted in June 2013 The table below shows outstanding
unreleased share awards from previous years

Annual bonus beferred share

Dateof grant deferredintoshares ~ Number of shares  oward release dote

Teny Ballance 7 July 2009 £62,294 5,669 9 July 2012
28 June 2010 £51,448 4,139 27 June 2013

30 June 2011 £51,823 3,736 29 Jure 2014

28 June 2012 £55,634 3442 27 June 2015

Martin Kane 7 July 2009 £68,598 6,243 9 July 2012
28 June 2010 £64,310 5173 27 June 2013

30 June 2011 £59,119 4,262 29 June 2014

28 June 2012 £69,887 4,326 27 June 2015

Michael McKeon 7 July 2009 £157,590 14,343 9 July 2012
28 June 2010 £128,724 10,355 27 June 2013

30June 2011 £109,242 7876 29 June 2014

28 June 2012 £119,108 7,370 27 June 2015

Andy Smith 7 July 2009 £92,700 8,437 9 July 2012
28 June 2010 £75,810 6,098 27 June 2013

30 June 2011 £66,555 4,798 29 June 2014

28 June 2012 £72,210 4,468 27 June 2015

Tony Wray 7 July 2009 £166,680 15,187 9 July 2012
28 June 2010 £138,996 11,182 27 Jure 2013

30 Jurne 2011 £126,000 5,084 29 June 2014

28 June 2012 £152,988 9,467 27 June 2015

Note
The 2009 awards were released on 9 july 2012 at £16 84 per shore
The maorket pnce on the date of grant of the 2012 award was £16 45 (28 June 2012)
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v} Share Matchung Plan

Under the Share Matching Plan executives can receive, subject to performance, matching shares for each share deferred under the
annual bonus plan The current policy 1s for one matching share to be awarded for every two deferred shares The table below
shows outstanding unreleased matching shares

Maximum

outstanding

awaords as at

Date of award Maximum award Awards vesting Awards lapsing 31 March 2013

Tony Ballance 21 May 2010 2,069 - - 2,069
20 May 2011 1,868 - - 1,868

25May 2012 1,721 - - 1,721

Martin Kane 21 May 2010 2,586 - - 2,586
20 May 2011 2,131 - - 2,131

25 May 2012 2,162 - - 2,162

Michael McKeon 21 May 2010 5177 - - 5177
20 May 2011 3,938 - - 3,938

25 May 2012 3,685 - - 3,685

Andy Smith 21 May 2010 3,049 - - 3,049
20 May 2011 2,399 - - 2,399

25 May 2012 2,234 - - 2,234

Tony Wray 21 May 2010 5,591 - - 5,59
20 May 2011 4,542 - - 4,542

25 May 2012 4,733 ~ - 4,733

The performance condition for the 2010 SMP awards 1s the same as that applying to the LTIP awards granted in 2010, albeit wath
the performance penad betng three years from the date of grant

Shown graphically, the vesting schedule and performance and vesting periods apply to the 2010, 2011 and 2012 SMP awards 1s

Graph removed Graph removed

In addition, for any awards to vest, the Commuttee must be satisfied that the vesting level 1s justified when taking into account
the undertying finanaal performance of the company over the full three year performance penod and that there has been no
cormpromise to the commeraat practices or optional standards of the group over this perod

The TSR performance up to 31 March 2013 for the cutstanding 2010, 2011 and 2012 SMP awards indicates that 67 1%, 73 8% and
0% of the maximum award will vest for each award respectively, reftecting generally strong performance compared to the other
companies in the TSR comparator group
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v) Sharesave options over ordinary shares

Exercsed  Cancelled Granted
At the start of dunngthe durngthe  dunngthe Attheendof Date from
theyear{No  year(No of year(No of year{No of theyear(No VYeorofgrant Exercise pnce which

of shares} shares) shares) shares) of shares) of option {p) exercsable Expiry date

Sharesave!
Tony Ballance? 556 {556} - - - 2009 862 May2012 Oct2012
561 - - - 561 2010 808 May2013 Oct2013
- - - 725 725 2013 1,241 May 2016 Oct2016
Martin Kane? 222 (222) - - - 2009 862 May2012 Oct2012
449 - - - 449 2010 808 May2013 Oct2013
316 - - - 316 2011 1,137 May 2014 Oct 2014
- - - 152 152 2012 1,177 May 2015 Oct2015
- - - 290 290 2013 1,241 May 2016 Oct2016
Michael McKeon 1,943 - - - 1,943 2009 862 May2014 Oct2014
Andy Srmuth 1,123 - - - 1,123 2010 808 May2013 Oct2013
- - - 725 725 2013 1,241 May 2016 Oct2016
Tony Wray 1,123 - - - 1,123 2010 808 May 2013 Oct2013
- - - 725 725 2013 1,241 Moy 2016 Oct 2016

1 The executrve directors, in cormmon wath all ehgible UK employees of the group, are entitled to partiopate in the company’s HMRC approved Shoresave Scherme
2 Tony Ballonce acquired 556 shares on 8 November 2012, with a moarket price of £,517p per share, following the exercise of his 2009 three year Sharesave scheme options,

generating o £3,641 gain

3 Marin Kane acquired 222 shares on 1 May 2012, with o market prce of 1,683p per shore, following the exeroise of his 2009 three year Sharesave scherne options, generating

a £1,822 gan

The terms and conditions applicable to these options are those provided in that scherme The options have no performance

conditions as such conditions are not permitted by legislation No executive share options in respect of executive directors were
granted or lapsed dunng the year At the close of business on 31 March 2013 the mid-market price of the company’s shares was

£17 12 and the range dunng the year was £14 97 to £18 36

Five year total shareholder return chart

Thus graph llustrates the value, by 31 March 2013, of £100

invested in Severn Trent Plc on 31 March 2008 compared
with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 100 Index
The intermediate points show the value at intervening

financial year ends

Staternent of shareholding voting at AGM

Graph removed

At last year's AGM, the resolution approving the Directors’ remuneration report recerved the following votes from shareholders

Total number of votes % of votes cast
For 135,101,023 96 96%
Against 4,231,635 304%
Total votes cast 139,332,658 58 47%!
Abstentions 2,383,537 NIA

1 Asa percentage of share capital

Note The table above does not form part of the auditable section of the Directors’ remuneration report

WIS Q:wﬁ

Richard Davey

Charman of the Remuneration Committee




Directors’ report

The directors present their report, together with the audited
financial statements of the group, for the year ended
31 March 2013

Pnncipal activity
The pnncipal activity of the group 1s to treat and provide water
and remove waste water in the UK and intemationatly

Detalls of the principal jont ventures, associated and subsidiary
undertakings of the group at 31 March 2013 are shownin
notes 19, 20 and 42 to the financial statements on pages 101
and 127

Business review

The Chairman’s staterment, the Chief Executive’s review,

the report and performance reviews for the group’s main
businesses and the Financial review on pages 35 to 38 provide
detaled information relating to the group, its business models
and strategy, the operation of its businesses and the results and
financiat positien for the year ended 31 March 2013

Detalls of the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the group
are set aut in the nsk management section on pages 39 to 42

All of the above are incorporated by reference in (and are
deemed to form part of) this report.

Directors and their interests

Biographies of the directors currently serving on the board
are set out on pages 44 and 45

All of the directors will be offering thernselves for reappointment
at the Annual General Meeting (AGM), as set out In the
Governance report on pages 4810 51

Details of directors’ service agreements are set out in the
Directors’ remuneration repert on page 62 The interests of
the directors in the shares of the company are shown on
poges 66 to 70 of that report

Insurance and indemnities

The company mamtans Directors' and Officers’ Liability
Insurance in respect of legal action that might be brought
against its directors and officers In accordance with the
company’s articles of assoaation, and to the extent permitted
by law, in November 2011 the company indemnified each of its
directors and other officers of the group against certain liabilities
that may be incurred as a result of therr positions with the group

Severn Trent does not have in place any indermnities for the
benefit of the auditors

Employees
The average number of employees within the group 1s shown in
note 9 to the financial statements on page 94

Sevemn Trent believes that a diverse and inclusive culture 1s a key
factor in being a successful business Apart from ensuring an
indmvidual has the ability to do the job we do not discnminate in
any way and make every effort to ensure that those with
disabilities are able to be ernployed by us We endeavour to
retain employees in the workforce if they become disabled,

we make all reasonable adjustments to thew role and,

if necessary, look for redeployment opportunities to support
them in seeking an altermative role within Severn Trent.

We ensure that training, career development and promotion
opportunities are avalloble for all our employees irespective

of ther gender, race, age or disability
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The group actively encourages employee involverment and
consultation ond places emphasis on keeping its employees
informed of its activity and financial performance by way of
brefings and publication to staff of all relevant information and
corporate announcerments To help develop employees' interest
in the company's performance, Severn Trent offers two
employee share plans The Sevem Trent Sharesave Scheme,

an HM Revenue and Customs approved SAYE plan, 1s offered

to UK employees on an annual basis The Severn Trent Share
Incentive Plan, approved by HM Reverue and Customs,

makes an annual award of shares to Severn Trent Plc and
Severn Trent Water Limited employees, based on performance
aganst the KPIs

Research and development

Expenditure on research and development Is set out In notes 7
and 17 to the Finoncal staternents on pages 93 and 99
respectively

Treasury management

The disclosures required under the EU Fair Volue Directive in
relation to the use of financial instrurments by the cormpany are
set out in note 32 to the Financial staternents on poges 109 to
118 Further details on our treasury policy and management
are set out In the Financtal review on page 37

Post balance sheet events

Details of post balance sheet events are set out in note 40 to
the group finanaal statements on page 126

Dividends

Anintenrm dwvidend of 30 34 pence per ordinary share was paid
on 11 January 2013 The directors recommend a final dividend
of 45 51 pence per ordinary share to be pad on 26 July 2013 to
shareholders on the register on 21 June 2013 This would bnng
the total dwdend for 2012/13 to 75 85 pence per ordinary
share {2012 7010 pence) The payment of the final dvidend 1s
subject to shareholder approval at the AGM

On 27 July 2012 a speaal dvidend of 63 0 pence per ordinary
share was pard to shareholders

Capital structure

Details of the company’s issued share capital and of the
movemnents dunng the year are shown in note 29 to the
financial staternents on page 109 The company has one class
of ordinary shares which carmes no nght to fixed mcome

Each share carmes the nght to one vote at general meetings of
the company The issued nominal value of the ordinary shares
15 100% of the total 1ssued nominal value of all share copital

There are no specific restrictions on the size of o hotding nor on
the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provisions of the articles of association and prevailing legislation
The directors are not aware of any agreements between
holders of the company’s shares that may resutt in restnctions
on the transfer of securities or on voting nghts

Detalls of ernployee share schemes are set out In note 33 tothe
financial statements on poges 119 to 122 For shares held by
the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust, the trustee
abstamns from voting

No person has any special nghts of control over the company’s
share coapital and all issued shares are fully paid
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With regard to the appointment and replacerment of directors,
the company I1s governed by its articles of association, the
Governance Code, the Companies Act 2006 and related
legislation The articles may be amended by special resolution
of the shareholders The powers of directors are descnbed in the
Severn Trent Pic Board Governance document, the articles and
the Governance report on pages 48 to 51

Under its artcles of asseciation, the directors have cuthonty to
allot ordinary shares, subject to the aggregate nominal amount
lirmit set at the 2012 AGM

There are a number of agreements that take effect after, or
terminate upon, o change of control of the company, such as
commercial centracts, bank loan agreements, property lease
arrangements and employee share plans None of these 1s
considered to be significant in terms of their lkely impact on
the business of the group as a whole There are no agreements
between the company and its directors or employees that
provide for compensation for loss of office or employrment that
occurs because of a takeover bid

Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 March 2013 the company had been notified n
accordance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency
Rules of the following major shareholdings

Percentoge of

No of ordinary  voting nghts and

shares of 97 1¥1ep 1ssued share

Nome of holder each copitol

Blackrock Inc 23,457,458 987%
Newton Investment

Management Ltd 12,087,473 509%

Legal & General Group Plc 9,627,643 4 04%

Percentages rounded to two decirmal places

As at 29 May 2013, the company had been notified of the
following holdings of voting nghts i the ordinary share copital
of the company- Blackrock Inc 23,457,458 (S 87%), Newton
Investment Management Ltd 12,087,473 (5 09%) and Legal &
General Group Plc 9,627,643 (4 04%)

Authority to purchase shares

The company was given authornty at its AGM in 2012 to make
market purchases of ordinary shares up to a maximum number
of 23,819,555 shares Similar autharity will again be sought from
shareholders at this year's AGM No maorket purchases were
made by the compary dunng the year ended 31 March 2013

Supplier payment policy

Individual operating compantes within the group are
responsible for establishing appropnate policies with regard

to the payment of therr suppliers The companies agree

terms and conditions under which business transactions

with suppliers are conducted It is group policy that provided

a supplier s complying with the relevant terms and conditions,
including the prompt and complete subrrussion of all specified
docurmentation, payment will be made in accordance with
agreed terms 1 1s also group policy to ensure that suppliers
know the terms on which payment will take place when
business is agreed Details of supplier payment policies can be
obtamed on request to the company Trade creditors for the
group at the year end are estimated as representing 17 9 days’
purchases (2012 21 2 days' purchases)

Contnbutions for political and charntable purposes
Donations to chantable arganisations dunng the year
amounted to £67,707 (2012 £107,325) Donations are given to
charties whose projects align dosely with our aim to prormote
the responsible use of water resources and waste water services
which prowide the opporturity for longer term partnerships

In addition we provide donations to employee nominated
chanties through a matched funding scherme and health and
safety reward schemes We are also commutted to supporting
WaterAud, the UK's only major charity dedicated to improving
access to safe water, hygiene and sanitation in the world’s
poorest countnes

Severn Trent's policy 1s not to make any donations for political
purposes In the UK, or to donate to EU political parties or incur
EU political expenditure Accordingly neither Severn Trent Plc nor
its subsidianes rmade any political donations or ncurred political
expenditure in the financial year under review

Under the provisions of the Pelitical Parties Elections and
Referendurms Act 2000 (the relevant prowsions of which are
now contained in Part 14 of the Companies Act 2006),
shareholder authonty 1s required for political donations to be
made or political expenditure to be incurred by the compony
or any of its subsidiaries In the EU and disclosure of any such
payment must be made in the annual report. The legistation
gives a wide defimition of what constitutes political donations
and political expenditure including sponsorship, subscrptions,
payment of expenses, paid leave for ernployees fulfilling publc
duties and support for bodies representing the business
community in policy review or reform The company has
therefore obtained imited authonty from shareholders as @
precautionary measure to allow the company to continue
supporting the community and such orgarisations without
inadvertently breaching the legislation

At the 2012 AGM, shareholders gave the company authonties
to make political donations or to incur polibicol expenditure in
the EU (which would not ordinanly be regarded as poltical
donations) up to an aggregate annual bmit of £50,000 for the
company and its subsidiaries Pursuant to those authonties,
during the year ended 31 March 2013 the group incurred costs
of £nil (2012 £nil) Those outhonties will expire at the 2013 AGM
and, in ine with market practice to renew the authonties on an
annual basis, the board has decided to put forward a resolution
to this year's AGM to renew the authorities to make donations
to political erganisations and to incur political expenditure up to
a maximum of £50,000 per annum As perrmitted under the
Comparues Act 2006, this resolution also covers any politicat
donations made or poltical expenditure incurred, by any
subsidianes of the company
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Analysis of shareholdings at 31 March 2013
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MNumber of
Category shoreholders % of shareholders  Number of shares % of shares
Individud! and joint accounts 60,846 913 25,034,928 105
Cther* 5,790 87 213,330,806 895
Total 66,636 10000 238,365,734 10000
* Includes insurance cormparwes, nominee companies, bonks, pension funds, cther corporate bodies, binited and public limited companies.

Number of
Size of holding shareholders % of shareholders  Number of shares % of shares
1-499 3 47,987 7201 9,380,610 393
500-999 T 11,980 1798 8,346,739 350
1,000-4,599 ' 5,684 853 9,771,710 410
5,000-9,999 317 048 2,146,409 090
10,000-45,999 320 048 7,647,097 321
50,000-99,999 95 014 6,791,417 285
100,000+ 253 038 194,281,752 8151
Total 66,636 10000 238,365,734 10000
Internal controls The group’s procedures for exercising control and managing nsk

The board 15 respansible for the group’s system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness The board reviews
the effectveness of the system of internal control, induding
finanaal, operational, compliarice and nsk management,

at least annually in accordance with the requirements of the
Governance Code The internal control system can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against maternal
misstaternent or loss, as it 1s designed to manage rather than
eliminate the rsk of falure to achieve business objectives

The Audit Commuittee reviews the group's nsk manogement
process and the effectiveness of the system of internal control
on behalf of the board and keeps under review ways in which
to enhance the control and assurance arrangements

The Audit Committee recerves reports every stx months

from the Chief Executive detailing the significant nsks and
uncertainties faced by the group, an assessment of the
effectiveness of controls over each of those nsks and an action
plan to improve controls where this has been assessed as
necessary Dunng the course of its review of the system of
internal control N 2012/13, the Audit Committee hos not
identfied nor been adwvised of any failings or weaknesses
which it has deterrmined to be significant

The Internal Audit department provides objective assurance
and adwvice on nsk management and control The external
audrtors also report on sigruficant finanaial controt 1Issues to
the Audrt Committee

An independent reporter (Athins) provides objective assurance
in relation to the Severn Trent Water Limited Annual Regulatory
Compliance Staterment and Anrual Regulatory Perforrmance
Report.

The board confirms that procedures prowiding an ongoing
process for identifying, evaluating and managing the prinapal
nsks and uncertaintres faced by the group have been in place
for the year to 31 March 2013 and up to the date of approval
of the annual report, which 1s in accordance with the revised
guidance cn internal control published in October 2005

(the Turnbull Guidance)

in refatron to financial reporting and preparation of consclidated
accounts include

« the formulation and communication of group accounting
policies which are reqularly updated for developments in
IFRS and other reporting requirements,

« spedfication of a set of financiol controls that all of the
group's operating businesses are required to implernent
Qs Q MInIrmum,

+ deployment of a group wide consclidation system with
controls to restrict access and maintain integrity of data,

* recruitment, training ond development of appropriately
qualified and expenenced financial reporting personnel,

- oversight by the Disclosure Committee of the group’s
compliance with its disclosure obligations, and

+ monthly reviews by the board of finanaal reports from the
group’s operating businesses

Relevant audit information
The directors confirm that

+ so far as each of them 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit
inforrnation of which the company’s auditors are unaware, and

+ each of them has taken all the steps that he/she ought to
have taken as a director to make himself/herself aware of
any relevant audit inferrmotion and to establish that the
company’s auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s gven and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Comparues Act 2006

External auditors

The Audit Committee has recommended to the board the
reappointment of Delaitte LLP and a resolution to that effect will
be on the agenda at the AGM Celoitte LLP have indicated their
willingness to contmue as ouditors The Audit Committee waill
also be responsible for determining the audit fee cn behalf of
the board
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Accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited

Regulatory accounts for Severn Trent Water Liruted are
prepared and sent to Ofwat A capy of these accounts wil

be avarlable an the website of Severn Trent Water Limited
(www stwater co uk) or on request to the Company Secretary
There 1s no charge for this publication

Going concem

The group's business actmities, together with the factors likely to
affect its future development, performance and posttion are set
out n the Chief Executive’s review on pages 7 to 10 and the
business reviews of Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent
Services on pages 11 to 32 The financial posibion of the group,
its cash flows, iquidity pesition and borrowing facilitres are
described in the Financial review on pages 35 to 38 The group’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital and
its financiol nsk managernent objectives are described in the
Financial review on pages 35 to 38 and in the Risk managerment
report on pages 39 to 42 Details of the group’s financiol
Instruments, hedging activities and expostre to credit risk

and liquidity nsk are described in note 32 to the group

financial staterments

The group’s principal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water,
i1s a regulated long term business charactenised by mult year
investrnent programmes The group’s strategic funding
objectives reflect this The group therefore seeks to attaina
balance of long term funding or commitment of funds across
a range of funding ot the best possible economic cost
Average debt maturnty 1s 16 years and the effective average
nterest cost dunng the year was 5 9% The group 1s in a strong
liquidity position and had £403 & milion i cash and hquid
reserves and £500 0 milkon of undrawn committed bank
facitities at 31 March 2013, which are expected to be sufficient
to fund its investment and cash flow needs at least until
January 2015 in the normat course of business

Severn Trent Water operates in an industry that 1s currently
subject to economic regulation rather than market competition
Ofwat, the economic regulator, has a statutory obligation to set
pnce limits that it believes will enable the water companies to
finance ther activities As a consequence the directors believe
that the group 1s well placed to manage its business nsks
successfully despite the current uncertan economic outlook,

After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the company and the group have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in prepanng the annuol report

and accounts

Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the company will be held ot the International
Convention Centre, Broad Street, Birmingham B1 2EA ot 11am
on Wednesday 17 July 2013 The notice convering the
meeting, together with detats of the business to be considered
and explanatory notes for each resolution, 1s distnbuted
separately to shareholders It is also avallable on the company's
website (www severntrent.com}

By order of the board

Bronagh Kennedy \

General Counsel and Company Secretary
29 May 2013
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report,
Directors’ remuneration report and the finanaiat statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financral year Under that law the directors
are required to prepare group financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Artidle 4 of the
IAS Regulation and have chosen to prepare the parent
company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable low) Under
company low the directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far view of
the state of affaws of the company and of the profit or toss of
the company for that penod

In prepanng the parent company finanaial statements,
the directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

* maoke judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been

followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and

explained in the financial statements, and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis

unless it is nappropnate to presume that the company waill

continue In business

In preparing these financial statements, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires that the directors

« properly select and apply accounting policies,

present information, including accounting policies, N @

manner that provides relevant, reboble, comparable and

understandable information,

» provide additional disclosures when complionce with the
specific requiremnents in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other
events and conditions on the entity’s financial positten and
financial performance, and

« rmake an assessment of the company's ability to continue as
Q going concem

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to shoew and explain the company’s

transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time

the financial position of the company and enable them to
ensure that the financal statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006

They are also resporsible for safeguarding the ossets of the
cornpany and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevent:on and detection of fraud and other imegulanties

The drrectors are responsible for the mantenance and integnity
of the corporate and financial information included on the
company’s website Legistation in the United Kingdom
govemning the preparation and dissernination of financial
staternents may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

« the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the
relevant financiol reporting framework, give a true and far
view of the assets, labilities, finanaial position and profit or
loss of the company and the undertakings ncluded m the
consolidation taken as a whole, and

+ the management report, which is iIncorporated into the
Directors’ report, includes a far review of the developrment
and performance of the business and the position of the
company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal

nsks gnd uncertainties that tjweyf ce
ﬂj},{ d"k e

Andrew-DuFf
Chatrman

Michael McKeon
Finonce Director
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Severn Trent Pic

We have audited the group financial staterments of Severn Trent
Plc for the year ended 31 March 2013 which comprise the
consclidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive Income, the consolidated statement of changes
In equity, the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash
flow statement, and the related notes 1 to 42 The finanaal
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
15 applicable tow and International Finanaial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so thot we
might state to the company’s mernbers those matters we are
required to state to themn in an ouditor's report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body. for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully n the Directors’ responsibility
staternent, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the group finanaal staternents and for being satisfied that they
give atrue and fair view  Our responstbility 1s to audit and
express an opinion on the group financial statements in
accordance with applicable low and International Standards on
Auditing {UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Stondards for
Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the emounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficent to give
reascnable assurance that the financel statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This indludes an assessmment of whether the accounting policies
are appropnate to the group’s arcumstances end have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant occounting estmates made by
the directors, and the overall presentation of the financal
staterments In eddition, we read all the financial and non-
finanaial information in the annual report to identify matenal
inconsistencies with the cudited financal statements  [f we
become aware of ony apparent matenal misstaternents or
inconsistencies we consider the mplications for our report
Opirvon on financial staternents
In our opinion the group financial statements
+ give a true and foir view of the state of the group’s affarrs as
at 31 March 2013 and of its profit for the year'then ended,
+ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, and
+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 and Article &4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Comparnies Act 2006
In our opinion the nformation given in the Directors’ report for
the financial yeor for which the group finanaal statements are
prepared is consistent with the group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to repart by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following.

Under the Compantes Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, In our opinion

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

+ we have not receved dll the information and explanations we
require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

+ the directors’ statement, contained within the Directors’
report, In relation to going concern,

- the part of the Charman's letter relating to the company's
comphiance with the nine provisions of UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review, and

+ certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board
on directors' rermuneration

Other matters

We have reported separately on the parent company financiol

statements of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March

2013 and on the information in the Rernuneration Committee
report that 1s described as having been audited

@g. Q. \k%/\
Carl D Hughes (Senior Statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Delortte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, UK

29 May 2013
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Turnover 56 18316 1,7706
Operating costs before exceptionat tems 7 (1,3336) (1,2664)
Exceptional operating costs i 8 (4 3) (34 4)
Total operating costs 7 {1,3379) (1,3008)
Exceptional {oss on disposol of businesses 8 {15) -
Profit before interest, tox and exceptionat tems 5 4980 5042
Exceptional items before interest and tax 8 {58) (34 4)
Profit before interest and tax 492 2 4698
Finance income 10 a0ne. 1077
Finance costs excudmg exceptional costs 11 (3227) (336 7)
Except:ional finance costs 11 - (165)
Net finonce costs (2319} (2455)
Losses en financial instruments 12 {45 3) (677)
Share of results of associates ond joint ventures 02 01
Profit before tax, losses on financial nstruments and exceptional items 2663 2753
Exceptional terns before tax 8 {58 {509)
Losses on financial instruments 12 {45 3) (677)
Profit on ordinary actmties before taxation 2152 1567
Taxation on profit on ordinary actvities
Current tax excduding excepticnal credit 13 {279) (605)
Deferred tax excluding exceptional charge/{credit) 13 47 91
Exceptional tox credit 13 384 691
Total taxation 13 152 177
Profit for the year 2304 1744
Attributable to )
Owners of the company 2275 1718
Non-controlling interests 29 26
2304 174 4
Earntngs per share (pence) i
Basic 15 957 725
Diluted 15 952 721




Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2013

/9

2013 2012

£m fm

Profii for the year 2304 174 4
Losses on cash flow hedges taken to equity (390) {865)
Deferred tox on losses on cash flow hedges taken to equity 90 208
Amounts on cosh flow hedges transferred to the income statement 148 37
Deferred tax on transfers to Income staterment (34) (09)
Exchange movement on translation of overseas results and net assets 54 (14)
Actuariol losses on defined benefit pension schemes (54 2} {1107)
Tax on actuarial losses 125 266
Deferred tax movernent ansing from rate change {3 4) 17
Other comprehensive loss for the year (58 3) {146 7)
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year 1721 277

Attributable to

Owners of the company 1687 251
Non-controlling interests 34 26
1721 277
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 Morch 2013

Equity attrbutable to owners of the company

Share Share Other Retained contrg:l?:g Total
capital prermium reserves earnings Total Interests equity
£m fm fm £m £fm £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2011 2322 800 464 5 3231 1,099 8 63 1,106 1
Profit for the penod - - - 1718 1718 26 174 4
Losses cn cash flow hedges - - (86 5) - {86 5) - (865)
Deferred tax on losses on cash flow hedges - - 208 - 208 - 208
Amounts an cash flow hedges transferred
to the ncome statement - - 37 - 37 - 37
Deferred tax on transfers to the
incorne staterment - - {09) - (09) - 09
Exchange movement on translation of
overseos results and net assets - - (14) - (14) - (14)
Actuarial losses - - - (1107 (1107) - (1107
Tox on actuanal losses - - - 266 266 - 266
Deferred tax arsing from rate change - - - 17 17 - 17
Total comprehensive income for the penod - - (64 3) 894 251 26 277
Share based payments
- proceeds frorm shares 1ssued 04 38 - - 432 - 42
- value of employees’ senvices - - - 45 45 - 45
- free shares 1ssued - - - (18) 18 - (18)
Current tax on share based payments - - - 04 04 - 04
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - 03 03 - 03
Dividends paid - - - (159 0) (159 0) (10} (1600)
At 31 March 2012 2326 838 4002 2569 9735 79 9814
Profit for the period - - - 2275 2275 29 2304
Losses on cash flow hedges - - (39 0) - (390) - (390)
Deferred tax on losses on cash flow hedges - - S0 - 90 - 90
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred
to the ncome statement - - 148 - 148 - 148
Deferred tax on transfers to the
Income staternent - - (34) - 34) - (34}
Exchange rovernent on translation of
overseqds results and net assets - - 49 - 49 05 54
Actuanal losses - - - (54 2} {542) - {54 2)
Tax on actuanal losses - - - 125 125 - 125
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - B4 (34) - 34)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - {137 182 4 1687 34 1721
Share based payments
- proceeds from shares issued 07 59 - - 66 - 66
- value of employees’ services - - - 69 69 - 69
- free shares 1ssued - - - (13) (13 - {13}
Current tax on share based payments - - - 08 08 - 08
Transfer of infrastructure reserve - - (314 2) 3142 - ~ -
Dividends paid - - - {3220) (3220) 05) (3225)
At 31 March 2013 2333 897 723 4379 8332 108 8440
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Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 March 2013
2013 2012
Note fm £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 16 417 449
Cther intangible assets 17 993 1160
Property, plant and equipment 18 6,7600 65778
Interests in joint ventures 19 03 02
Interests in associates 20 47 46
Dervative financial nstruments 32 1301 1326
Available for sale finonciol assets 32 01 01
70362 6,876 2
Current assets
Inventory 21 321 344
Trade and other recevables 22 5060 4794
Current tax recenvable 405 -
Dervative finanaial instruments 32 10 300
Cash and cash equivalents 23 4036 2951
9832 8389
Total assets 8,0194 7,7151
Current liabilities
Borrowings 32 (170 3) (893)
Derwative finanaal instrurments 32 (06) (05)
Trade and other payables 25 (3590 (3976)
Current Income tax labilities - (46 5}
Prowisions for iabilities and charges 28 (111) (170)
(581 0} (5509)
Non-current babilities
Borrowings 32 {46313) (4,3095)
Derwvatve financial Instruments 32 (309 6) (2880}
Trade and other payables 25 (453 4) (4110}
Deferred tax 26 (785 8) (8015)
Retiremnent benefit obligations 27 {383 7) {345 8)
Prowisions for labilibies and charges 28 (306) (270)
(6,594 4) (6,1828)
Total liabilities (7,1754) (67337
Net assets 8440 981 &
Equity
Called up share capital 29 2333 2326
Share prermum account 30 897 838
QOther reserves 31 723 4002
Retaned earmings 4379 2569
Equity attnbutable to owners of the company 8332 9735
Non-controlling interests 108 79
Total equity 8440 9814

Signed on beholf of tha baord who approved the accounts on 29 May 2013
C V\QO.\...

yZARY
Andrew%(/ MichaelMcKeon

Charman Finance Director

Company Number 2366619
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Note f£m Em

Cash generated from operations 36 7312 7259
Tax pad {(725) {720)
Net cash generated from operating activities 6587 6539
Investing actvibies
Interest receved 37 67
Net cash inflow from sale of businesses 35 124 -
Acquisition of subsichanes 34 (13) -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 161 91
Purchases of intangible assets {160 (120)
Purchases of property, plont and equipment (4292) (3711)
Contributions and grants recenved 273 228
Net cash used in Investing activities (3870} {344 5)
Finanaing activities
Interest paid (186 8) (203 5)
Closed out swaps (44 3) -
Interest element of finance lease payments (6 0) (13 6)
Diwidends paid to shareholders of the parent (3220) (1590}
Dividends pard to non-controlling interests (05) (10}
Repayrnents of borrowings (2599) {157 &)
Repayments of obligations under finance leoses {174) (475)
New loans raised 6683 250
Issues of shares 66 42
Purchase of own shares (13) {18)
Net cash used in financing activities {163 3) (3297}
Increase/(decrease) in cosh and cash equivalents 108 4 (203)
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2947 3152
Effect of foreign exchange rates 01 {c2)
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 4032 2947
Net cash and cash equivalents compnse
Total cash and cash equivalents 4036 2951
Bank overdrafts 04) {04)
Net cash and cash equivalents ot end of period 403 2 2947

The increase in cash and cash equivalents 1s reconaled to the movement in net debt in note 36
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Notes to the group financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

1 General information

The Severn Trent group has a number of operations
These are descnbed in the segmental analysis n note 5

Severmn Trent Plc 1s a company incorporated and domiciled in the
United Kingdom The address of its registered office 1s shown
on the back of the cover of the annual report and accounts

Severn Trent Plc 1s isted on the London Stock Exchange

2 Accounting policies
a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
International Accounting Standards ([AS) and IFRIC
interpretations issued and effective and endorsed by the
European Union as at 31 March 2013

The fingncigl statements have been prepared on the
going concern basis (see Directors’ report on page 74)
under the histoncat cost corwentton as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial assets and labdities
{iIncluding dervative instruments) at far value

The preporation of financial statements m conformity with
IFRS requires the use of estirates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reparted amount of revenues
and expenses for the reparting period Although these
estimates are based on management's best knowledge of

the amount, event or actions, actual results may ultmately
differ frorn those estimates

b) Basis of consolidation

The finanaal statements include the results of Severmn Trent Plc
and its subsidiaries, joint venrtures and assoctated undertakings
The results of subsidianies, joint ventures ond associated
undertakings are included from the date of acquisition or
incorporation and excluded frorm the date of disposal

The results of subsidiones are consolidated where the group
has the power to control a subsidiary

The results of joint venture undertakings are accounted for on
an equity basis where the company exercised joint control
under a contractus! arrangement.

The results of associates are accounted for on an equity basis
where the company holding i1s 20% or more or the company
has the power to exercise sigrificant influence

Non-controllimg interests in the net assets of consclidated
subsidiaries are identified separatety from the group’s equity
therein Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those
interests at the date of the onginal business combination and
the non-controlling interest’s share of changes In equity since
that date

All Intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are elimmated on consolidation

c) Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the farr value of consideration
recewvable, excluding value odded tox, trade discounts and
inter~company sales, in the ordinary course of business for
goads and services provided

Revenue 15 not recognised until the service has been prowided
to the customer or the goods to which the sale relates have
either been despatched to the customer ar, where they qre
held on the customer's behalf, title has passed to the customer

Turnover includes an estmate of the amount of mains
water and waste water charges unbilled at the year end
The accruat 1s estimated using a defined methodology
based upon a measure of unbilled water consurmed by tanff,
which 1s calculated from histoncal billing information

In respect of long term contracts, revenue 1s recognised
based on the volue of work carried out during the year
with reference to the total sales value and the stage of
completion of these contracts

Interest income is accrued on a tme basis by reference to
the pnncipal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable Dmdend incorme from investments is recognised
when the group’s nghts to receve payment have been
established Interest and dividend income are iIncluded in
finance incorme

d) Exceptional terns

Exceptional items are income or expenditure, which indnadually
or, if of a similar type, In aggregate should, in the opinion of

the directors, be disdesed by virtue of their size or nature

if the finanaial statements gre to give a true and fair view

In this context, matenality is assessed ot the segment level

e) Taxation

Cument tax payable 15 based on taxable profit for the year
Toxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
Income staterment because it excludes items of Income and
expenses that are taxable or deductible in other yeors and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible
The group's hability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date

Deferred toxation 1s provided in full, using the hability method,
on taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and habilittes and therr carnang amounts in the financial
statements A deferred tax asset s only recogrised to the
extent it 1s probable that sufficent taxable profits will be
available in the future to utibse it. Deferred taxation 1s
measured on a non-discounted basis using the tax rates and
lows that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred incorme tax asset 1s realised or the deferred
tax liability 1s settled

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there s a
legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against
current tax trabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authorty and the group intends
to settleits current tax assets and liobilities on a net basis
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Group financial statements Notes to the group financtal statements

2 Accounting policies (continued)
f) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase
consideration over the farr value of the net assets acquired
Goodwill ansing on acquisition of subsidianes is Included

m intangible assets, whilst goodwall ansing on acquisition

of associates 1s included m investments in associates

If an acquisition gives rise to negative goodwilt this s credited
directly to the Income staterment Fair value adjustments
based on provisional estimates are omended within one
year of the acquisition, if required, with a corresponding
adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill ansing on all acquisitions prior to 1 Apnl 1998 was
written off to reserves under UK GAAP and remains eliminated
aganst reserves Purchased goodwill ansing on acquisittons
after 31 March 1998 15 treated as an intangible fixed asset

Goodwill 1s tested for impairrment n accordance with the policy
set out In note 2m;) below and carried at cost less accumulated
imparrment losses Goodwillis allocated to the cash-generating
unit that derves benefit from the goodwill for imparrrment
testing purposes

Wherte goadwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and all

or part of that unit 1s disposed of, the associated goodwill 1s
indluded in the carnang amount of that cperation when
deterrmining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation

g) Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost
and when acquired in a business combination are capitalised at
far value at the date of acquistion Following inttial recogrition,
the histonical cost model is applied to intangible assets

Finite iife ntangible assets are omorhsed on a straight line basis
over ther estimated usefut economic lives as follows

Years
Software 3-10
Other assets 2-20

Amortisation charged on assets wath finite lives is taken to
the income statement through operating costs

Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment where
indicators of impairment exist.

h) Research and development

Research expenditure 1s expensed when it 1S incurred
Development expenditure Is capitalised and written off
over its expected useful econormic life where the following
cntena are met.

* 1t1s technically feasible to create and make the asset
avaitable for use or sale,

+ there are adeguate rescurces avalable to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset,

+ there 1s the ntention and ability to use or sell the asset,

- it1s probable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits, and

+ the development cost can be measured reliobly

Expenditure on property, plant and equipment relabing to

research and development projects 1s capitalised and wittten

off over the expected useful life of those assets

1) Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed os incurred except where it 15
probable that the contract will be awarded, iIn which case they
are recognised as a prepayment which is written off to the
Income statement over the life of the contract.

The group assesses that itis probable that a contract will be
awarded when preferred bidder or equivalent status has been
achieved and there are no significant Impedimenits to the
award cf the contract

j) Property, plont and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is held at cost (or at deemed
cost for Infrastructure assets on transition to IFRS) less
accumulated depreciation The costs of like for like replacement
of iInfrastructure components are recognised in the income
statement as they anse Where it1s probable that the
expendrture will cause future econonic benefits to flow to

the group, then costs are capitalised

Where items of property, plant and equipment are transferred
to the group from customers or developers, the farr value of the
asset transferred s recognised in the balance sheet. Farrvalue 1s
determined bosed on estimated depreciated replacement cost
Where the transfer 1 in exchange for connection to the network
and there 1s no further obligation, the corresponding creditis
recognised immediately in tumover Where the transfer is
considered to be linked to the prowision of ongoing services

the corresponding credit 1s recorded in deferred income and
released to operating costs over the expected useful kives of
the retated assets

Borrowing costs directly attrbutable to the acquisition,
construction or production of assets, that necessarly take a
substantial penod of time to get ready for therr intended use,
are added to the cost of those ossets until such time os the
assets are ready for their ntended use

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated to its esbmated
residual value over its estimated useful life, with the exception
of freehold land which 1s not depreciated Assets in the course
of construction are not depreciated untit commissioned

The estmated useful lives are

Years
Infrastructure assets
Impounding reservoirs 250
Row water aqueducts 250
Mains 80-150
Sewers 150-200
Other assets
Buildings 30-80
Fixed plont ond equiprment 20-40
Vehicles and mobtle plont 2-15
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
k) Leased assets

Where the group obtains assets under leasing arrangernents
which transfer substantially al! the nsks and rewards of
ownership of an asset to the group as lessee (finance leases),
the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present
value of the rinimurm leose payrments 1s capitalised as an asset
with a corresponding hiability representing the obligation to the
lessor Lease payments are treated as consisting of o capitat
element and a finance charge, the capital element reducing the
cbligation to the lessor and the finance charge being written off
to the Income statement at a constant rate over the penod of
the lease in proportion to the copital arnount outstanding
Depreciation 1s charged over the shorter of the estimated

useful life and the lease perod

Leases where substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership remain with the lessor are classified as operating
leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases are expensed
on a straight line basis over the term of the lease Leases of land
are normally treated as operating leases, unless ownership is
transferred to the group at the end of the lease

l) Grants and contributions

Grants and contnbutions receved in respect of non-current
assets, iIncluding certan charges made as a result of new
connections to the water and sewerage networks, are treated
as deferred income and released ta the income staternent
over the useful economic life of those non-current assets

Grants and contnbubons which are given In compensation for
expenses incurred with no future related costs are recognised in
operating costs in the income statement n the penod thot they
become recewable

m) Impairment of non-current assets

If the recoverable amount of goodwill, an item of property,
plant and equipment, or any cther non-current osset 1s
estimated to be less than its carrying ormount, the carmying
amount of the asset 1s reduced to its recoverable cmount.
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the group estimates the
recoverable armount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell or estimated value in use at the date the
impairnent review 1s undertaken Fair value less costs to sell
represents the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset
In an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and
willing third parties, less costs of disposal Value in use
represents the present value of future cash flows expected to
be denved from o cash-generating unit, discounted using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the cost of capital of the cash-generating unit or osset.

The discount rate used 15 based on the group’s cost of capttal
adjusted for the nsk profiles of ndmdual businesses

Goodwill is tested for imparment annually Impairment reviews
are also camed out if there is an indication that an impairment
may have occuired, or, where otherwise required, to ensure that
non-current assets are not carried above therr estimated
recoverable amounts

Imparments are recognised in the income statement

n) Inventory

Irnventory and work in progress is stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value Cost includes labour, materials,
transport and attnbutable overheads

o) Service concession agreements

Where the group has an unconditional nght to recenve cash
from a gavernment body tn exchange for constructing or
upgrading a public sector asset, the amounts recetvable
are recognised as a financial asset in prepayments and
accrued income

Costs of constructing or upgrading the public sector asset are
recogrised on a straight line basis, before adjusting for
expected mflation, over the life of the contract

p) Retirement benefits

The group operates both defined benefit and defined
contnbution pension schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension
scheme assets and defined benefit pension scheme liabilities
15 recorded on the balance sheet as a retirerent benefit asset
ar obhgation

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured at far
vatue using bd price for assets with quoted prices Defined
benefit pension scheme liabilities are measured at the balance
sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit
method and discounted at the current rate of return on high
quality corporate bonds of equivalent term and currency to the
Lability Service cost, which 1s the increase in the present value
of the Liobilities of the group’s defined benefit pension schemes
expected to anse from employee service in the period, s
included i operating costs The expected return on the
scheme’s assets and the increase durnng the period in the
present value of the scheme’s labilities, ansing from the
passage of time, are induded in other finance income or cost

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustrments,
changes in actuanal assumptions and amendments to pension
plans are charged or credited to equity and recorded in the
staternent of comprehensive income

Contnbutions to defined contribution pension schemes
are charged to the income statement in the penod in which
they fall due

q) Provisions
Provisions are recogrised where

+ there is a present obligation os a result of a past event,

+ 1tis probable that there will be an outflow of economic
benefits to settle this obligation, and

- a reliable estimate of this amount can be maode

Insurance provisions in the group’s captive insurance subsichary
are recognised for daims notified and for claims incurred but
which have not yet been notified, based on advice from the
group’s ndependent Insurance advisers

Prowvisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tax

discount rate that reflects the nsks specific to the iability where
the effect 1s matenal
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
r) Purchase of own shares

Shares held by the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership
Trust which have not vested unconditionally by the balance
sheet date are deducted frorm shareholders’ funds unti! such
time as they vest.

s} Financial instruments
(1) Financial assets
Financial assets are clossified into the following categonies

= ot farr value through profit or loss,

+ held to motunty investrents,

« avaloble for sale financiol assets, and
= loans and recewvables

Financraf assets at fair value through profit or loss

Afinanciol asset 1s classified ot fair value through profit or loss

f it1s so designated or If it is classified as ‘held for trading’
Denvatwe financial assets that are not designated and effectve
as hedging instruments are required to be classified as

‘held for trading’ by IAS 39 However, the group's Treasury Policy,
descnbed in the Financial review on pages 37 and 38, 1s that

the group does not hold or 1ssue denvative financial instruments
for trading Financiol assets at farr value through profit or loss
are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
rermeasurement recogrised N gansfosses on financial
instruments in the Income statement. Fair value 15

determined using the methodology descnibed in note 32
Interest recenable in respect of denvative financicl assets is
included in finance income

Held to matunty investments

Where the group has the ability and intent to hold an
Investment to matunty the finanaial asset s classified as held
to matunty Such financial assets ore measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, with any gans
or losses being recogrised in the incorne statement

Available for sale financial assets

After initiol recogrition at cost (being the far volue of the
consideration paid), iInvestments which are clossified as
availlable for sale are measured at far value, with gains

or losses recognised in other comprehensive ncome
When an avallable for sale investment 1s disposed of or
impatred, the gain or loss previously recogrised in other
comprehensive income 1s taken to the Income statement.
Where there 1s no active market in the investments and
the fair value cannot be measured reliably, the investments
are held ot cost

Loans and receivables

Trade recevables, loans and other recevables that have fixed
or determinable payments and that are not quoted inan
active market are classified as loans and recevables

Such assets are measured at far value on intial recognition
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective Interest rate method unless there 1s objective
evidence that the asset 1s imparred, where it 1s written down
to its recoverable amount and the irecoverable amount is
recognised as an expense

Trade recevables that are assessed not to be impared

indvidually are assessed collectvely for impairment by
reference to the group’s histoncal collection experience
for receivables of similar age

{11} Financial habilities
Financal habilities are classified as either

« financal habiliies at fair value through profit or loss, or
+ other finanaidl habilities

Financio! labiliies at fair value through profit or loss

Afinanaal lability 1s classified at fair value through profit or
loss if it 1s so designated or if st 1s classified as ‘held for trading’
Dervative financial liabilities that are not designated and
effective as hedging instruments are required to be classified
as ‘held for trading’ by IAS 39 However, the group’s Treasury
Policy, described in the Financial review on pages 37 and 38,15
that the group does not hold or 1ssue demvative financtol
mistrurments for trading Financia! liabilibies at fair value through
profit or loss are stated at far value, with any gains or lesses
arising on remeasuremnent recegnised in gans/losses on
financidhinstruments in the ncome staternent Farr value 1s
determined using the methodology described in note 32
Interest payable in respect of dervative finanaial liabilities s
included in finance costs

Other financial iobilibies

Other financial habilities, ncluding borrowings, are initially
recognised at fair value less transaction costs After initial
recognition, other financial labilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

(i} Hedge accounting

The group uses dervative financial instruments such as

cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and nterest
rate swaps to hedge its nsks asscciated with foreign currency
and nterest rate fluctuotions Such dervative Instruments are
recognised ond measured in accordance with the accounting
policies descnbed above

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the group
documents

+ the relotionship between the hedging instrument and
the hedged item,

« its nsk manogement chjectves and strategy for undertaking
hedge transactions, and

+ whether the hedging instrument 1s highty effectrve In
offsetting changes in farr values or cash flows {as appropriate)
of the hedged item

The group continues to test and document the effectiveness
of the hedge on an ongoing basis

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging
nstrurment expires, 15 sold, terminated or exeraised, or no longer
qualfies for hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

Where aloan or borrowing 1s 10 a far volue hedging relationship
it1s rermeasured for changes in far value of the hedged nsk at
the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recogrised in
gansAosses on financial iInstruments in the income staterment.
The gain or loss on the hedging instrument is taken to gains/
losses on financial nstruments in the incomne staterment where
the effective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss cn
the hedged item

When hedge accounting 1s discontinued, the fair value
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged tem ansing
from the hedged nisk 1s amortised to the income statement
from that date
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
s) Financial iInstruments {continued)

(i) Hedge accounting {continued)

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is
deterrnined to be an effective hedge 1s recogrised directly in
equity and the ineffective portion in gains/losses on financial
instrurnents in the income statermnent. The gans or losses
deferred in equity n this way are recycled through gans/losses
on financial instruments in the iIncome statement in the same
penad in which the hedged underlying transaction or firrm
commitment is recognised in the income statement.

When hedge accounting 1s discontinued any cumulative gain or
loss on the hedging instrument recogrised in equity is held I
equity until the forecost transaction occurs, or transferred to
gansfosses on financiol instruments in the income statement
if the forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to accur

Hedges of net investrnents in foreign operations

Where forward currency contracts and foreign currency
borrowings are used to hedge net investrments in foreign
currency denominated operations, to the extent that they are
designated and effective as net iInvestment hedges, they are
matched in equity against changes in value of the related
assets Any ineffectiveness is taken to gainsilosses on finanaal
instruments in the iIncome statement.

{rv) Embedded denvatives

Dervatives embedded in other financial instrurnents or other
host contracts are treated as separate derwatives when ther
nsks and charactenstics are not closely related to those of the
host contract and the host contract 1s not carned at farr value,
with gains anc fosses reported in gains/losses on financiol
nstruments In the Income statement.

t) Share based payments

The group operates a number of equity settled share based
compensation plans for employees The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant is
recognised as an expense over the vesting penod of the grant

The farr value of employee services 1s determined by reference
to the fair value of the awards granted, colculated using an
appropnate pricing model, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions. The number of awards that
are expected to vest takes into account non-market vesting
condittons including, where appropricte, continuing
employment by the group The charge 1s adjusted to reflect
shares that do not vest as o result of falling to meet o
non-market condition

u) Cash flow staterment

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equwalents include highly liguid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cosh and which are subject
to an insignificant nsk of change invalue Such investments are
norrally those with less than three months’ maturty from the
date of acquisition and include cash and bank balances and
investments in Lquid funds Cash and cash equivalents olso
include overdrofts repayable on demand

Interest paid in the cash flow staterment includes amounts
charged to the income statement and amounts indluded
in the cost of property, plant and equipment.

v) Foreign cumrency

The results of overseas subsidiary and assoctated undertakings
are translated into sterling, the presentational currercy of the
group, using average rates of exchange ruling dunng the year

The net iInvestments in overseas subsidiary and assocated
undertakings are translated into sterling ot the rates of
exchange ruling at the year end Exchange differences ansing
are treated as movermnents in equity On disposal of a foreign
currency denorninated subsidiary, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in equity since 1 April 2004 relating to that
entity I1s recognised in the income statement under the
tronsitional rule of IFRS 1

Exchange differences ansing In respect of foreign exchange
nstrurents taken out as hedges of overseas investrments are
also treated as movements in equity to the extent that the
hedge 15 effective {see note 2 )

All other foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities
of the company and its subsidiary undertakings are translated
into the relevant functionat currency at the rates of exchange
ruling at the year end Any exchange differences so ansing
are dealt with through the income statement

Foreign currency transactions ansing dunng the year are
translated mto sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on
the date of the transaction All profits and losses on
exchange ansing dunng the year are dealt with through
the income statement

w) Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

Where an asset or group of assets (a disposal group) s avallable
for immediate sale and the sale s highly probable and expected
to occur within one year then the disposal group is classified os
held for sale The disposal group Is measured at the lower of the
carrying arnount and fair value less costs to sell

Where a group of assets which compnses operations thot can
be ctearly distinguished operationally and for financial reperting
purposes, from the rest of the group {a component), has been
disposed of or classified as held for sale, and 1t.

« represents a separate major ine of business or geographical
area of operations, or
* 15 part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major ine of business or geographical area of operations, or
+ 15 a subsidiary acquired exclustvely with ¢ view to resale,

then the component 1s classified as a discontinued operation

Non-current assets dassified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of carnying amount and fair value less costs to sell
Depreciation 1s not charged on such assets
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3 New accounting policies and future requirements
The following standards have been 1ssued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and are likely to affect future
finanaigl stotements

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ is lkely to affect the
rmeasurerment and disclosure of finanaal iInstruments
The standard 15 required to be mplemented by the group
with effect frorm 1 Aprit 2013, subject to EU endorsernent

IFRS 10 ‘Consclidated Financial Statements’ was 1ssued In

May 2011 and 1s required to be mplermnented by the group
from 1 April 2013 The standard includes a new definition of
controt to be used to determine when entities are consclidated
The standard 1s not expected te have a matenal impact on the
group's finanaia! statements

IFRS 11 “Jont Agreements’ was 1ssued in May 2011 ond 1s
required to be implemented by the group from 1 Apnl 2013
IFRS 11 replaces 1AS 31 ‘Interests in Jont Ventures’ and SIC-13
Jontly-controlled Entities’ IFRS 11 uses the definition of control
given in IFRS 10 to define joint control and removes the option
to account for joint ventures using proportionate consolidation
This 1s not expected to have a matenal impact on the group’s
financial statements

IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests iIn Other Entifies’ was ssued In
May 2011 and is required to be implemented by the group from
1 Aprl 2013 The standard provides disclosure requirements

for subsidianes, associates, jont agreements and structured
entities which were previously covered in 1AS 27, [AS 28 and
1AS 31 Additional disclosures will be required in the group
financial statements to meet the requirements of the standard

IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Megosurement’ was issued inMay 2011 and s
required to be implermented by the group from 1 Aprt 2013

The standord provides additional gurdance on how to measure
fair value but does not change when fair value 1s permitted or
required The standard may impact the methods of
determining fair value which are currently employed by the
group and will require further disclosure of these methods

1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ {revised) includes a requirement

to measure the expected return on the defined benefit pension
scherme assets using the discount rate applied to the scherme
Irabiibies The estimated effect this will hove s to reduce profit
by £16 0 milion and increase actuarial gains in the statement
of other comprehensive Income by £16 0 million in the year
ended 31 March 2014 The standard 1s required to be
implemented by the group with effect from 1 Apnl 2013

The directors assess that the other standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective are not likely to
have a significant impact on future finanaial staterments

4 Significant accounting jJudgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the group’s accounting policies, the
group is required 10 make certain Judgements, estimates and
assumptions that it believes are reasenable based on the
information available

The mare significant jJudgements were
a) Tax provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires
Judgernents te be made regarding the result of negotiations
with and enquirtes from tax authorties in a number of
Junsdichons The assessments made are based on advice
from independent tax adwvisers and the status of ongoing
discussions with the relevant tax authorittes

b) Provisions for other labilities and charges

Assessing the finanaial outcome of uncertain commercial

and legal positions requires judgernents to be rmade regarding
the relatve ments of eoch party’s case and the extent to
which any daim against the group s likely to be successful
The assessments made are based on adwvice from the

group’s Internal caunsel and, where appropriate,

independent legal advice

The key accounting estimates were
) Goodwill impairment

Determiming whether goodwill 1s mpaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating urit
{CGU) to which goodwill has been allocated The value Inuse
calculation requires the group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to onise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate

to calculate present value Details of the assumptions used are
set out in note 16 to the finanaial stotements

b) Depreciation and carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment

Calculoting the depreciation charge and hence the carmying
value for property, plant and equipment requires estimates to
be made of the useful lives of the assets The estirnates are
based on engineenng dota and the group’s expenence of
simitar assets Detalls are set out nnote 2 )

¢) Retirement benefit obligations

Determining the amount of the group’s retirement benefit
obligations and the net costs of prowiding such benefits requires
assurmnptions to be made concerning long term interest rates,
inflation, salary and pension increases, investment returns and
longevity of current and future pensioners Changes in these |
assumptions could significantly impact the amount of the
obligations or the cost of providing such benefits The group
makes assumptions concerning these matters with the
assistance of advice from ndependent qualified actuaries |
Detalls of the assumptions made are set out In note 27 to the
financial statements
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4 Significant accounting judgements and key sources e) Provision for Impatrment of trade receivables

of estimation uncertainty (continued) Provisions are made against Severn Trent Water's trade

d) Unbilled revenue recenables based on histoncal expenence of levels of recavery
Severn Trent Water raises bills and recognises revenue in from accounts in a particular ageing category The actual
accordance with tts nght to receive revenue in line with the amounts collected could differ from the estimated level of
imits established by the penodic regulatory price review recovery which could impact operating results

processes For water and waste water customers with water
meters, the amount recognised depends on the volurme
supplied including an estimate of the sales value of units
supplied between the date of the last meter read and the
year end Meters are read on a cyclical basis and the group
recognises revenue for unbilled amounts based on estirmated
usage from the last bdling to the end of the financial year
The estimated usage 1s based on histoncal data, judgement
and assumptions

5 Segmental analysis

The group has two reportable segments Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Services The key factor deterrmining the identification
of reportable segments is the regulatory environment in which the businesses operate Severn Trent Water 1s subject to economic
regulation by Ofwot and operates under a licence to provide water and sewerage services within a defined geographical region

in Englond and Wales Severn Trent Services 1s not subject to economic regulation and operates in markets in the US, Europe

and Asia

The Severn Trent Executive Committee 1s considered to be the group’s chief operating decision maker The reports provided to the
Executive Committee include segmental information prepared on the basis described above Detalls of Severn Trent Water's
operations are descrbed on pages 12 to 23 of the Business review and those of Severn Trent Services on pages 24 1o 32
Transactions between reportable segments are nctuded within segmental results, assets and kabilibes in accerdance with

group accounting policies These are eliminated on consolidation

The group has a large and diverse customer base and there 1s no significant reliance on any single custormer

The measure of profit or loss that Is reported to the Executive Committee for the segments is profit before interest, tax and
exceptonal iterns {underlying PBIT) A segmental analysis of sales and undertying PBIT 1s presented below

Sevem Trent  Severm Trent

Water Services
2013 £m £m
External sales 1,5093 3206
Inter-segment sales 17 79
Total sales 1,5110 3285
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional tems 5009 127
Excepbonal terms 133 (161)
Profit/{loss) before interest and tox 5142 (34)

Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 1s stated after

Amortisation of ntangible assets ) 289 15
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2614 53
Loss/(profit) on disposal of fixed assets 15 (14)
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)

Sevem Trent  Sevem Trent

Water Services
2012 £m £m
Extemal sales 1,4561 3133
Inter-segment sales ] 14 190
Total sales 1,4575 3323
Profit before interest, tox ond exceptional terms ) 5000 180
Exceptional items 103 “a 7
Profit/(loss) before interest and tax 5103 (267)
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional tems is stated aofter:
Amortisation of other intangible assets 287 19
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ) 2521 59
Profit on disposal of fixed ossets (42) {02)

The group's treasury and tox affairs are managed centrally by the Group Treasury and Tax Departments Finance costs are
managed on a group basis and hence interest income ond costs are not reported at the segmentat level Tax 1s not reported to the
Executive Committee on a segmental basis
Interests in joint ventures and asscciates are not matenial and are not included in the segmental reports reviewed by the
Executive Committee
Separate segmental analyses of assets and liabilities are not reviewed by the Executive Commuittee The balance sheet measure
reviewed by the Executive Committee on a segmental basis 1s capital employed which includes the following components

Sevemn Trent  Sevem Trent

Water Services
013 frn £€m
Operating assets . 7,2187 1731
Goodwill ) 13 417
Interests in joint ventures and associates 01 49
Segment assets 72201 2197
Segment operating labilites (1,137 4) 94 0)
Capital employed 6,0827 1257

Severn Trent  Sevem Trent
Water Services

2012 £m £m
Operating assets ~ 70229 1855
Goodwill ) - 448
Interests in joint ventures and associgtes 01 46
Segrment assets 70230 2349
Segment operating labilities {1,064 3) (65 3)
Capital employed 59587 1396

Operating assets cormprise other ntangible assets, property, plant and equipment, inventory and trade and other recervables
Operating labilities compnise trade and other payables, retirement benefit obligations and provisions
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)
Additions to other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment were as follows

Sevem Trent  Severn Trent

Water Services
2013 £m £m
Other mtangible assets 136 22
Property, plant and equipment 4516 86

Sevemn Trent  Sevemn Trent

Water Services
2012 £m fm
Cther intangible assets 98 21
Property, plant and equipment 4053 55
The reportable segments' revenue 1s reconciled to group turnover as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
Severn Trent Water 1 0 14575
Severn Trent Services ) 3285 3323
Other 101 98
Inter-segment sales (180) (290)
Group turnover 1,8316 1,7706
Segmental underlying PBIT is reconcited to the group's profit before tax and discontinued operations as follows
2013 2012
£fm fm
Underlying PBIT ]
- Severn Trent Water 5009 5000
- Severn Trent Services 127 180
- Corporate and other (16 8) (153)
Consolidation adjustrments 12 15
Group underlying PBIT 4980 5042
Exceptional items allocated to segments
- Severn Trent Water 133 103
- Severn Trent Services ] (161} (447)
- Corporate and other (30 -
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 02 01
Net finance costs (2319) (2455)
Losses on finoncial instruments (453) 677)
Profit before tax 2152 1567
The reportable segments’ assets are reconcled to the group’s total assets as follows
2013 2012
£ fm
Segment assets
- Severn Trent Water 7,2201 70230
- Severn Trent Services 2197 2349
Corporate and other assets 495 464
Other financial assets 5348 4578
Current tax recoverable 405 -
Consolidation adjustments (452) 470
Total assets 80194 7,7151

The consolidation adjustrments compnise elimination of intra-group debtors and unrealised profits on fixed assets
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)
The reportable segments’ habilittes are reconciled to the group’s total iabilities as follows

2013 2012
fm £m
Segment habilibes
- Severn Trent Water (1,1374) (1,064 3)
- Severn Trent Services 940) (95 3)
Corporate labilities (647) (57 8)
Other finanaal liabilities (51118) (4,6873)
Current tax - {465)
Deferred tax (785 8) (8015)
Consolidation adjustments 183 190
Total habiities (71754) (6,733 7)
The consolidation adjustments comprise elrmination of intra-group creditors
Geographical areas
The group’s sales were derived from the following countnes
2013 2012
£m fm
UK 15847 1,5380
us 1422 1365
Other 1047 961
1,8316 1,770 6

The group’s non-current assets (excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and retirement benefit assets) were located

in the following countrnes

2013 2012
£m £m
UK 6,834 2 6,6704
us 611 592
Other 108 140
6,906 1 6,743 6

6 Revenue
2013 2012
£mn £fm
Water and sewerage services 1,5009 1,4463
Other services 1801 1914
Sale of goods 1107 944
Service concesston arrangements {note 38) 399 385
Total tumover 18316 1,7706
Interest recevable (note 10) 26 70
18342 1,7776
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7 Operating costs
2013 2012
Before Before
exceptional  Exceptional exceptional  Exceptional
costs costs Total costs costs Total
fm fm £m fm fm £m
Wages and salanes 2829 12 2841 2642 26 2668
Social secunty costs 202 - 202 177 01 178
Pension costs 298 - 298 275 {231) 4k
Share based payments 68 - 68 41 - 41
Tota! employee costs 3397 12 3409 3135 (204} 2931
Power 658 - 658 550 - 590
Carbon Reduction Comrrutrnent 57 - 57 59 - 59
Raw matenals and consumables 1308 - 1308 1350 04 1354
Rates 732 - 732 69 4 - 694
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 331 - 331 307 215 522
Service charges 318 - 319 333 - 333
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2646 - 2646 2560 - 2560
Amartisation and impairment of other intangible assets 305 36 341 308 - 308
Impawment of goodwill - 46 46 - 229 229
Hired and contracted services 1962 37 1999 2192 43 2235
Operating leases rentals
- land and bulldings 31 - 31 34 - 34
- other 19 - 19 15 - 15
Hire of ptant and machinery 44 - b4 56 - 56
Research and development expenditure 54 - 54 45 - 45
Loss/{profit} on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 29 {133) (104) (4 &) - (644)
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses {03) - {03) 01 - c1
Infrastructure mantenance expenditure 1477 - 1477 1289 - 1289
Other operating costs 932 45 977 592 57 649
1,4298 43 14341 1,3516 344 1,3860
Release from deferred income (93) - (93) (87) - (87)
Own work capitalised (869) (869) (76 5) - (765)
1,3336 43 1,3379 1,266 4 344 13008
Further details of exceptional costs are given in note 8
Dunng the year the following fees were charged by the auditors
2013 2012
£m fm
Fees payable to the company’s auditors for
- the audtt of the company’s annual accounts 01 a1
- the audit of the company’s subsidianes 05 05
Total audit fees 06 06
Fees payable to the company’s auditors and therr assocates for other services to the group
- audit reloted assurance services 02 02
- services relating to corporate finance 01
Total non-ogudit fees 03 02

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors’ rermuneration report on pages 57 to 70

UOROULIOJUI ISUI)  SJUSLLRIOIS [BDUDUL AUDAUSO)  SIUSUUSI0NS |[DIDUDUI 0NOJD  SDUDLLIBNCD  MBIADI SSBUNIY  MaIaA0

£107 SIUNCI2Y PUD HOGRY [ONUY  1d WL LLIAAIS



94

Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

8 Exceptional items before tax

2013 2012
fm fm
Exceptional operating costs
Severn Trent Water
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (133} -
Restructunng costs - 115
Curtailment gains on defined benefit pension schemes - (218)
{133) (103)
Severn Trent Services
Imparrment of development costs and related assets 45 -
Impairmnent of goodwill 46 229
Provisions for commercial disputes and restructuring 55 16
Provisions for bad debts - 215
Curtailment gains on defined benefit penston schemes - (13)
146 447
Corporate and other
Professional fees on proposed transaction that did not proceed 30 -
30 -
Total exceptional operating costs 43 344
Exceptional loss on disposal of businesses 15 -
Exceptional finance costs
Costs incurred on early redemption of debt - 165
Exceptional items before tax 58 509
Exceptional tox is disclosed in note 13
9 Employee numbers
Average number of employees (including executive directors) dunng the year:
2013 2012
Number Nurnber
By type of business
Severn Trent Water 5,458 5,162
Severn Trent Services 2,749 2,878
Corporate and other 14 11
8,221 8,051
10 Finance income
2013 2012
£m fm
Interest revenue eamed on
Bank deposits 26 41
Other financial Income - 29
Total interest revenue 26 70
Expected return on defined benefit pension scheme assets 882 1007
908 1077
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11 Finance costs

2013 2012
Before

exceptional  Exceptional
Total costs costs Total
£fm fm £fm fm
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 277 289 - 289
Interest on other loans 1916 1989 - 1989
Interest on finance leases 85 97 - 97
Total borrowing costs 2278 2375 - 2375
Other financial expenses ) 27 15 165 180
Interest cost on defined benefit scheme obligations 922 977 - 977
3227 3367 165 3532

Borrowing costs of £10 4 million (2012 £10 5 million) incurred funding eligible capital projects have been capitalised at an
interest rate of 5 12% (2012 5 93%)

12 Losses on financial instruments

2013 2012

£m fm

Loss on cross currency swaps used os hedging instruments in far value hedges ) (73) 51
Gain ansing on adjustment for foreign currency debt in farr value hedges 34 19
Exchange (loss)/gan on other loans {11) 415
Loss on cash flow hedges transferred from equity (14 8) 37
Loss ansing on swaps where hedge accounting 1s not applied {255) (1023)

{45 3) {(677)

The group’s hedge accounting arrangements are described in note 32 f)

13 Taxation
a) Analysis of tax credit in the year
2013 2012
Before
exceptional  Exceptional
tax tax Total Tetal
£m £m Em fm
Current tax
Current year at 24% (2012 26%) 571 (40 5) 166 692
Prior years at 28% (2012 28%) {292) - (292) 87)
Total current tax 279 (40 5) (126) 605
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences - current year (03) 388 385 (14 0)
Ongination and reversal of termporary differences - pnor year (4 4) - (4 4) 49
Exceptional credrt ansing from rate change ) - (367) {367 (691)
Total deferred tax &7) 21 (26) (782)
232 {384) (152) {177

The group's UK subsidiary companies have adopted the new accounting standard FRS 101 in the current year This has changed the
statutory accounts that form the basis for thase companies’ corporation tox computations The most sigrificant impact of this
change s that certan armounts that had been taxed in previous years will now be recogrised as profits and taxed in future perods
Therefore, to prevent such ttems being taxed twice, the tax already paid on such items 1s repayable The impact of this change was
an exceptional credit of £40 5 million to current tox and an exceptional charge of £38 8 million to deferred tax

Current tax credits have onsen due to odjustrnents to pnor year tax computations In 2013 these pnmarily related to an industry
cgreemnent over the treatment of iInfrastructure ncome
The exceptional deferred tax credit anses from the reduction in the rate at which the ternporary differences are expected to reverse

from 24% to 23% On 20 March 2013 the Government announced that the main rate of corporation tax in the UK would reduce to
23% with effect from 1 Apnl 2013 with subsequent reductions per annum to reach 20% by 1 Apnl 2015
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13 Taxation (continued)
b} Factors affecting the tax credt in the year
The tax credit for the year 1s reconciled to tax on profit at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK below

2013 2012
fm fm
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 2152 1567
Tax at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 24% (2012 26%} _ 516 408
Tax effect of expenditure not deductible in determining taxable profits ] 41 120
Current year impact of rate change ) (12) 19
Effect of different rates in overseas junsdicticns ] 07 05
Adjustments i respect of pnor years ] (336) (38
Exceptional deferred tax credit arising from rate change (367) {691)
Total tax credit (152) (17 7)

<) Tox credited directly to equity
In addition to the amount credited to the income statement, the following amounts of tax have been credited directly to equity-

2013 2012
fm £m
Current tax )
Tox on share based payments 08 (04}
Tax on pension contributions in excess of profit and loss charge (15) (88)
Total current tax credited to equity (23) (92)
Deferred tax
Tax on actuanal losses (110) {17 8)
Tax on cash flow hedges (56) {199)
Tax on share based payments - (03)
Effect of change In tax rate 34 (17)
Total deferred tox credited to equity (132) (397)
14 Dwidends
Amounts recogrised as distnbutions to equity holders in the penod
2013 2012
Pence per Pence per
share £m share fm
Final dwidend for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011) 4206 999 3905 925
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012) 3034 722 2804 665
Total ordinary dwvidends 7240 1721 6709 1590
Special dvidend 6300 1499 - -
Total dvidends 13540 3220 6709 1590
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 4551

The proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM and has not been included as a liability In these
financial staternents
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Basic earnings per share are calcutated by dividing the earnings attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average

nurmber of ordinary shares in 1ssue duning the year, excluding those held in the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust

whuch are treated as cancelled

For diluted eamings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares In issue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all
potentially dilutive ordinary shares These represent share options granted to employees where the exercise pnce s less than the

average market price of the company’s shares dunng the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations are calculated on the basis of profit from continuing eperations

attnbutable to the equity holders of the company
The caleulation of basic and dituted earnings per share 1s based on the following data
Earnings for the purpose of bosic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

2013 2012
fm fm
Profit for the perod attributable to the equity holders of the company 2275 1718
Number of shares
2013 2012
m m
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earnings per share 2377 2370
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
- share options and LTIPs 11 12
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 2388 2382
Adjusted earnings per share
2013 2012
perce pence
Adjusted basic earnings per share 989 889
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 98 4 885

Adjusted eamings per share figures are presented for continumg operations These exclude the effects of deferred tax, losses

on financial instrurnents and exceptional items in both 2013 and 2012 The directors consider that the adjusted figures provide
a useful additional indicator of performance The denominaters used in the calculations of adjusted basic and diluted eamings

per share are the same as those used in the unadjusted figures set out above
Adjustments to earnings
The adjustments to earnings that are made n calculoting adpusted eamings per share are s follows

2013 2012
fm £m
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from centinuing operations 2275 1718
Adjustments for
- exceptional iterns before tax 58 509
- current tax related to exceptional temns at 24% (2012 26%) (05) (15
- losses on finanaal Instrurments 453 677
- deferred tax excluding exceptional charge ) b7 91
- exceptional tox (384) (691)
Earrmings for the purpose of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share 2350 2107
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16 Geedwill

2013 2012

£fm Em

Cost
At1Apnl ] 678 683
Exchange adjustments ] 14 {05)
At 31 March 652 678
Impairment
At 1 April (229 -
Armounts written off (4 6) (229)
At 31 March (275) (229)
Net book value )
At 31 March 417 449

Goodwill impairment tests

Goodwill 1s ollocated to the group’s cash-generating units (CGUs} identified according to country of operation and business segrment
All of the group’s goodwill i1s in the Severn Trent Services segment

A summary of the goodwill allocation by CGU 15 presented below

2013 2012

£m fm

Water Punfication US 271 263
Contract Operations 123 117
Services Italy 23 22
Services Spain ) - 47
417 449

The group has reviewed the carrying value of goodwill for immparrment in accordance with the policy stated in note 2 m)

The value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on finanaal budgets approved by management covering a
five year penod The key assumption underlying these budgets 1s revenue growth Managernent of each CGU determines
assumptions based on past experience, current market trends and expectations of future developments

Cash flows beyond the five year penod are extrapoloted using an estimated norminat growth rate stated below The growth rate
does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the econorny n which the CGU operates The assumptions used in relation
to growth rates beyond the five year penod and discount rates were

Nominal growth rate Discount rate

2013 2012 2013 2012

% % % %

Waoter Punfication US 35 35 62 58
Contract Operations 35 35 65 59
Services Italy 25 30 82 110
Services Spain 25 31 88 89

The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts induded in industry reports The discount rates used
are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU

As a result of the impairment review, the group has fully imparred the goodwillin Services Spain by £4 6 million This follows
the further deterioration of the econormic outlook In Spain

Changes in the growth rate outside the five year period or in the discount rate applied to the cash flows may cause a CGU's carrying
value to exceed Its recoverable amount However, in the opinion of the directors, the changes in growth rate or discount rate that
would be required to reduce the recoverable amounts of Water Punfication US and Contract Operations below therr carrying value
are not reasonably possible and therefore sensitmty analysis hos only been prowided for Services Italy

Surplus of recoveroble Change required for
amount over carrying recoverable amount to
omount equol carying amount

Growth rate Discount rate
percentage  percentage
£m points points

Services [taly 111 (215) 98
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Computer software Cther
Internally Intermnoaily
genercted  Purchosed generated Total
£m £rn f£rm £m

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2011 1215 1701 248 3164
Additions 03 97 20 120
Disposals - {04) - {04)
Exchange adjustments - 02 {02) -
At 1 Apnl 2012 1218 1796 266 3280
Additions 60 85 15 160
Acquisition of businesses - - 13 13
Disposal of businesses - - (17) a1n
Exchange adjustments - 06 05 11
At 31 March 2013 1278 188 7 282 3447
Amortisation
At1 Apnl 2011 (828) (862) {125) (1815)
Amortisation for the year (194) 97 (17) (308)
Disposals - 02 - 02
Exchange adjustments - - 01 01
At 1 Apnl 2012 (1022) {957 (141) (2120)
Amortisation for the year (167) {124) (14) (305)
Exceptional impairment - - (36) (36)
Disposal of businesses - - 12 12
Exchange adjustments - {02) {03) {05}
At 31 March 2013 (118 9) (108 3) (182) (245 4)
Net beok value
At 31 March 2013 89 804 101 993
At 31 March 2012 196 839 125 1160

Other assets primarily comprise capitalised development costs and patents
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18 Property, plant and equipment

Landand Infrastructure plonf zﬁg Movable
buldings assets  equpment plant Total
£m £m fm £m fm
Cost
At 1 Apni 2011 2,5699 41917 3,266 2 567 10,0845
Additions 1069 1188 1815 45 4117
Disposals (36) (01) (26 4) {43) (34 4)
Exchange adjustrents - - (0 8) 01 {07
At1Aprl 2012 26732 4,310 4 34205 570 104611
Additions 1272 1033 2207 87 4599
Disposals (28) ©1 (245) (4 4) (318
Disposal of businesses {113} - (175) - {288}
Exchange adjustments 01 - 21 07 27
At 31 March 2013 2,786 2 44136 3,6013 620 10,8631
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2011 (8161) (1,0935) (1,7154) (325) (3,6575}
Charge for the year (56 0} {282) (1651) 67 {256 0)
Disposals 33 - 228 38 299
Exchange adjustments - - 03 - 03
At 1 Apnl 2012 (8688) (1,1217) (1,857 4) (354) (3,8833)
Charge for the year (609) (296} (167 5) (66) (264 6)
Disposals 30 - 191 41 262
Disposal of businesses 75 - 118 - 1593
Exchange adjustrments 05 01 (12) 01) 07
At 31 March 2013 (9187) (1,1512) {1,9952) (380  (41031)
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 18675 32624 1,606 1 240 6,7600
At 31 March 2012 1,804 4 3,1887 1,563 1 216 6,5778
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under
finance leases
Fixed
Landand Infrastructure plont and Movable
butldings gssets  equipment plant Total
£m £m £m £m fm

Net book value
At 31 March 2013 - 1185 548 - 1733
At 31 March 2012 - 1192 763 - 1955

Property, plant and equipment includes £509 2 rillion {2012 £372 3 mullion) in respect of assets in the course of construction

for which no depreaation 1s charged
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2013 2012
£m £m
Group's share of ]
Non-curmrent assets ) 01 02
Current assets 07 06
Current habiiies (05) {0 6)
03 02
Group's share of
Turnover 04 C4
Operating costs (04) {04)
Profit before tax - -
Tax - -
Profit after tax - -

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012 the joint ventures had no significant contingent liabilities to which the group was exposed and the
group did not have any sigruficant contingent habibities 1n relation to ts interests in the jont ventures The group had no capital

commetments in relabion to its interests i the joint ventures at 31 March 2013 or 2012
Particulars of the group’s prinaipal joint venture undertakings at 31 March 2013 were

Country of Proportion of
Narne ncorporation ownership mterest
Cognica Limited Great Britan 50%
Jackson Water Partnership us 70%

The partnership agreement for the Jackson Water Partnership requires that certain key decisions require the unanimeus consent

of the partners and consequently the partnership has been accounted for as a joint venture

20 Interests in associates

2013 2012
£m £m
At 1 Apnl 46 48
Share of profits 02 01
Exchange adjustments on (03)
At 31 March 47 46
Group's share of
Total assets 248 247
Total liabilies (201) {201)
47 46
Turnover 47 77
Profit after tax 02 01
The associate company at 31 March 2013 was Servizio Idnco Integrato S c.p @, o company incorporated in Haly
The proportion of ownership interest held by the group was 25%
At 31 March 2013 and 2012 the associote company had no significant contingent labilities to which the group was exposed
The group had no caopital commitrments in relation to its interests in the associate at 31 March 2013 or 2012
The group has given certain guarantees in respect of the associate’s borrowings The guarantees are imited to €11 2 million
(2012 €11 2 milion} The group does not expect any Liabilities that are not provided for in these financial statements to anse
from these arrangements
21 Inventory
2013 2012
fm £m
Inventory and work in progress 321 344
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22 Trade and other receivables

2013 2012

Em fm

Trade recewvables 3347 3063
Less provisions for impairment of receivables (1380) (1252)
Net trade recevables 1967 1811
Amounts recevable from related parties - 02
Other amounts recevable 325 325
Prepayments and accrued income 2768 2656
5060 4794

The carrying values of trade and other recervables are reasonable approximations of their fair values

Prepayments and accrued income nclude £26 8 million (2012 £27 1 million} in respect of amounts due from custormers for
contract work and £39 5 million (2012 £43 1 mullion) which 15 recoverable after more than one year

Credit control policies and procedures are determined at the individud! business unit level The most significant business unit, of the
group is Severn Trent Water Limited, which contrbutes 82% of group tumover and 80% of net trade recevables Severn Trent Water
has a statutory obligation to provide water and sewerage services to customers within its region Therefore there is no concentration
of credit risk with respect to ts trade recevables and the credit quality of its custormer base reflects the wedalth and prospenty of all
of the commeraial businesses and dormestic househotds within its region None of the other business units are indvidually sigraficant
to the group

Movements on the doubtful debts provision were as follows

2013 2012

£m fm

At 1 Apni 1252 985
Amounts wntten off during the year {221) (24 4)
Amounts recovered during the year - 03)
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 331 307
Exceptional charge for bad and doubtful debts - 215
Exchange adjustments 18 08)
At 31 March 1380 1252

Included in trade receivables are balances with a carrying amount of £176 4 million (2012 £157 8 million) which were past due
at the reporting date but for which no speaific provision has been made as the collective impairment recorded against such assets
i1s considered to be sufficent allowance for the nsk of non-collection of such balances

The aged analysis of recewables that were past due at the reporting date but net indnidually impaired is as follows

2013 2012

Em £m

Up to 90 days 494 464
91-365 days 778 701
1-2 years 309 264
2-3 years 113 95
More than 3 years 70 54
1764 1578

Included in the aliowance for doubtful debts are provisions amounting to £25 1 milbion {2012 £27 5 million) against specific trade
recewables The age of the impaired recevables was as follows

2013 2012

fm frm

Up to 90 days 37 14
91-365 days 39 29
1-2 years 39 151
2-3 years 122 45
More than 3 years 34 41

271 280
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23 Cash and cash equivalents

2013 2012

fm £m

Cash at bank and in hand 479 374
Shert term deposits 3557 2577
4036 2951

Of the £355 7 million (2012 £257 7 million) of short term bank depoesits, £26 1 midlion (2012 £26 9 million) 1s held as secunty
depostts for nsurance obligations and 1s not avallable for use by the group

24 Finance leases
Obligations under finance teases are as follows

2013 2012

£m fm

Gross obligations under finance leases 2651 2921
Less future finance charges (63 5) (73 1)
Present value of lease cbligations 2016 2190

A matunty analysis of gross obligations under finance leases 1s presented in note 32 Net abligations under finance leases fall due
as follows

2013 2012

fm fm

Within 1 year 05 ~
1-2 years 212 178
3-5 years 665 855
After more than 5 years 1134 1157
Included in non-current labilities 2011 2190
2016 2190

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 3 to 20 years at 31 March 2013 Interest terms ore set at the inception of the
leases Leases with capital outstanding of £201 6 million (2012 £219 0 million) bear fixed interest at a weighted average rate of
54% (2012 5 4%) The lease obligations are secured against the related assets

There were no contingent rents, escalation clauses or material renewal or purchase options The terms of the finance leases do not
impose restriction on dwvidend payrments, additioncl debt or further leasing

25 Trade and other payables

2013 2012
£m fm

Current labilities )
Trade payables 287 349
Social security and other taxes 70 70
Other payables 257 184
Deferred income 92 88
Accruals 3284 3285
3590 3976

Non-current lobilities

Trade payables 20 -
Other payables 04 04
Deferred income 43712 3966
Accruals 138 140

453 4 4110

The directors consider that the carrying value of trade payables is not matenally different from ther farr values
Accruals includes nil {2012 nil} in respect of amounts due to customers for contract work.
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26 Deferred tax
An analysis of the movements in the deferred tax labilities and assets recogrised by the group is set out below
Accelerated  Retirement Fair value of
tax benefit finoncial
depreciation  cbligation  Taxlosses  instruments Other Total
fm fm £m £m £m £fm
At 1 Apnl 2011 1,0919 (759) (64) (24 8) (65 4) 9194
Credit to Income (83 1} 137 - (167} 770 (91}
Credit to income ansing from rate change (72 &} 28 ~ 11 {06) (691)
Credit to equity - {17 8) - (199) 03) (380)
Credit to equity ansing from rate change {55) 30 - 07 01 17)
At1Aprl 2012 9309 {74 2) (6 4) (59 6) 108 8015
Charge to income 04) 65) 64 01 345 342
Credit to income anstng from rate change (390 14 - 12 03 (367)
Credit to equity - (110) - (56) - (16 6)
Charge to equity ansing from rate change - 21 - 12 01 34
At 31 March 2013 8915 {88 2) - (627) 452 7858

Deferred tax assets ond liabilities hove been offset. The offset amounts, which are to be recovered/settled after more thon
12 months, are as follows

2013 2012

fm £m
Deferred tax asset (1691) (1989)
Deferred tax Liability 9549  1,0004
7858 8015

27 Retirement benefit schernes
0) Defined benefit pension schemes

() Armount ncluded in the batance sheet ansing from the group’s obligations under defined benefit pension schemes

2013 2012
£m £m
Fair value of scheme assets
Equities ) 8772 7986
Gilts ) 2746 2352
Corporate bonds ) 3609 3391
Property ) 1478 1057
Hedge funds 558 526
Cash 80 260
Total fair value of assets 17243 1,5572
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - funded schemes (2,098 7) (1,8944)
) (374 4) (3372}
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - unfunded schemes (93) (86)
Lability recognised in the balance sheet (3837) (345 8)
Movements in the farr value of the scheme assets were as follows
2013 2012
fm fm
Fair value at 1 Apnl 1,5572 14734
Expected retum on scheme assets ) 882 1007
Contnbutions from the sponsonng companies ) 435 535
Contributions from scherme members 51 56
Actuanal gains/(losses) recognised in the statement of comprehensive income ) 1013 {4 5)
Benefits pad (710) (715)

Fair value at 31 March 1,724 3 1,5572
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27 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)
a) Defined benefit pension schemes {(continued})
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{) Amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group’s obligations under defined benefit pension schermes (continued)

Movernents in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows

2013 2012
£m fm
Present value at 1 Apnl 1,9030 1,7655
Service cost 228 226
Past service cost i 04 -
Interest cost 922 977
Net curtalment gamn - (231)
Contnbutions from scheme members ) 51 56
Actuanal losses recogrised in the statement of comprehensive income 1555 1062
Benefits pad (710} (715)
Present value at 31 March 2,1080 19030
Of which
2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts relating to funded schemes 2,0987 1,894 4
Amounts relating to unfunded schemes 93 86
Present value at 31 March 2,1080 1,9030
{n) Amounts recognised i the incorme statement in respect of these defined benefit pension schemes
2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts charged to operating costs )
Current service cost ) (228) (226)
Exceptional curtallment gain - 231
Past service cost 04) -
(232) 05
Amounts charged to finance costs
Interest cost {922) (977
Armounts credited to finance income )
Expected return on scheme assets 882 1007
Total amount (charged)/credited to the income statement {27 2) 35

The actual return on scheme assets was a gain of £189 5 million (2012 gain of £95 9 million)

Actuanal gains and lesses have been reported in the statement of comprehensive Income The cumulative amount of actuanal
gains and losses recogrised in the staterent of comprehensive Incomne since the adoption of IFRS s a net toss of £334 3 million

(2012 netloss of £280 1 million)
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27 Retirement benefit schernes (continued)
a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)
) Background

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK, covering the majonty of UK employees The defined
benefit pension schemes are funded to cover future salary and pension increcses and therr assets are held in separate funds
adrministered by trustees The trustees are required to act in the best interests of the schemes’ beneficianes A formal actuanal
valuation of each scheme 1s carned out on behalf of the trustees at tnennial iIntervals by an independent professionally qualified
actuary Under the defined benefit pension schermes, mermbers are entitled to retirernent benefits caleulated as a proportion
(varying between 1/30 and 1/80 for each year of service) of ther salary for the final year of employment with the group or,

if bugher, the average of the huighest three consecutive years’ salary in the last 10 years of employrment.

The defined benefit pension schemes will close to future accrual on 31 March 2015 Anew defined contrbution pension scherne
has been established and members of the defined benefit pension schermes will then become members of the new defined
contrbution pension scherne The existing defined contnbution pension scheme will also be replaced by the new pension
arrangerments with effect from 1 Apnl 2015

From 1 Apnl 2012 new employees have been automatically enrolled into this scheme and those employees who were not
members of a Severn Trent scheme were autematically enrolled into this scheme from 1 April 2013

The final salary sections of the pension schemes are closed to new entrants and the age profile of scheme partiapants
I1s expected to nse and hence service costs are also expected to nise until the schemes are clesed to future accrual

The schemes typically expose the company to actuanal nsks such as market risk, interest rate nsk and longevity risk
The UK defined benefit penston schernes and the date of their last formal actuanal valuation are as follows

Date of last forrnal actuanal voluation
Severn Trent Pension scherme (STPS)* 31 March 2010
Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scherme 31 March 2010
*The STPS 15 the largest of the group’s UK defined benefit schemes

The group has an obligation to pay pensions to a number of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise have been
restnicted by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap Provision for such benefits amounting to £9 3 rillion (2012 £8 6 million)

15 iIncluded as an unfunded scheme within the retirernent benefit obligation

{v) Actuanal assumptions

The major assumptions used in the valuation of the STPS (also the approximate weighted average of assumptions used for the
valuations of all group schermes) were as follows

2013 2012
% %
Price inflation ) 32 31
Salary increases ) 30 36
Pension increases in payment ) 32 31
Pension increases in deferment 32 31
Discount rate . 44 49
Long term rate of retum on )
Equities ) 66 68
Gilts ] 31 33
Corporate bonds ) 43 49
Property ) 55 58
Hedge funds ) 60 63
Cash 31 33

The assumption for price mflation is derved from the difference between the yelds onlonger termn fixed rate gilts and on
index-linked gilts The discount rate 1s set by reference to AA rated sterling 18 year corporate bonds

The expected rate of return on scheme assets 1s based on market expectations at the beginning of the peniod for returns
over the life of the benefit obligation For gilts and corporate bonds the expected rates of return are based on market yields
For equities, property and hedge funds, a nsk prermiurn has been added to the gilt rate

The mortality assumptions are based on those used in the tnenmiat valuation of the STPS os at 31 March 2010 updated by a
further investigation camed out in connection with the 2013 valuatron, which ndicated that members’ ife expectancy had not
been as high as the previous investigation had predicted
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27 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

{iv) Actuanal gssumptions (continued)

The mortality assumptions adopted ot the year end ond the life expectancies at age 65 implied by the assumptions are as follows

2013 2012
Mortality table used
-men ‘SAPS’ SINMA L ‘SAPS SINMA_L
~women SINFA_L SINFA_L
Mortality table compared with standard table
-men 116% 110%
-women 92% 78%
Future improvernent per annum 10% 05%
Rernaining life expectancy for mernbers currently aged 65 (years)
-men 215 212
-women 246 251
Remaining life expectancy at age 65 for members currently aged 45 (years)
-men 227 218
- women 262 259

The caleulation of the scherme liabilities 1s sensitive to the actuanal assumptions and in particular to the assumptions relating to
discount rate, price mflation and mortality The following table summanses the estimated impact on scheme liabilites and
service cost resulting from changes to key actuanal assurnptions whilst holding all other assumptions constant

Assumption Change in assumption Irmpact on scheme licbilities

Discount rate Increose/decrease by 01% Decrease/increase by £38 0 million
Price nflation Increase/decrease by 0 1% Increasefdecrease by £35 0 million
Mortality Increase in life expectancy by 1 year Increase by £55 0 miflion

In redlity, interrelationships exist between the assumptions, particutarly between the discount rate and price nflatien
The above analysis does not take into account the effect of these interrelationships

{v}) Effect on future cash flows
Contribution rates are set in consultation with the trustees for each scherne and each participating employer

The average duration of the benefit obligation at the end of the year 1s 18 years (2012 18 years) The expected cash flows
payable from the schemes are presented in the graph below

Image Removed

It s anticipated that normal contnbutions to the scheme in the year ended 31 March 2014 wall be unchanged The triennial
valuations for both schernes for the year ending 31 March 2013 1s1n progress Pending completion of this valuation, future lurmp
sum defiat contnbutions will incude a payment of £10 0 million per annurm in cash and o further £8 2 milhon per annum through
an asset backed funding arrangement.
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27 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)
a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

(w1} History of actual and expected performance of pension scheme assets and liabilities

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£m £m fm £m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligations (21080 (19030) (1,7655) (1,7479) {1,3080)
Farr value of scheme assets 17243 1,5572 1,473 4 1,3930 1,0750
Deficit in schernes (3837} (345 8) {292 1) (3549 (2330)
Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets 101 3 (45) 122 2704 (329 8)
Expenence adjustments on scheme habilities {155 5) {106 2} 1051 198 {79)

b) Defined contnbution pension schemes

The group also operates defined contrbution arrangements for certan of its UK and overseas employees In September 2001,
the Severn Trent Group Pension Scheme (an occupational defined contribution pension scherme) was established to ensure
compliance with stakeholder legislation and to provide the group with an alternative pension arrangement This was closed
to new entrants on 1 April 2005 and replaced by the Severn Trent Stakeholder Pension Scherme

The total cost charged to operating costs of £6 6 million (2012 £4 9 million) represents contributions payable to these schemes
by the group at rates specified in the nules of the schemes As at 31 March 2013, all contributions (2012 100%) due inrespect
of the current reporting penod had been paid over to the schemes

28 Provisions

Terminoted
Onerous  operations
Restructunng Insurance contracts and disposals Other Total
fm fm £m £m £m fm
At1 Apnl 2012 19 249 55 64 53 440
Charged/(released) to income statement 07 90 (03) 02 20 116
Utilisation of provision {04) (88) (29) (20) (02) (14 3)
Disposal of subsidiaries - - 04) - 01 03)
Unwinding of discount - - 05 - 01 06
Exchange differences - - - - 01 01
At 31 March 2013 22 251 24 46 74 417
2013 2012
£fm £m
Included in
Current habilibes 111 170
Non-current labilities 306 270
417 440

The restructuring provision reflects costs to be incurred in respect of comrritted restructunng prograrmmes

Derwent Insurance Lirmited, a captive insurance company, 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of the group Prowisions for claims are made
as set out 0 note 2 The associated outflows are estimated to anse over a pened of up to five years from the balance sheet date
The cnerous contract provision relates to specific contractual liabilities either assurmed with businesses acquired or ansing in
existing group businesses, where estimated future costs are not expected to be recovered m revenues The assoaated outflows

are estimated to occur over a penod of 10 years from the balance sheet date

Provistons retating to terminated operations and disposals include amounts that it 1s probable will be paid in respect of daims
ansing from services performed by these businesses and the indemnities descnbed in note 37 b)

Other provisions nclude provisions for dilapidations and commercial disputes The associated outflows are estimated to anse over
a period up to six years from the balance sheet date
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29 Share capital

2013 2012
£m £fm

Totalssued and fully paid share caprtal i
238,365,734 ordinary shares of 97'7/1sp {2012 237,608,111) 2333 2326

Changes in share capital were os follows

Number fm
Ordinary shares of 97Vhep
At1 Apnl 2011 237,142,534 2322
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 442,593 04
Shares issued under the Unappraved Share Option Scheme 22,984 -
At 1 Apnl 2012 237,608,111 2326
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 757,623 07
At 31 March 2013 238,365,734 2333
30 Share premium
2013 2012
£m £m
At 1 Aprl 838 800
Share premium anising on 1ssue of shares for Employee Sharesave Scheme i 59 37
Share premium ansing on issue of shares for Unapproved Share Option Scheme - 01
At 31 March 897 838
31 Other reserves
Capital Tronslotion
redemption  Infrastructure  exchange Hedging
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
fm fm £m £m fm
At1Apnl 2011 ) 1561 3142 254 (312) 4645
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - {14) 629) {643)
At 1 Apnl 2012 i 1561 3142 240 (941) 4002
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (314 2) 49 (18 6) (3279)
At 31 March 2013 1561 - 289 {112 7) 723

The caprtal redemption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares

The infrastructure reserve arose on the group’s transition to IFRS from restating Sevem Trent Water Limited’s infrastructure assets to
far value os deemed cost. In the current year Severn Trent Water Limited has adopted the new accounting standard FRS 101, which
uses the recognition and measurernent critena of IFRS The infrastructure reserve hes now been recogrised in Severn Trent Water
Limited Dunng the year Severn Trent Water Lirnted used its infrastructure reserve to 1ssue bonus shares, which were subsequently
cancelled These transactions result in a transfer from the infrastructure reserve to retained earmings in these financial statements
The translation reserve anses from exchange differences on translation of the results and finanaal position of foreign subsidianes

as well as foreign exchange differences ansing from hedges of net irvestrment.

The hedging reserve anses from gains or losses oninterest rote swaps token directly to equity under the hedge accounting
provisions of 1AS 39 and the transition rules of IFRS 1

32 Financial instruments

a) Capital management

The group’s pnincipal objectives in managing caprtat are

+ toaccess o broad range of sources of finance to obtan both the quantum required and lowest cost compatible with the need
for continuad availability,

+ to mantain an investment grade credit rating, and

+ to mantain a flexible and sustainoble balance sheet structure

The group seeks to actveve a balance of leng term funding or commitment of funds across a range of funding sources at the best

possible economic cost.

The group does not have a specific gearnng target but seeks to mantain geanng at a level consistent with ts capital management

objectives descnbed above

The group’s dvidend policy 1s a key too! In achieving its capital management objectives This policy 1s reviewed and updated in

tine with Severn Trent Water’s five year pnce control cycle and takes into account, inter alig, the planned investment programime,

the appropriate geanng level achieving a balance between an efficient cost of capital and retaning an investment grade credit

rating and delivenng an attractve and sustanable retum to shareholders
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32 Financial instruments (continued)
a) Capital management (continued)

The group monitors future funding requirernents and credit market conditions to ensure continued availablity of funds

In July 2012 the group issued a £75 million stering denorminated RP{ inked bond in the retall bond market. A coupon of 1 3%
Is payable on the notes which are due to mature in July 2022

In Jonuary 2013 the group 1ssued £500 million 3 625% Guoranteed Notes under its Euro Medium Term Note programme
The notes have a 13 yeor term

During the year, the group repaid @ £200 million bank loan that was due for repayment in July 2013
A 10 year bilaterat bank facility of £100 million was drawn in the penod
At 31 March the group’s equity and debt capital comprised the following

2013 2012
fm £m
Cash and short term deposits . 4036 2951
Bank overdrafts i 04) (04)
Bank loans . (7587) (8525}
Other loans ~ {3,8409) (3,3269)
Obligations under finance leases ) (201 6) (2190
Cross currency swaps 1007 1359
Net debt o 42973) (3,967 8)
Equity attnbutable to the owners of the company (8332) (973 5)
Total capital (5,1305) (4,941 3}
b) Categones of financial assets
2013 2012
fm Em
Far value through profit and loss X
Cross cummency swaps - far value hedges ) 603 952
Foreign exchange forward contracts - not hedge accounted ) 01 -
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted 210 237
Energy swaps - cash flow hedges ) 09 25
Cross currency swaps - not hedge occounted 488 412
1311 1626
Available for sale investments carred at far value
Unquoted shares 01 01
Loans and recenvables (including cash and cash equivalents)
Trade recenvables 1967 1811
Short term deposits 3557 2577
Cash at bank and in hand 480 374
600 4 4762
Total financial assets 7316 6389
Disclosed in the balance sheet as
Non-current assets
Derivative financial instruments 1301 1326
Avallable for sale financial assets 01 01
1302 1327
Current assets .
Danvative financial instruments ) 10 300
Cash ond cash equivalents ) 4036 2951
Trade recewvables {note 22) 1967 1811
6013 506 2

7315 6389
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32 Financial instruments (centinued)
c) Categones of financial liebilities
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2013 2012
£m £m
Farr vatue through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted (84) (05)

Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges

Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted

Energy swaps - cash flow hedges

Foreign exchange forward contracts - not hedge accounted

(1280) (916)
(1718)  (1944)
(18) (14)
02 (06)

(3102) (288 5)

Other finencal Labilities

Bank loans

Otherloans

Obligations under finance leases
Bank overdrafts

Trade payables

(7587)  (8525)
(3,8409) (3,3269)
(2016)  (2190)
04 04)
(307) (349)

{4,8323) (44337)

Total financial habilities

{5,1425) (4,7222)

Disclosed in the balance sheet as
Non-current babilibes

Dervative financal instruments
Borrowings

Trade payables

(309 6) (2880)
{(46313) (43095)
(20) -

(4,9429) (4,5975)

Current Labitiies

Denvative financial iInstruments
Borrowings

Trade payables (note 25)

(06) {05)
(1703) (893)
(287) (349)

(199 6) (1247)

(5,1425) (4,7222)

d} Fair values of financial instruments

Except as disclosed below, the directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and babilities recorded in the

financial staterrents approximate ther far values

2013 2012

Book value far volue Book value Farr value

Em £m £m fm
Bank loans - amortised cost . (7587)  (7816) (8525)  (8583)
Cther loans (3,8409) (45852) (33269 (3,9362)
Obligations under finance leases — amortised cost (201 6) (208 2) (219 0) (215 4)
(4,8012) (55750) (43984) (50099)

Discounted future cash flows are used to determine farr values for debt Discount rates are derved from yield curves based on

quoted interest rates and are adjusted for the group’s credit nisk.
Fair value measurements recogrised in the balance sheet

In 2013 and 2012, all the farr values of financial instrurmnents that were measured subsequent to inial recognition at far value,
were based on chservable inputs other than quoted pnces for iIdentical Instruments, defined as ‘Level 2’ in IFRS 7

The far volue of interest rate swaps 1s catculated os the present value of the estimoted future cosh flows estimoted and discounted

based on the application of yeld curves denved from quoted interest rates

Cross currency swaps and forward exchange contracts are valued by reference to quoted forward exchange rates ot the
batance sheet date ond yield curves denved from quoted interest rates matching the maturities of the contracts
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32 Financial instruments {continued)
e) Financial nsk factors

The group's activities expose it to a vanety of financial nsks market nsk (including currency and interest rate nsk), credit nsk,
liquichty nsk and inflation nsk. The group’s overall nsk management programme addresses the unpredictability of finanacl
markets and seeks to reduce potentiol adverse effects on the group’s financial performance or position

Financial risks are managed by o central treasury department (Group Treasury) under policies approved by the board of
directors Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financiol nisks in close cooperation with the group’s operating
units The baard provides written prinaiples for overall nsk management, os well os written policies covenng specific areas
such as exchange rate nsk, interest rate risk, credit nisk and the use of denvative and non-dervative financial Instruments
Dervatve financial instruments are used to hedge exposure to changes in exchange rotes and interest rates

The group’s policy is thot denvative finanaial instrumenits are et held for trading

{1) Market nsk

The prinaipal market nsk that the group 1s exposed to is fluctuations in interest rates

Interest rate nsk

The group’s incerne and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates

The group’s Interest rate nsk anses from long term borrowings Borrowings issued at vaniable rates expose the group to

cash flow interest rate nsk Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the group to far volue interest rate nsk The group’s policy
s to maintan 45% to 90% of its net debt n fixed rate nstruments At 31 March 2013 76 8% of the group’s net debt was at
fixed rotes (2012 74 0%)

The group manages its cash flow interest rate nsk by using floating to fixed interest rate swaps Such interest rate swaps have the
econormic effect of converting borrowings from flooting rates to fixed rates Under the terms of the interest rate swaps, the group
ogrees with other parties to exchange, manty semi-annually, the difference between fixed contract and floating rate interest

rates calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts The group has entered into a series of long dated interest
rate swaps to hedge future interest payments Economically these act to fix the interest cost of debt within the group which is
denominated as floating rate, but do not achieve hedge accounting under the strict cntena of IAS 39 This has led to a £25 2 rrullion
charge (2012 charge of £80 3 million) in the income statement.

Some of the group’s debt 1s iIndex-linked, thot 1s its cost 1s Inked to changes in the Retail Pnce Index (RPI) This debt provides on
economic hedge for Severn Trent Water's revenues and Regulatory Capital Value that are alse RPI inked under its regulatory regirme

Finanaial liabilitres analysed by interest rate after taking account of vonous interest rate swaps entered into by the group
Non-interest

beanng Roating Fixed Index-
hobilities rate rate linked Total
2013 £&m £m £m £m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts - (300 4) (191 0) (267 7) (759 1)
Cther locns (12) (1952) (2,5410) (1,1035) (3,8409)
Finance leases - - (201 6) - (201 &)
Other financial kabiities {367) - - - (307)

(319 (4956) (29336) (1,3712) (4,8323)
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched against

specific debt instruments - 3649 (364 9) - -
(319) {1307) (3,2985) (1,3712) (4,8323)
Weighted average interest rate 5 44%

Weighted average penod for which interest is fixed {years) 113
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32 Financtal instruments (continued)

e) Financial nsk factors (continued)

(1) Market risk (continued)

Financal habilities analysed by interest rate ofter takeng account of vanous nterest rate swaps entered into by the group {contmued)

Non-interest

beanng Floating Fixed Index-

liabilities rate rate linked Total
2012 £m £m fm fm £m
Bank loans and overdrafts - (500 4} (192 2) {160 3) (852 9)
Other loans (12} (2652) {20631) (997 4} (3,3269)
Finance leases - - (2190 - (2190)
Other finanoal labilities (34 9) - - - (349)

(361) {7656) (24743) (1,1577) (44337)
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched against

specific debt instruments - 463 6 (463 6) - -
(361) (3020) (29379) (11,1577 (4,4337)
Weighted average interest rate 584%
Weighted average penod for which interest s fixed (years) 128
Financiat assets analysed by interest rates
Nor-interest
beanng Floating Fixed Index-
assets rate rote linked Total
2013 Em fm £m £m £m
Avalable for sale financial assets 01 - - - 01
Loans and recevables 1567 - - - 1967
Cash and cash equivalents - 4036 - - 4036
1968 4036 - - 600 4
Non-interest
bearng Foating Fixed Index-
assets rote rate linked Total
2012 £m £m fm £m fm
Avadable for sole financiol assets Q1 - - - 01
toans and recenables 1810 - - - 1810
Cash and cash equivalerts - 2951 - - 2951
1811 2951 - - 4762
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitwity of the group's profit after tax, cosh flow and equity, Including the impact on dernvative financiol instruments,
to changes in interest rates at 31 March 15 as follows
2013 2012
+1 0% -10% +10% -10%
fm fm £fm fm
Profit after tax 628 {74 4) 753 (90 1)
Cash flow (21) 21 01 {01}
Equity 1128 (1306) 1217 (143 1)
Inflation rate sensitnvity analysis
The sensitvity of the group’s profit after tax and equity to changes in inflation at 31 March is set cut in the following table
This analysis excludes any impact on Severn Trent Water’s revenues ond Regulated Capital Value, or accounting for
defined benefit pension schemes
2013 2012
+1 0% -1 0% +1 0% -10%
fm £fm £m fm
Profit after tax ) (104) 104 (8 8) 88
Equity (104) 104 (88) 88
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32 Financaial instruments (continued)

e) Finoncial rsk factors {continued)

() Market nsk (continued}

Exchange rate nsk

The group operates internationally and 1s exposed to exchange nisk ansing from net investrments in foreign operations, pnmanly
with respect to the US dollar and the euro However, since substanticlly all of the group’s profits and net assets arise from
Severn Trent Water, which has very imited and indirect exposure to changes in exchange rates, the sensitivity of the group's
results to changes in exchange rates is not matenal

The group’s net debt includes foreign currency borrowings, prmanly denominated in yen and euros The group's policy 1sto
manage the exchange nsk arising from foreign curmency borrowings by entenng into cross currency swaps or forward controcts
with external parties

The group’s gross and net currency exposures ansing from currency borrowings are summansed below

Euro US dollar Jopanese yen Czech krona

2013 €m Sm ¥bn CZKm
Borrowings by currency (7216} (500) (245 {6200)
Cross currency swaps - hedge accounted 199 500 145 6200
Cross cusrency swaps - not hedge accounted 7000 - 100 -

(17 - - -
Cash 39 381 - -
Net currency exposure 22 381 - -

Euro US dollar Jopanese yen  Czech krona

2012 €m Sm ¥bn CZKm
Borrowings by currency {7206) (500) (300) {1,9700)
Cross currency swaps - hedge accounted 199 500 200 1,9700
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted 7000 - 100 -

o7 - - -
Cash 53 221 - -
Net currency exposure 46 221 - -

The euro and US dollar net cash balances relate to operations in which the euro or US doltar is the functional currency

Monetary assets and labilities by currency, excluding functional currency

Certain of the group’s subsidianies enter into transactions in curencies other than the functional currency of the operation
Exchange nsks relating to such operations are not material but are managed centrally by Group Treasury through forward
exchange controcts to buy or sell currency

{n) Credit nsk

Operationally the group has no significant concentrations of credit nsk Tt has policies in place to ensure that soles of products
are made to customers with an appropnate credit history, other than in Severn Trent Water Limited, whose operating licence
obliges it to supply domestic customers even in cases where bills are not paid Amounts provided against accounts recewvable
and movements on the provision dunng the year are disclosed in note 22

For finanaing purposes, denvative counterparties and cash transactions are imited to high credit quality financiol institutions
The group has policies that limit the amount of credit expasure to any one financial Nstitution

Credit nsk analysis

At 31 March the aggregate credit imits of authonised counterparties and the amounts held on short term deposits were os follows
Credit irnut Armount deposited
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
AAA 200 200 13 01
Double A range ) 1500 1500 820 1111
Single A range 6250 4500 2724 1465

7950 6200 3557 2

577
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32 Financial instruments {continued)
e} Financial nsk factors (continued)

(n) Credit nsk (continued)

Credit nsk analysis (contmued)

The fair values of denvative assets analysed by credit ratings of counterparties were as follows
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Dernvotive assets

2013 2012

Rating £m fm
Double A range 297 446
Single Arange 1014 1180

1311 1626

()} Liquicity nsk

Prudent iquidity management implies mamntaining sufficient cash balances ond the ovailability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed faclities and the ability to close out market positions Group Treasury manages liquidity and flexibility in
funding by monitoning forecast and actual cash flows and the maturity prefile of financial assets and labdities, and by keeping

committed credit bnes avalloble

At the balance sheet date the group had committed undrown borrowing facilities expinng as follows.

2013 2012

£m fm

Within one year - -
1-2 years - -
2-5 years 5000 5000
After more than five years - 1000
5000 6000

Non-denvative financial instruments analysed by matunty date

The following tables detal the group’s remaining contractual matunty for its non-denvative net financial labilities
The information presented 1s based on the earliest dote on which the group can be required to pay and represents

the undiscounted cash flows including principol and interest

Between Between Between Betweenten Greater
Wwithnone oneandtwo twoondfive fiveandten ondtwenty thantwenty
year years yeors years years years Total
2013 £ £fm £m fm £m £m fm
Financal labibities
Overdraft (04) - - - - - (04)
Bank loans {182 3) (12 3) {3363) (3197) (290) - (879 6)
Other loans {199 4) (4012} (2,0710) 6067) (2,1799) (56779 (11,1361}
Finance leases {4 6} (282) (81 3) (379 (1131) - (2651)
Other financial kabilittes (307) - - - - - (307)
(417 4) (4417) (2,4886) (964 3) (2,3220) (56779 (123119)
Financial assets
Trade recevables 1967 - - - - - 1967
Cash and short terrn deposits 403 6 - - - - - 4036
6003 - - - - - 6003
Net cash flows 1829 4417) (2,488 6) (9643) (2,3220) (56779 (11,7116)
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32 Financial instruments {continued)

e) Financial nsk factors (continued)

() Liquidity nisk {(continued)

Non-dervatrve financiol instruments analysed by matunty date {(continued)

Between Between Between Betweenten Greater
Withinone oneandtwo twoondfve fveondten andtwenty than twenty
year years years yeors years years Total
2012 £m £m fm £m £m £m fm
Financial labibties
Overdraft {04) - - - - - (04
Bank loans 207)  (386)  (1914)  (3401) (339) - {9707)
Other loans (262 1) (1751) (1,9089) (8377) (22248 (60227 (11,4313)
Finance leases 4 4) (254) {103 6) (356) (1231) - (292 1)
Cther financial labilities (349) - - - - - (349)

(322 5) (5851) (2,2039) (1,2134) (2,3818) (60227) (12,7294)

Financial assets

Trade recevables 1811 - - - - - 1811
Cash ond short term deposits 2951 - - - - - 2951

4762 - - - - - 4762
Net cash flows 1537 (5851) (2,2039) (1,2134) (2,3818) (60227) (12,2532)

Other loans include index-linked debt with matunties up to 55 years The principal is revalued at fixed intervals and 1s inked to
movements in the Retail Price Index Interest payments are made biannually based on the revolued principal The principal
repayment equals the revalued amount at maturity The calculations above cre based on forward infiation rates at the
balance sheet date

The group has bank loans which may become repayabtle in certain arcumstances following a change in control of Severn Trent Plc
The carrying value at 31 March 2013 of bank loons subject to such condions was £617 3 mullion

Dervative financal instruments analysed by maturity date

The following table details the group’s hquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments The tobles are based on the
undiscounted net cash inflows/{outflows) on the denvative financial Instruments that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted
gross inflows/{outflows) on those dervatives thot require gress settlement. When the amount payable or receivable 1s not fixed,
the amount disclosed has been deterrmined by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates denved from the
forward curves existing ot the balance sheet date Actual arnounts rnay be significaritly different from those indicated below

Between Between Between Between ten Gregater
Withnorne oneandtwo twoondfve fiveondten andtwenty thantwenty
year years years years years years Total
2013 £m £m £fm £m £fm fm fm
Dernvatre ighilifies
Instruments settled net
Interest rate swaps (363) (412) (1109) (97 6) (559) (22) (344 1)
Energy swaps 03) (15) - - - - {18)
(366) (427) (1109) (976) (559) (22) (3459)
Denvative assets
Instruments settled net
Interest rate swaps 86 86 41 - - - 213
Energy swaps 10 - - - - - i0
Instruments settled gross
Cross currency swaps
- cash receipts 373 1254 6835 56 407 - 8925
- cash payments (362) (983) (600 2} (32) (237) - (761 6)
107 357 874 24 170 - 1532

Net cash flow {259) (70) {235) (85 2) (389) (22) (192 7}
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32 Financial instruments {continued)
e) Financial risk factors {continued)

(i) Liquidity nsk (continued)
Dernvative financiat instruments analysed by matunty date {continued)
Between Between Between Between ten Greater
Withnone oneandtwe twoaondfive fiveandten andtwenty thantwenty
year years years years years years Total
2012 £m £m £m £fm fm £m fm
Denwvative habilities
Instruments settled net
Interest rate swaps (335) (394) {1106) (936) (749) {4 6) {356 6)
Energy swaps - (0 4) (11) - - - (15)
(335) (398) (111 7) (936) (749) {4 6) (3581)
Dervative assets
Instruments settled net
Interest rate swaps 38 32 34 - - - 104
Energy swaps 18 o7 - - - - 25
Instruments settled gross
Cross currency swaps
- cash receipts 1259 374 8149 52 447 - 1,0281
- cash payments (97 8) (370) (715 &) 37 {24 8) - (878 7)
337 43 1029 15 199 - 1623
Net cash flow 02 (355) 88) (921) (550) {4 6) (195 8)

f) Hedge accounting

The group uses dervative financial nstruments to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest rates

Hedge accounting 1s adopted for such instruments where the critena set out in IAS 39 are met

(1} Far value hedges

The group raises debt denomunated in currencies other than sterling - prinaipally yen and euro Cross currency swaps are entered
Into gt the time that the debt s drawn down to swap the proceeds into sterling debt bearing interest based on LIBOR in order to
mitigate the group’s exposure ta exchange rate fluctuations The terms of the recevable leg of the swaop closely match the terms
of the underying debt hence the swops are expected to be effective hedges At the year end the amounts of cross curency swaps
designated os farr value hedges were as follows

Notional pnnapal amount Far value
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m fm fm
US dollar 270 270 87 76
Euro 114 114 93 78
Yen 714 984 353 590
Czech krona 147 472 70 208
1245 1840 603 952

{u) Cash flow hedges

The group has entered into interest rate swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and floating
interest rote amounts calculated on agreed notional principal omounts Such contracts enable the group te mitigate the nsk of
changing interest rates on future cash flow exposures ansing from issued vanable rate debt The group also entered into a number
of nterest rate contracts with future start dates during the AMPS regulatory period Such contracts enable the group to mitigate
the nsk of changing interest rates on debt which 1s highly probable to be 1ssued over the AMPS penod to fund Severn Trent Water's
capital programme and have been accounted for as cash flow hedges The far value of interest rate swaps at the balance sheet
date s determined by discounting the future cash flows using the yield curve prevailing at the balance sheet dote and the credit nsk

inherent in the contract.

The interest rate swaps primanty settle net on a biannual basis The floating rate on the interest rate swaps 15 six month LIBOR
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32 Financial instruments (continued)
f) Hedge accounting {continued)
(u} Cash flow hedges (continued)

Details of interest rate swaps that have been accounted for os cosh flow hedges are summansed below

Average contract fixed

Interest rate Notional principal amount Fair value

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Pertod to matunty % % fm Em Em £m
Less than 10 years - - - - - -
10-20 years 507% 507% 4910) {492 3) (1280) (916)
More than 20 years - - - - - -
507% 507% 491 0} {492 3) (1280) (91 6)

The group has entered intc a senes of energy swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and

market pnces of electnaty ot six monthty intervals up to March 2015

Detalls of energy swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summansed below

Average controct price  Nohional contracted amount Farr volue

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Penod to matunty £/MWh £/Mwh MWwh MWh £m Em
Less than 1 year “ 533 488 550,368 725,088 06 18
1-2 years i 625 533 174,720 550,368 (15 03
2-5 years - 629 - 174,720 - {10)
556 522 725,088 1,450,176 {09) 11

Changes in the amounts deferred in eguity during the period relating to cash flow hedges were as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Far value (losses)/gains deferred in equity at the start of the period (64 4) 184
Far value losses recognised in equity in the period (390) (865)
Far value gans transferred to finance costs in the period 148 37
Farr value losses deferred in equity at the end of the penod (88 6) (64 4)

{ni) Interest rate sweps not hedge accounted

The group hos a number of interest rate swaps which are not accounted for as cash flow hedges Duning the year, the group
terminated three of these swaps, with a notional value of £100 0 million, ot a cash outlay of £44 3 million

Contracts where the group pays fixed rate interest are surmmansed below

Average contract fixed
interest rate Notional pnnaipal amount Farr value
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Penod to motunty % % £m £m £m Em
l.ess than 1 year ] - - - _ _ _
1-2 years i - - - - - -
2-5 years i 632 632 2250 2250 (317 (379
5-10 years _ - - - - - -
10-20 years 537 54 2149 3136 (906) (114 6)
20-30years 510 510 1250 1250 (49 5) (619)
559 561 5649 6636 (171 8) (194 4)
Contracts where the group receves fixed interest are summansed below
Average contract fixed
interest rate Notional pnnctpal amount Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Penod to matunty % % fm £m £m £m
Less than 1 yeor i - - - - - -
1-2 years i - - - - - -
2-5 years 518 518 2000 2000 210 237
518 518 2000 2000 210 237
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33 Share based payments

The group operates a number of share based remuneration schemes for employees Dunng the year, the group recognised
total expenses of £6 8 mitlion (2012 £4 1 mithion) related to equity settled share based payment transactions

The weighted average share price dunng the penod was £16 49 (2012 £15 00)

At 31 March 2013, there were no options exercisable (2012 none) under any of the share based remuneration schermes

a} Long Term Incentve Plans (LTIPs)

Under the LTIPs conditional awards of shares may be made to executive directors and senior stoff Awards are subject to
performance conditions and continued employment throughout the vesting perod  Awards have been made on different bases
to Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water employees (the LTIF) and to Severn Trent Services ermployees (the Services LTIP)

{) Awards outstanding

Awards made under the LTIP

In July 2012 awards over 99,886 shares (2012 112,446 shares) with o far value of £15 36 (2012 £12 16) were made to

16 employees (2012 18 employees) under the LTIP These awards are subject to Severn Trent Water's achievernent of Return
on Regulated Capital Value in excess of the level included in the Severn Trent Water AMPS business plan over a three year
vesting pened It has been assumed that performance aganst the LTIP non-market conditions will be 100% (2012 100%)

Awaords made under the Senvices LTIP
In July 2012 awards over 28,599 shares (2012 38,493 shares) with a fair value of £15 36 (2012 £12 16) were made to nine

employees (2012 10 employees) under the Services LTIP These awards are subject to achievement of turnover and profit torgets
inthe year ending 31 March 2015 [t has been ossumed that performance against the 2011 Services LTIP non-market conditions

will be 10% (2012 75%) and the 2012 Services LTIP will be 75%

The awards granted in July 2008 vest in three equal tranches which are subject to achievement of turnover and profit targets in the

years ending 31 March 2011, 2012 and 2013 it hos been assumed that performaonce aganst the 2008 Services LTIP non-market

conditions will be 0% (2012 0%)
Details of chonges in the number of awards outstanding dunng the year are set out below

Number of awards

LTIP ServicesLTIP
QOutstanding at 1 April 2011 402,701 101,387
Granted dunng the year 112,446 38,493
Forferted during the year (14946} (10,329)
Lapsed dunng the year (116,714)  (34,607)
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2012 . 383487 94,944
Granted dunng the year 95,886 28,599
Vested duning the year ~ (46,025) -
Lapsed dunng the year (116,324)  (33,671)
Outstanding at 31 March 2013 321,024 89,872
Details of LTIP and Services LTIP awards cutstanding at 31 March were as follows

Numnber of owards
Date of grant Normal date of vesting 2013 2012
July 2008 2012 - 33671
July 2008 2013 31,145 31,145
Juty 2009 2012 - 151,786
Juty 2010 2013 125,568 127,727
July 2011 2014 129209 134,102
July 2012 2015 124,974 -

410,896 478431
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33 Share based payments {continued})
a) Long Term Incentive Plans {LTIPs} {continued)
(n) Far value

The share price at the grant date was £17 49 (2012 £13 98) The vesting pencd commences before the grant date

Performance in the vesting penod pror to the grant date 1s token into account in deterrmining the fair value of the award

The farr value of the LTIP awards made dunng the year was calculated using the Black-Scholes method with the principol
assumptions set out below

Assumptions 2013 2012
Expected volatility - Severn Trent Plc 18% 27%
Expected dwidend yield 43% 4 7%

Expected volatility is measured over a histoncal period, prior to grant, commensurate with the expected term of the awards
Volatility has been calculated based on historical share pnce movements over the three years pnor to the date of the grant

The risk free rate is denved from yields at the grant date of gilts of similar duration to the LTIP awards
The dwvidend yield 5 colculated using the expected dividend for the year divwded by the share price at the date of grant
Detalls of the basis of the LTIP schemes are set out in the remuneration report on pages 67 and 68

b) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board may grant the night to purchase erdinary shares in the company to those
employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Earn contract for o period of three or five years

(1) Options outstanding
The number of employees entenng into Sharesave contracts and the number of options granted dunng the year were as follows
2013 2012
3 year S year 3 year 5 year
scheme scheme scheme scherme
Number of emnployees ) 1,872 412 1,610 363
Number of options granted 456,821 144,584 450,930 127,631
Details of changes in the number of options outstanding dunng the year are set out below
Weighted
Number of average

share ocptions exercise price

Qutstanding at 1 Apnl 2011 3,128,185 904p
Granted dunng the year 568,561 1,177p
Forfeited dunng the year (60,732) 903p
Cancelled dunng the year (51,578) 947p
Exercised dunng the year (442,593) 928p
Lapsed dunng the year (57,357) 913p
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2012 _ 3,084,486 950p
Granted dunng the year 601,415 1,241p
Forfeited dunng the yeor (41,494} 1,005p
Cancelled dunng the year (44,590)  1,0894p
Exercised duning the year (757,623) 928p
Lapsed dunng the year (7,708) 1,028p
Qutstanding at 31 March 2013 2,834,486 1,027p
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33 Share based payments (continued}
b} Employee Sharesave Scheme (continued)

(i} Options outstanding {continued)
Sharesave options outstanding at 31 March were as follows

121

Number of share options
Date of gront Normol date of exercise  Option price 2013 2012
January 2005 2012 759p - 52,912
January 2006 2013 823p 20,468 20,468
January 2007 2012 or 2014 1,172p 11,392 78,280
Jonuary 2008 2013 1,221p 74,976 78,488
Jaruary 2009 2012 or 2014 862p 511,960 1,141,447
January 2010 2013 or 2015 806p 774028 810413
January 2011 2014 or 2016 1,137p 315258 334910
January 2012 2015 or 2017 1177p 525,534 567,568
January 2013 2016 0r 2018 1,241p 600,870 -
2,834,486 3,084,486

() Fair value

The fair value of the Sharesave options granted duning the year was calculated using the Black-Scholes model.

The principal assumptions were as follows

2013 2012
3 year 5 year 3 year Syear
Assurnptions scheme scheme scheme scheme
Expected volatibity ) 18% 18% 27% 27%
Expected dvidend yteld 4 7% 4 7% 4 6% 4 6%
Risk free rate ) 046% 096% 053% 175%
Farr value per share 257p 239 320p 339p
Expected volatility 1s measured over a histoncal peniad, pnor to grant, commensurate with the expected term of the owards
Volatility has been calculated based on historical share price movements over the three years prior to the date of the grant.
The nisk free rate 1s denved from yields at the grant date of gilts of similar duration to the Sharesave controcts
The dividend yield s calculated using the expected dividend for the year dided by the share price at the date of grant.
The following data was used in calculating the fair value of the Sharesave options
2013 2012
3year 5 year 3year 5 year
scheme scheme scheme scheme
Share pnce at grant date ~ 1,605p 1,605p 1,520p 1,520p
Vesting pencd (years) ) 3 5 3 5
Option life (years) 35 55 35 55

¢) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

Under the SIP the board may grant share awards to ernployees of group companies During the year the board has announced
that 1t wall make awards under the SIP bosed on performonce ogainst Severn Trent Water's targets for its Key Performance
Indicators Eligible employees will be entitled to shares to a maximum volue of £750 It 1s expected that these awards will be

made In August 2013 SIP shares vest with the employee on the date of grant.
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33 Share based payments {continued)
d) Share Matching Plan (SMP}

Under the Share Matching Plan members of the Executive Committee recerve rmatching share awards over those shares which have
been acquired under the deferred share compenent of the annucl bonus scheme Matching shares may be awarded at a maxamum
ratio of one matching share for every one deferred share and are subject to a three year vesting perncd Dunng the year matching
shares were awarded at aratio of 051

Matching shares are subject to total shareholder return over three years measured relative to the companies ronked 51-150
by market capitalisation in the FTSE Index {excluding investrment trusts) This replicates the LTIP performance condition for the
July 2010 award

The nurmber of shares subject to an award will Increase to reflect dvidends paid through the performance period on the basis of
such notional dvidends being reinvested at the then prevailling share price Awards will normally vest as soon as the Rermuneration
Committee determines that the performance conditions have been met provided that the participant rermains in employment at
the end of the performance period

(1) Awards outstanding

During the year 18,024 (2012 19,072) matching shares with a far value of £11 43 (2012 £8 84} were awarded to 10 employees
(2012 11)

Number of awards
Cutstonding at 1 Apnt 2011 25,187
Granted dunng the year 19,072
Cancelled during the year {1,900)
Vested dunng the year {909)
Qutstanding at 1 Apnl 2012 41,450
Granted dunng the year - 18,024
Cancelled dunng the year (2,091)
Qutstanding at 31 March 2013 57,383
Details of share matching awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Number of awards
Date of grant Normal date of vesting 2013 2012
May 2010 ) June 2013 20,748 22,378
May 2011 ] May 2014 18,611 19,072
May 2012 May 2015 18,024 -

57,383 41,450

{n) Faur value

The fair value of the share matching awards made dunng the year was calculated using the Mente Carlo method using the
pnncipal assumptions set out below

Assumptions 2013 2012
Expected volotility — Severn Trent Plc 182% 258%
Risk free rate 03% 14%

Share pnce volatility 1s based on observations over a histonical peniod prior to the date of grant, commensurate with the expected
term of the performance period Velatility has been calculated based on histancal share pnce movements over the three years pnor
to the grant date

The share price at the grant date was £17 01 (2012 £1502)
Dwndends paid on the shares dunng the vesting penod are accumulated dunng the vesting penod and releosed subject to the

achievernent of the performance condition, in the same manner as the underying shares As o result a dvidend yield assumption
15 not required
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34 Acquisitions
In July 2012 the group acquired the trade and assets of Chlorine Engineers’ CECHLO business {CEC) for cash consideration
of £1 3 million This transaction has been accounted for by the purchase method of accounting

Book value Farr value

£m fm
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets ) 13 13
Total consideration 13
Satisfied by )
Cash 13

CEC contributed £2 1 rrullion to revenue and incurred a loss before tox of £0 1 million for the penod between the date
of acquisitron and the batance sheet date

35 Disposal of businesses

On 22 June 2012 the group completed the sale of its meter nstallation, repair and replacement business to Enterpnse Plc
On 4 February 2013 the group disposed of Severn Trent Analytical Services to ALS Limited

The net assets of the businesses at the dates of disposat were as follows

Total
fm
Net assets disposed of .
Intangible assets 05
Property, plant and equipment 95
Inventory ) 12
Trade and cther recevables ) 50
Trade and other payables 29
Bank overdraft i (21)
Prowvisions (24)
88
Costs associated with disposals
Disposal costs ) 09
Provisions ansing on disposal ) 21
Net loss on disposal ) (15)
Total consideration 103
Satisfied by
Cash ] 103
Net cash flow ansing from disposals
Consideration receved in cash and cash equivalents ) 103
Bank overdraft disposed of 21
124
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36 Cash flow statement
a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2013 2012

fm fm

Profit before interest and tax 4922 4698
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2646 2560
Amortisation of ntangible assets 305 308
Exceptionat imparment 82 229
Pension service cost 232 226
Curtaitment gain - {231)
Pension contrbutions {435) {535)
Share based payments charge 68 41
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (104) (4 4)
Loss on disposal of businesses 15 -
Deferred income moverment (93) 87)
Prowvisions charged to the income statement 116 168
Utlisation of provisions for labilities and charges (14 3) (111)
Decrease/(increase) in Inventory 19 (74)
{Increase)/decrease in amounts recevable (29 4) 61
{Decrease)/increase in amounts payable (24) 50
Cash generated from operations 7312 7259
Tax paid {725) {720)
Net cash generated from operating activities 6587 6539

b) Non-cash transactions

No additions to property, ptant and equipment dunng the year were financed by new finance leases (2012 nil) Assets transferred

from developers were £23 0 million (2012 £37 0 million}
¢} Exceptional cash flows

The following cash flows arose from items dassified as exceptional in the income statement.

2013 2012

fm fm
Restructunng costs (4 4) (144)
Disposal of fixed assets 151 -
Customer contractual disputes 06} -
Requlatory matters - (39
Finance costs - {165)
101 (34 8}

d) Reconaiation of movement in cash and cosh equivalents to movement in net debt

Asat RP1 uplft on Other Asat

1 Apnl Farvalue index-linked Foreign non cash 31 March

2012 Cashflow adjustments debt  exchange movements 2013

£m fm fm fm Em fm fm

Cash and cash equvalents 2951 108 4 - - 01 - 4036
Bank overdrafts 04) - - - - - ©4)
Net cash and cash equivalents 2947 108 4 - - 01 - 4032
Bark loans (852 5) 1013 - {(75) - - (7587)
Other loans (3,3269) {509 7} 34 (321) {11) 255  (3,8409)
Finance leases (2190) 174 - - - - {201 6)
Cross currency swaps 1359 - {80) - - (27 2) 1007
Net debt (3,967 8) (282 6) {4 6) {396) {10) (17) (4,2973)
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37 Contingent Labilities

a) Bonds and guarantees

Group undertakings have entered into bonds and guorantees in the norral course of business No lability 15 expected to anse in
respect of either bonds or guarantees

The group has grven certain guarantees in respect of the borrowings of its associate, Servizio Idnco Integrato S ¢ pa The guarantees
areimited to €11 2 million (2012 €11 2 milton} The group does not expect any Liabilities that are not prowided for In these financiat
statements to anse from these arrangements

b) Disposal of subsidiaries

The group has gven certan guarantees and indemnities in relation to dispasals of businesses

Following a heaning in the Commerciot Court In Belgium n February 2010 in relation to a claim from Veolia Proprete S.A (Veolia)
ansing from the sale of Biffa Belgium to Veclia in 2006, the Court rendered judgemeent in favour of the group on 1 Apn! 2010 and

declared all of Veolia's claims to be unfounded Veolia has filed an appeal against this decsion, however, the group constders that
Veolia's case remains unfounded and no provision has been recarded in respect of this matter

The group I1s not aware of any other liability that 15 likely to result from these guarantees and indemnities that has not been provided
for m these financial staternents

38 Service concession arrangements

The group’s contract to provide water and waste water services to the Ministry of Defence {MoD} 1s a service concession
arrongement under the definition set out i IFRIC 12 The group acts os the service provider under the MoD Project Aquatnine
Package C - a 25 year contract spanning 1,523 sites across England covenng the Eastern sea border and from Lancashire in the
North West to West Sussex on the South Coast.

Under the contract the group maintains and upgrades the MaD infrastructure assets and provides operating services for water and
waste water The maintenance ond upgrade services are charged at an agreed rate, adjusted for inflation, that is agreed in the
contract. The operating services are charged under an agreed volumetnc tanff

Since the group has an unconditional nght to receive cash in exchange for the maintenance and upgrade services, the amounts
recenvable are recognised os a finanaial asset within prepayments and accrued income At 31 March 2013 the amounts recevable
were £26 8 million (2012 £25 S million)

There have been no significant changes to the arrangement during the year

39 Financial and other commitrments
a) Investrment expenditure commitments

2013 2012
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided n the financiol statements 2249 1598

In addition to these contractual commitments, Severn Trent Water Limited has longer term expenditure plans which include
Investrments to achieve Improvements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water Services {Ofwat) and to prowide
for growth in demand for water and sewerage services

b) Leasing commitments

At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding commutrments for future minimum operating lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due os follows

2013 2012

fm fm

Within 1 year ) 47 47
2-5years . 109 120
After more than 5 years 70 81
226 248

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties, plant and equipment
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40 Post balance sheet events

Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dvidend of 45 51 pence per share Further detoils of this are

shown in note 14

41 Related party transactions

Trunsactions between the company andits subsidianes, which are related parties, hove been elirminated on consolidation
and are not included in this note Transactions between the group ond 1ts associates and joint ventures are disciosed below

Trading transactions

Amounts due Amounts due

Sale of goods Purchose of goods from related parties to related parties

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m Em £m £m £m Em

SII 69 56 - - 164 161 - -

The related parties are associates and jont ventures in which the group has a partiaipating interest The retirement benefit schemes
operated by the group are considered to be related parties Details of transactions and balances with the retirement benefit

schemes are disclosed in note 27
Remuneraticn of key management personnel
Key management personnel comprise the rmembers of the Executive Committee during the year

The remuneration of the directors Is included within the amounts disclosed below Further information about the remuneration of

indvidual directors is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 57 to 70

2013 2012

fm Em

Short term employee benefits 60 51
Post employment benefits 01 05
Share based payments 10 08
71 64
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42 Subsidiary undertakings
Principal subsidiary undertakings

Details of the pnncipal operating subsidianes as at 29 May 2013 are given below A complete list of subsidiary undertakings
15 available on request to the company and will be filed with the next Annual Retum

Alt shareholdings cre in ondinary shares

All subsidiary undertakings have been induded in the consolidation

Country of Proportion of
Name mncorporation Principal octiity ownership interest
Prowision of insurance services
Derwent Insuronce Limited Gibraltar to other group companies 100%
Severn Trent Costain Limited Great Bntan Operation of water and sewerage infrastructure 60%
Severn Trent Costain Water Limited Great Britain Prowision of water and sewerage services to MoD i 80%
Severn Trent Environmental Services Inc. US Operation of water and seweroge infrastructure i 100%
Severn Trent Select Limited Great Britan Provision of licensed water and sewerage services 100%
Severn Trent Services Limited Great Britain Distnibution of water punfication products 100%
Sevem Trent Water Limited Great Britan Provision of regulated water and sewerage services 100%
Manufacture and distnbution of
Severn Trent Water Purification Inc us water punfication products 100%

Subsidiary audit exemptions

Severn Trent Plc hos 1ssued guarantees over the iablities of the following compantes at 31 March 2013 under section 479C of the
Companies Act 2006 and therefore auditors have not been appointed for these entibies

Company nurnber
City Analytical Serwices Lirvuted 2050581
East Worcester Water Limited 2757948
Gunthorpe Fields Limited 4240764
Severn Trent {(W&S) Limited 3995023
Severn Trent Carsington Limited 7570384
Severn Trent Corporate Holdings Limited 4395566
Severn Trent Data Portal Lirnited 8181048
Severn Trent Draycote Limted 7681784
Severn Trent Finance Holdmgs Limited 6044159
Severn Trent Finance Limited 6294618
Severn Trent Financing and Investments Limited 6312635
Severn Trent Haoldings Limited 5656363
Severn Trent Investrent Holdings Limited 7560050
Severn Trent Overseas Holdings Limited 2455508
Severn Trent Power Generation Limited 2651131
Severn Trent Property Solutions Limited 8181033
Sevemn Trent Services Holdings Limited 4395572
Sevemn Trent Services International (Overseas Holdings) Limited 3125131
Sevemn Trent Services Purficotion Lirnited 2409826
Severn Trent Systems Limited 2394552
Severn Trent Utility Services Limited 4125386
Sevemn Trent Wind Power Limited 7742177
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Severn Trent Pic

We have audited the parent company financial statements of
Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2013 which
compnse the company balance sheet, the company statement
of total recognised gains and losses, and the related notes 1 to
17 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Pant 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explaned more fully in the Directors’ responsibility
statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the parent company financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair iew Qur responsibility 1s to audit
and express an opinton on the parent company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financiat statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate to the parent company’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the annual report to identify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements  If we
become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the parent company financial statements
+ give a true and fair view of the state of the parent
company's affairs as at 31 March 2013,
¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and
« have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act
2008
In our opinion
+ the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with Companies Act 2006, and
¢ the information given in the Directors’ report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the parent company
financal statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you i, in
Qur opinon
* adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been recewved from branches not visited by
us, or
+ the parent company financial statements and the part
of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are
not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or
s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made, or
s we have not receved all the information and
explanations we require for our audrt

Other matter
We have reported separately on the group financial statements
of Severn Trent Pic for the year ended 31 March 2013

CaN \K(}M

Carl D Hughes (Sentor statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Delotte LLLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, UK

29 May 2013
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2013 2012
Note £fm £fm
Non-current assets
Tangible fixed assets 2 08 02
Investments in subsidianes 3 36416 3,6380
Derrvative financiat instruments 158 208
3,6582 3,6590
Current assets
Debtors 4 405 443
Denvative financial instruments 01 67
Cash at bank and in hand 30 2346
436 2856
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 5 (1856) {1810)
Net current (habilibes)/assets {142 0) 1046
Total assets less current liabilities 3,5162 3,7636
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 6 (163 8) (959)
Net assets 3,352 4 36667
Copital and reserves
Called up share capital 8 2333 2326
Share premium account 9 897 838
Other reserves 9 154 4 152 4
Retained eamings 9 28750 3,1979
Total capital and reserves 9 3,3524 3,6667
Signed on behalf of the bogfdjwho approved the accounts on 29 May 2013
d y PA tloon.
Andrew Duff Michael McKeon
Charman Finance Director
Company number 2366619
Company statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended 31 March 2013
2013 2012
£m fm
{Loss)/profit for the year (68) 9933
» Transfers to the profit and loss account on cash flow hedges 25 23
Deferred tox on transfers to the profit and loss cccount (06) (06)
Total recogrised gains and losses for the year (4 9) 9950
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Notes to the company financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

1 Accounting policies
a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal
cost corvention as modified by the revaluation of financial assets
and ligbiltties (including denvative instruments) at fair value
through profit orloss and in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and comply with the requirements
of the United Kingdom Companies Act 2006 (the Act)

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006,
no profit or loss account 1s presented for this company

The company has taken advantoge of the exemption under
Financiol Reporting Standard 1 ‘Cash flow statements’ and
has not produced a cash flow statement,

The company meets the defirtion of a qualifiing entity under
FRS 100 1ssued by the Finonaiol Reporting Council {FRC)
Accordingly, in the year ending 31 March 2014, the company
intends to transition to reporting under FRS 101 as 1ssued by the
FRC The company intends to take advantage of the disclosure
exemptions available under that standard Any shareholder
who objects to this proposol should write to the Company
Secretary at the Regrstered Cffice (address set out on the back
of this docurnent)

Severn Trent Plc 1s a partner in Severn Trent Limited Partnership
(the partnership), which is reqistered in Scotland As the
partnership is iIncluded in the Severn Trent Ptc consolidated
accounts, the company hos taken advantage of the exemption
conferred by Regulation 7 of The Partnership (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 from the requirerments of Regulations 4 to 6
b} Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangble fixed ossets are included ot cost less accumulated
deprecigtion Freehold land 1s not depreciated Other assets

are depreciated on a straight ine basis over therr estmated
economuc lives, which are pnncipally as follows

Years
Butldings 30-60
Computers and software 2-15

¢} Impairment of fixed assets and investments

Impairments of fixed assets and nvestments are calculated
as the difference between the carrymg values of net assets

of Income generating units, including where appropnote
investrments and goodwill, and their recoverable amounts
Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of net realisable
value or estmated value in use ot the date the impairment
review 1s undertaken Net realisable value represents the net
armount that can be generated through sale of the assets
Value in use represents the present value of expected future
cash flows, discounted on a pre-tax basis using the estimated
cost of capttal of the Income generating unit. Imparment
reviews are camed out If there 1s an indication that an
impaiment may have occurred, or where otherwise required,
to ensure that goodwill and fixed assets are not carned above
therr estimated recoverable amounts Impairments are
recognised in the profit and loss account

d) Financial nstruments
1) Financial assets
fFinancial assets are dassified into the following categones

+ at far value through profit or loss,

+ hetd to matunty investments,

- available for sale financial ossets, and
* loans and recervables

Financial assets ot far value through profit or loss

A finanaiol asset 1s dassified at fair value through profit or loss

if it 15 so designated or if it 1s clossified as ‘held for trading’
Denvative finanaial assets that are not designated and effective
os hedging instruments are required to be dassified as

‘held for trading’ by FRS 26 However, the group’s Treasury Policy,

descnbed in the Financial review on page 37, 1s that the group
does not hotd or issue derwative financral instruments

for trading Finanaial assets at far volue through profit or loss
are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses ansing on
remeasurement being recogrised in the profit and loss account
Far value 1s determined using the methodology described in
note 32 to the group’s financial staternents

Held to matunty investments

Where the company has the ability and intent to hold an
investrment to matunity the financial asset s dassified as held
to motunty Such financial assets are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, with any gains
or losses being recognised in the prefit and loss account.

Available for sale financial assets

After mitial recognition at cost (beng the farr value of the
consideration paid), nvestments which are classified as
avalable for sale are measured at far value, with gains or losses
recognised in equity When an available for sale investment 1s
disposed of or imparred, the gain or loss previously recogrised
in equity 1s taken to the profit and loss account Where there s
no active market in the investments and the fair value cannot
be measured reliably, the investments are held at cost.

Loans and recevables

Trade recevables, loans and other recevables that have fixed
or determinable payments and that are not quoted inan
active market are classified as loans and receivables

Such assets are measured at fair value on initial recognition
and are subsequently measured at omortised cost using the
effective nterest rate method unless there s objective
ewvidence that an gsset 1s impaired, when it 1s wntten down
to its recoverable amount and the irecoverable arnount is
recognised as an expense

1)) Finanaal bobiliies
Financial habilities are cdlassified as either

- finanaal babilities ot fair value through profit or toss, or
- other financiat habilities

Financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A finanaal lability is classified at far value through profit or loss
if 1t1s so designated or if it 15 classified as “held for trading”
Denvative financial labilities that are not designated and
effective as hedging instruments are required to be dassified
s ‘held for trading’ by FRS 26 However, the group's Treasury
Policy, described inthe Financial review on page 37, 1s that the
group does not hold or 1ssue dervative financial Instruments
for trading Financia! liabiliies at farr value through profit

or loss are stated at far vatue, with any gans or losses ansing
on remeasurement being recognised in the profit and loss
account. Fair value 1s determined using the methodology
described in note 32 in tha group financial statements

Other financial habiities

Other finanaial iabilibes, Including borrowings, are initially
recognised at fair value less transaction costs After initral
recognition, other financiol babilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

d) Financial nstruments (continued)

i) Hedge accounting

The company uses dervative finanaal Instruments such as
cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest
rate swaps to hedge 1ts nisks associated with foreign currency
and mterest rate fluctuations Such denvative INstruments are
recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting
pelicies descnbed above

At the inception of the hedge relationshup the cornpany
documents

+ the relationship between the hedging instrument and the

hedged item,

its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking

hedge transactions, and

« whether the hedging instrument is highly effective In
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows (as appropnate)
of the hedged itern

The company continues t6 test and document the effectiveness
of the hedge on an ongoing basis

Hedge accounting is discantinued when the hedging
instrument expires, Is sold, terminated or exerased, or ne longer
qualifies for hedge accounting

fair value hedges

Where a loan or borrowing is in a fair value hedging relationship
It 1s remeasured far changes in foir vatue of the hedged risk

at the balance sheet date, with gans or losses being recogrised
in the profit and loss account

When hedge accounting is discontinued the far value
adjustment to the carrying omount of the hedged item
arnising from the hedged nsk 1s amortised to the profit and
loss account from that date

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that
s determined to be an effective hedge 1s recogrused directly n
equity and the ineffective portion in the profit and loss account.
The gains or losses deferred in equity in this way are recycled
through the profit and loss account in the same period in which
the hedged underlying transoction or firm commitrnent

s recognised in the profit and loss account

When hedge accounting is discontinued any cumulative gain
or loss on the hedging instrurment recognised in equity 1s kept in
equity until the forecast transaction occurs, or transferred to the
profit and loss account if the forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Where forward currency contracts ond fareign currency
borrowings are used to hedge net investrments in foreign
currency denominated operations, to the extent that they
are designated and effective as net nvestment hedges,
they are matched in equity against changes in value of the
related assets Any neffectiveness is taken to the profit ond
loss account

w) Embedded dervatves

Dervatives embedded in other financial instruments or other

host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when therr

nsks and charactenstics are not closely related to those of the
host contract ond the host contract 1s not carned ot far value,
with goins and losses reported in the profit and loss account

e) Investments

Investments in substdiary undertakengs are held at
historical cost

After initrat recognition ot cost (being the farr value of the
consideration paid), Investments which are clossified os held
for trading or available for sale are measured at far value,

with gains or losses recognised in profit and loss or equity
respectively When an avallable for sale irvestment is disposed
of or imparred, the gain or loss previousty recognised in reserves
15 taken to the profit and loss account

f) Share based payments

The company operates a number of equity settled share
based compensation plans for employees The fair value of
the employee services receved m exchange for the grant is
recognised as an expense over the vesting perod of the gront

The farr value of ernployee services 15 determined by reference
to the farr value of the awards granted calculated using &
pricing model, excluding the impact of any non-rmarket
conditions The number of awards expected to vest takes

into account non-market vesting conditions including,

where oppropnate, continuing employment by the group

The charge 1s adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest as
aresult of faling to meet a non-market based condition

g) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is fully provided for in respect of timing
differences between the treatment of certain terns for toxation
and accounting purposes onty to the extent that the company
has an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a nght

to pay less tax in the future Deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that taxable profits are expected

to anse in the future Matenal deferred taxation balances
ansing ore discounted by applying on appropnote risk free
discount rate

h} Pensions

The company participates n the group's defined benefit and
defined contnbution pension schemes, details of which are

set out In note 27 to the group financial statements

However, the company I1s currently unable to identrfy its share
of assets and kobilities relating to the defined benefit schernes
The pension costs charged in the profit and loss account are
the contnbutions payable to the scheme in respect of the
accounting penod in respect of the defined benefit and defined
contnbution schermes
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2 Tangible fixed assets

Landand  Cormputers

buldings ond software Total
£m fm £m
Cost
At1 Apnl 2012 07 08 15
Additions 01 (613 07
Armounts wntten off o7 - 07
At 31 March 2013 01 14 15
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2012 07 06) (13)
Charge for the year - 01) c1)
Amounts written off 07 - 07
At 31 March 2013 - o7 on
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 01 07 08
At 31 March 2012 - 02 02
3 Investments
Subsidiory undertakings
Shares Loans Total
fm £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2012 33073 3307 3,6380
Additionsfloans odvanced 32 04 36
At 31 March 2013 33105 3311 3,6416

Details of principal subsidianes of the company are given n note 42 of the group financial statements

4 Debtors

2013 2012

£m £m

Amounts owed by group undertakings ] 45 344
Deferred tax 61 79
Corporation tax recoverable 295 -
Other debtors - 03
Prepayments and accrued incorme 04 17
405 443

5 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2013 2012

fm fm
Bank overdrafts (196} (310)
Other loans - (22 8)
Borrowings (note 7) ) (196) (53 8)
Derwvative finanaal instruments ) 02) 04)
Trade creditors ) 06 ©4)
Amounts due to group undertakings ) (155 2) {1201)
Other credttors ) 60) (59)
Accrued expenses {4 0) {04)

{185 6) (1810)
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6 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
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2013 2012
£m fm
Borrowings - other loans (note 7) (129 1) (590}
Amounts due te group undertakings (30 -
Denvative financial instruments (317) (379)
(163 8) {96 9)
7 Borrowings
2013 2012
fm £m
Borrowings due within one year 196 538
Borrowings due after more than one year
Between one and two years 323 -
Between two and five years ] 216 550
After more than five years 752 -
Total borrowings due after more than one year 1291 590
1487 1128
Borrowings analysed by interest rate after taking account of interest rate swaps entered into by the compary were
Non-interest
beanng Floating Fixed Index
lebilities rate rote linked Total
2013 fm fm £m fm £m
Bank loans and overdrafts - 196 - - 196
Other loans - 539 - 752 1291
Other financial liobilites 06 - - - 06
06 735 - 752 1493
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched against
specific debt instruments - {225 0) 2250 - -
06 (151 5) 2250 752 1493
Weighted average interest rate 632%
Weighted average penod for which interest 15 fixed (years) 25
Non-interest
beanng Floating Fixed Index
labilities rate rate linked Total
2012 £m £m fm £ f£m
Bank loans and overdrafts - 310 - - 310
Other loans - 818 - - 818
Other financial labilibes 04 - - - 04
04 1128 - - 1132
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched against
specfic debt Instruments - (2250Q) 2250 - -
04 (112 2) 2250 - 1132
Weighted average interest rate 632%
Weighted average penod for which interest is fixed (years) 35
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7 Borrowings {continued)

The company’s borrowings are denorminated in sterling, after taking account of cross currency swaps the company has entered into
There 1s no significant difference between the book value and the far value of the company’s borrewings Fair valires are based on
the expected future cash flows discounted using zero coupon forward interest rates related to the expected timing of payrments

At the balance sheet date the company had committed undrawn borrowing focilities expinng as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
Within one year - -
1-2 years - -
2-5 years 2000 2000
2000 2000
Thus facility 1s shared with Severn Trent Water Linuted
8 Share capital
2013 2012
£m fm
Total issued and fully paid share copital
238,365,734 ordinary shares of 9717hsp (2012 237,608,111) 2333 2326
Changes in share capital were as follows
Nurmber fm
Ordinary shares of 97'7/19p
At 1 April 2012 237,608,111 2326
Shares issued under the group's Employee Sharesave Scheme 757,623 07
At 31 March 2013 238,365,734 2333
9 Reconciliation of moverments in shareholders’ equity
Capital
Share Hedging  redemption Retamed
Share capital premium reserve reserve eamings Total
£m £m fm £m fm fm
At1Apni 2011 2322 800 (55) 1561 2,3595 28223
Cash flow hedges
- transfers to net profit - - 18 - - 18
Share based payments
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 04 38 - - - 42
- awards granted by subsidiaries - - - - 41 41
Net profit for the year - - - - 9933 9933
Dividends - - - - {159 0} (159 0)
At 1 Apnl 2012 2326 838 37 1561 31979 3,6667
Cash flow hedges
- transfers to net profit - - 20 - - 20
Share based payments
- proceeds from shares issued 07 59 - - - 66
- awards granted by subsidiaries - - - - 60 60
Net profit for the year - - - - 69) (69)
Dmdends - - - - (322 0} (3220)
At 31 March 2013 2333 897 (17} 1561 28750 3,3524

The capital redemption reserve arose on the repurchase of B shares This 1 not distributable
In previous years £1,221 2 rmitbon of the company’s retained profit arose as a result of group restructuning exercises, and is not

considered likely to be distnbutable
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10 Employee costs and quditors’ remunergtion

2013 2012

£m £m

Wages ond sclares ] 17 14
Soaal security costs 03 02
Pension costs 11 17
Total employee costs 31 33

For details of directors’ remuneration see the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 57 to 70

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and its associates for non-oudit services to the company are not required to be disclosed because
the cansolidoted financial staterments are required to disclose such fees cn a consolidated basis

11 Employee numbers
Average number of employees of the compaony (induding executive directors) dunng this year was 12 (2012 12)
All were based in the Unuted Kingdom

12 Employee share schemes

For details of employee share schemes ond options granted over the shares of the company, see note 33 of the group finanaal
statements Detatls of the LTIP conditional awards and share options granted by the company to its employees are set out below

The company has charged £0 1 milhon (2012 £0 1 rmillion) to the profit and loss account in respect of share bosed payments
At 31 Morch 2013, there were no options (2012 no options) exercisable under any of the share based remuneration schemes
a) Long Term Incentive Plan

Changes in the number of awards outstanding during the year

Nurnber of awards
Outstanding at 1 Aprit 2011 12,801
Granted during the year 3,702
Lapsed dunng the year (3,566)
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2012 12,937
Granted during the year 3,356
Vested dunng the year ) (1,366)
Lapsed dunng the year (3,447)
Quistanding at 31 March 2013 11,480
Awards outstanding at 31 Merch were

Nurnber of awards
Date of grant Normol date of vesting 2013 2012
July 2009 ) 2012 - 4,813
July 2010 2013 4,422 4,422
July 2011 ) 2014 3,702 3,702
July 2012 2015 3,356 -

11,480 12,937
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12 Employee share schemes (continued)
b) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Changes in the number of opticns outstanding durng the year

Weighted
average
Number of exercse price
share options p)
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2011 4,395 856
Granted dunng the year 916 1,177
Forfeited dunng the year {445) 862
Transferred from other group companies 1,301 956
Exercised during the year (314) 1,221
Outstanding at 1 April 2012 5853 918
Granted dunng the year 1,932 1,241
Exercised during the year (2,561) 830
Transferred dunng the year 4,858 847
Outstanding at 31 March 2013 10,082 991
Options outstanding ot 31 March were
Nurmber of share options
Date of grant Normal date of vesting  Option price 2013 2012
January 2009 2012 or 2014 862p 4352 3,723
January 2010 2013 or 2015 806p 1,602 808
January 2011 2014 or 2016 1,137p 949 316
January 2012 2015 or 2017 1,177p 1,247 816
January 2013 2016 0r 2018 1,241p 1,932 -
10,082 5,853
¢) Share Matching Plan
Changes in the number of awards outstanding duning the year
Number of owords
QOutstanding at 1 Apnl 2011 457
Granted dunng the year 360
Qutstanding at 1 Apnl 2012 817
Granted during the year 348
Cutstonding at 31 March 2013 1,165
Awards outstanding at 31 March were
Nurmnber of cwards
Date of award Normal date of vesting 2013 2012
May 2010 May 2013 457 457
May 2011 May 2014 360 360
May 2012 May 2015 348 -
1,165 817
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13 Pensions

The company participates in two defined benefit pension schernes (being the Severn Trent Pension Scherme and the
Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scherme) In addition, the company operates anunfunded arrangement for certan
employees whose eamings are above the pensicn cap

Further details regarding the operation of these schemes are given in note 27 of the group finanaial statements

The company 1s currently unable to identify its share of the underying assets and liabilibies from the group’s defined
benefit pension schemes, and hence 1t continues to account for the cost of contnbutions as if the scheme was a defined
contrbution pension scherne

The pension charge for the year was £1 1 million (2012 £1 7 million)

14 Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ and not disclosed details
of transactions with other undertakings within the Severn Trent group of companies

The retirement benefit schemes operated by the company are considered to be related parties Details of transactions
and balances with the retirement benefit schermnes are disclosed innote 13

15 Contingent habilities
a) Bonds and guarantees

The company has entered into bonds and guarantees in the normat course of business No ligbilities are expected
to anse in respect of either the bonds or guarantees

b) Bank offset arrangements

The banking arrangements of the company operate on a pocled basis with certan of its subsidiary undertakings
Under these arrangements participating companies guarantee each other’s overdrawn balances to the extent
of therr credit balances, which con be offset aganst balonces of porticipating cormparues

16 Post balance sheet events
Following the year end the board of directors has propesed a final dvidend of 45 51 pence per share

17 Dividends

For details of the dmdends paid in the years ended 31 March 2013 ond 31 March 2012 see note 14 nthe
group finonciol statements
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Five year summary
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£m fm fm fm fm
Turnover 18316 1,7706 1,711 3 1,703 9 1,642 2
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional tems 4980 5042 5191 5571 4699
Net exceptional tems before tax (58) (509 (214) (49 7) (189)
Net interest payable before losses on finonoial instrurnents and
exceptional finance costs (231 9) (2290) (2306} (218 8) (196 4)
Losses on financial Instruments (45 3) 677) (14 2) 457 {87 0)
Results of associates and joint ventures 02 01 01 01 -
Profit before taxation 2152 1567 2530 3344 1676
Current taxation 126 (605) (321) 4o7) {521)
Deferred taxation 26 782 536 (42 2) {171 5)
Profit after taxation 2304 174 4 2745 2515 (56 0)
Net assets employed
Fixed ossets 6,906 1 6,743 6 6,6353 6,5161 6,1699
Other net hlabiliies excluding net debt, retirement benefit obligation,
provisions and deferred tax (273 8) (341 3) (320 4) (317 2) (287 2)
Dervative financial mstruments? (279 8) (261 8} (90 5} {1253) {153 9)
Retirement benefit obligation (383 7) (345 8} (292 1) {354 9) {233 0)
Provisions for labilities and charges and deferred tax {827 5) (845 5) (957 4) (1,0103) {988 0)
Net assets held for sale - - - - 42
51413 49492 49749 4,708 4 45120
Financed by
Called up share capital 2333 2326 2322 2316 2310
Reserves 5999 - 8676 7081 7151
Total shareholders’ funds 8332 9735 10998 9407 9461
Non-controlling interests 108 79 63 63 60
Net debt? 4,297 3 39678 38688 3,7614 3,559 9
51413 494972 49749 4,708 &4 45120
Statistics
Earnings per share - pence 957 725 1152 1056 (24 6)
Adjusted earnings per share - pence 989 889 1056 1228 927
Dvidends per share {excluding speciol dwidend) - pence 758 701 651 723 673
Dividend cover (before exceptional tems and deferred tax) 13 13 16 17 14
Gearing 836% 802% 77 8% 799% 789%
Ordinary share price at 31 March - perce 1,7120 1,544 0 14460 1,1950 9900
Average number of ermployees
- Severn Trent Water 5,458 5,162 5,237 5,686 5,624
- Qther 2,763 2,889 3,045 3,102 3,144

1 Exdudes instruments hedging foreign cumency debt
2 Incdudes instruments hedging foreign currency debt

Geanng has been calculated as net debt divided by the sum of equity and net debt
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Severn Trent Water — delivering against our KPIs

2012113 2011/12
Basis KPI Outturn Outturn
MAT 1  Lost ime inadents per 100,000 hrs worked! 02 03
QR 2 Employee motvation %? 79% 75%
MAT 3 DWI Reportable events (Category 3,4,5)5 23 30
MAT 4 Service Incentve Mechanisrn - Qualitative3 436 396
MAT 5  Service Incentve Mechanism - Quantitative 167 205
MAT 6  Unplanned interruptions (per 1,000 properties) 12 48 1112
MAT 7 Serviceabllity Waste 78 n/a
MAT 8  Serviceability Water 80 n/a
ACT 9 Capex-£m 5418 n/a
ACT 10 Debtor days® 367 358
ACT 11 Opex-£m 567 548
MAT 12 Pollution inaidents (Category 1,2,3)3 6 376 458
ACT 13 Sewage treatment waorks - falling consent limits % 085% 254%
ACT 14 Secunty of Supply? 99 99
MAT 15 Net energy use GWh* 690 679
MLE 16 Leakage Ml/d - Post MLE? 441 464
Notes 1 Actual performance acress all KPI 3 Drinking Water Inspectorate -

MAT = Moving Annual Total

QR = Quarterly Review

MLE = Maximurn Likelhood Estimate
ACT =Year End Actual

employees and agency staff

2 Performance based on annual survey
of all employees

3 As reported in the Annual Regulatory
Performance Report. Performance
figures are provisional at this stage as
the Annual Regulatory Perforrnance
Report will be published on the
Severn Trent Water website
{www stwater couk) on 17 June 2013

4 Actual performance based wholly or
partially on internal dota
5 Actual performance based on

audited UK GAAP financial staterments
for the year ended 31 March 2013

6 Measure for calendar year to
31 Decernber 2012

Reportable events This KPI measures
the number of significant events
reported to the DWI

KPL 7 Serviceability Waste Water

This KPLis an index based on polluticns
and blockages (both measures of how
our below ground assets are performing}
and sewage treatment works

non compliance (above ground)

The index reflects a 50 50 weighting

for above and below ground assets

KPI 8 Serviceability Water This index 1s
based on mains bursts and supply
interruptions greater than 12 hours
{both measures of how our below
ground assets are perforrning) and
Water Treatmnent Works (WTW)

non compliance (above ground)

The index reflects a 50 50 weighting
for above and below ground assets

KPI 14 Secunty of Supply Index (SOSI) s a
measure of how resilient we are aganst
penods of drought The index calculation
1s based upon the difference between the
water avallable to use and the volume of
water we expect to put into our supply
network in order te meet demand
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Information for shareholders

Severn Trent shareholder helpline

The company’s reqistrar 1s Equiniti Limited  Equiniti’s main
responsibilities include mantaining the shareholder register and
making dvidend payments

If you have any queres relating to your Severn Trent Plc
shareholding you should contact Equini

Registrar contact details

Online www shareview co uk frorm here, you wil be able
to securely emal Equiniti with your query

Telephone 0871 384 2967*
Overseas enquiries +44 121 415 7044
Text phone 0871 384 2255*

By post Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing,
West Sussex, BN9S 6DA

Corporate website

Shareholders are encouraged to wisit our webste
www severntrent com which provides

company news and information,

links to our operational businesses’ websites,

detalls of our governance arrangernents,

details of our strategy;

details of the group’s business models and business ptan, and
+ the company’s approach to operating responsibly

There 1s also a dedicated Investors section on the website which
contains up to date information for shareholders ncluding

+ comprehensive share price Information,

+ financial results,

» ahustory of dvidend payrnent dates and amounts, and

- access to current and histonical shareholder documents such
as the annual report and accounts

Electronic communications

By registenng to receve shareholder documentation from
Severn Trent Plc electronically shareholders con benefit from
being able to

= wview the annual report and accounts on the day it
15 published,

- recene an email alert when shareholder documents
are availlable,

= cast their AGM vote electronically; and

- manage their shareholding quickly and securely online,
through Shareview

Electronic shareheolder communications also enable the
company to reduce its impact on the environment and
benefit from sowings ossociated with reduced printing and
mailing costs

For further information and to register for electronic shareholder
communications visit www shareview co uk

Dividend payments

Bank mandates

Dividends can be paid autornatically inta your bark or bulding
soclety account.

The benefits of doing this are you will

+ recenve cleared funds in your bank account on the
payment date,

+ avoid postal delays, and

» remove the risk of your cheques getting lost in the post.

To take advantage of this service or for further details contact
Equiniti or visit www shareview co uk

Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP)

The DRIP gives shareholders the option of using therr dividend
payrments to buy more Severn Trent Plc shares instead of
receving cash If you would like to participate in the DRIP,
please request a dvidend renvestrment plan mandate from
Equiniti Financial Services Lirmited

Telephone 0871 384 2268*
Telephone number from cutside the UK. +44 121 4157173

Buying and selling shares in the UK

If you wish to buy or sell certificated Severn Trent Pic shares, you
will need to use a stockbroker or high street bank which trades
on the London Stock Exchange There are also many telephone
and online services avallable to you If you are selling, you will
need to present your share certificate at the time of sale

Details of low cost dealing services may be obtained from

www shareview co uk or 0845 603 7037

Share price information

Shareholders can find share price information on our website
and in most naticnal newspapers For areal ime buying or
selling pnce, you should contact a stockbroker

Shareholder secunty

Share fraud includes scams where investors are called and
offered shares that often turn out to be worthless or non-
existent, or an inflated price for shares they own These calls
come from fraudsters operating in ‘boller rooms’ that are mostly
based abroad

If you are offered unsolicted investment advice, discounted
shares, a prermiurn price for shares you own, or free company or
research reports, you should take these steps before handing
over any money

- get the name of the person and organisation contacting you,

+ check the Financial Services Register {the Register) at
www fca org uk to ensure they are authonsed,

» use the details on the Register to contact the firm,

= call the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) Consurmer Helpline
on 0800111 6768 if there are no contact details on the
Register or you are told they are out of date,

« search the FCA list of unauthonsed firms and indwiduals to
avold doing business with, and

+ rermember, If it sounds too goed to be true, it probably 1s

* Calls cost 8 pence per minube plus network extras. Lines are open from 8 30am 1o 5 30pm Monday to Fday
** Lines are open Monday-Friday, 8 00am to 4 30pm for dealing, and until 600pm for enquines




Other information Information for shareholders

[f you use an unauthonsed firm to buy or sell shares or other
investments, you will not have access to the Financial
Ombudsman Service or Financial Services Compensation
Scheme If things go wrong

If you are approached about a share scarm you should tell the
FCA using the share fraud reporting form at www fea org uk,
where you can find out about the latest investment scams

You can also call the Consurner Helpline on 0800 111 6768
You should contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040 if you have
already pard money to share fraudsters

Unsolicited mail

The company 1s legally cbliged to make its share register
available to the general public Consequently some
shareholders may receve unsoliated mal If you wish to inmit
the amount of unsolicited mail you recerve please contact
The Mailing Preference Service {MPS), Freepost 29 LON20771,
London W1E 0ZT

Alternatively, register online at www mpsenling org uk or

call the MPS Registration ine on 0845 703 4599

Finanaal calendar
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Arnerican Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

Severn Trent has a spensored Level 1 American Deposttary
Receipt (ADR) programme, for which The Bank of New York
Mellon acts as Depositary

The Level 1 ADR programme trades on OTCQX which is the
prermier tier of the US over-the-counter {OTC) market under
the symbol STRNY (it 1s not listed on a US stock exchange)
Each ADR represents 1 Severn Trent ordinary share

If you have any enquiries regarding Severn Trent ADRs please
contact The Bank of New York Melton

By post. The Bank of New York Mellon, PO Box 358516,
Pittsburgh, PA 15252 - 8516, US

By telephone

If calling from within the US (888) 269 2377 (toll-free)

If calling from outside the US +1 201 680 6825

By email shrrelations@bnymellon com
Website www bnymellon comishareowner

Ex dividend date - final dvidend
Record date to be eligible for the final dvidend
AGM

Intenm management statermment - Q1 Year ending 31 March 2014

Final dividend payment date

Internm results announcement - Year ending 31 March 2014
Ex dwvidend date - intenm dvidend

Record date to be eligible for the interm dmvidend

Intenm drnadend payment date

19 June 2013
21 June 2013

17 July 2013
17 July 2013
26 July 2013

26 Novernber 2013
4 December 2013
6 December 2013

10 January 2014

Alt dates are indicative and may be subject to change
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Severn Trent Plc
Registered office
Severn Trent Centre
2 St John's Street
Coventry

V1217

Tel 02477 715000
www severntrent.com

Registered in England and Wales
Registration number 2366619




